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CORPORATE INFORMATION AND KEY DATES

AEENKREEZEMH

Registered Office

Clarendon House
2 Church Street
Hamilton HM 11
Bermuda

Principal Place of Business

24th Floor

Emperor Group Centre
288 Hennessy Road
Wanchai

Hong Kong

Principal Share Registrar and Transfer Office

Conyers Corporate Services (Bermuda) Limited
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2 Church Street

Hamilton HM11

Bermuda

Hong Kong Branch Share Registrar and
Transfer Office

Tricor Secretaries Limited
Level 54, Hopewell Centre
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Hong Kong

Principal Bankers

The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited
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OCBC Wing Hang Bank Limited

Key Dates

18 December 2020
8 February 2021

2 February 2021
(before 4:30 p.m.)

Annual Results Announcement
2021 Annual General Meeting (2021 AGM)
— Latest time to lodge transfers

Corporate Communications

This Annual Report (in both English and Chinese versions) is
available to any shareholder of the Company (“Shareholder(s)”)
either in printed form or on the websites of The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”) (https://www.
hkexnews.hk) and the Company. In order to protect the
environment, the Company highly recommends the
Shareholders to receive electronic copy of this Annual Report.
Shareholders may have the right to change their choice of
receipt of our future Corporate Communications at any time by
reasonable notice in writing to the Company’'s Hong Kong
Branch Share Registrar, Tricor Secretaries Limited, by post or
by email at is-enquiries@hk.tricorglobal.com.
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RESULTS SUMMARY
RERE

The board of directors (the “Board” or the “Directors’) of HREZFAFEBEABERAT(ARANZESE
Emperor Capital Group Limited (the “Company”) announcedthe & ([EE & | EF )M AR NLE
audited consolidated results of the Company and its BiERAR (FKEAIANER|)EHE20209F9
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) for the year AS30B It FE([AFE |) 2 & BIXEGEA
ended 30 September 2020 (the “Year”). E

For the year ended 30 September
HZ9H30HLFE

HK$'000 2020 2019

Total revenue YA 917,407 1,082,854
Financing =& 779,246 940,016
Brokerage Services 140 IR 7% 115,607 102,020
Placing & Underwriting Al & EE B 35 13,409 34,453
Corporate Finance TEE 9,145 6,365

Net (loss)/profit F(EE), =
Per reported e e (689,747) (258,706)
Adjusted’ CEREY 637,598' 630,578

Basic loss per share BRERERE HK(10.23) HK(3.84)

cents &l cents /&1l
' Excluding aggregate impairment allowances on margin loans and, loans ' 3 B & #£ 491,327,300,0003% T (20194 :
and advances, net of reversal, totalling approximately HK$1,327.3 million 889,300,000/ T0) 2 HFERE AR ER MR

(2019: HK$889.3 million) ORER AR (R EEE)

Emperor Capital Group Limited # 2% 45£BEARA A
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As a result of a tough business operating environment, the
Group’s revenue inevitably decreased by 15.3% to HK$917.4
million (2019: HK$1,082.9 million) during the Year. The loss for
the year attributable to owners of the Company was HK$689.7
million (2019: HK$258.7 million), which was mainly due to the
recognition of impairment allowances for margin loans and,
loans and advances (“Impairment Allowances”) and the decline
of total revenue. The Impairment Allowances of approximately
HK$1,327.3 million (2019: HK$889.3 million) were mainly made
after reviewing the account portfolios and financial positions of
certain clients. Such increase was due to the decrease in
carrying amount of the collateral amid the economic downturn.
Excluding the Impairment Allowances, the Group's adjusted net
profit remained stable at HK$637.6 million (2019: HK$630.6
million). Basic loss per share was HK10.23 cents (2019: HK3.84
cents).

MRBHMNEERE  AEERAFERK
7R AT i £ 4 40 15.3% 2 917,400,0005#
7T (20194F : 1,082,900,0005 7T ) ° ANA &
B AFEAL 2N F JE F 18 £689,700,0007% 7T
(20194 : 258,700,000/ 7C) JIEFERKH
BRTRE KA R E R IA R E B &
(B BB |) A R U AT B o B B 4
1,327,300,0005% 7T.(20194E : 889,300,000
B NEEEEEFETPNEEAA R
FIEARREETIR - 5% EFF REANRELLE B
HARS - 48 T 2 BRTEE T BRAT 2 - R R E
BER AEENCHABGRNEREBTR
637,600,000 7T. (20194 : 630,600,000/%
TL) e BRI EAEIE A10.2378 1120194 :
3.8478l) -

B4R (HSLHK)

2% K|

mperor Capital G

L )

KRB -W 26 650

+0.43%

+5.96%

Emperor Capital Group Limited HEZESEBEERD T
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWED

MARKET REVIEW

During the Year, the global economy faced severe headwinds
arising from the COVID-19 pandemic, which resulted in
disruptions to business activities around the world and rising
concerns about major economies slipping into recession.
Industrial and trading activities became sluggish, while financial
markets remained volatile. Various countries suffered from
economic contraction, negative impacts on household income
gradually surfaced, and borrowers’ ability to repay loans was
affected.

On the other hand, being one of the most important financial
centres for global financial markets, Hong Kong remained an
important gateway connecting China and the world. During the
Year, the return of China concepts stocks to Hong Kong stock
market has contributed to the increase in the stock market
turnover. The average daily turnover value of Stock Connect
Northbound and Southbound also achieved record half-yearly
highs in the first half of 2020. In addition, under the Linked
Exchange Rate System in Hong Kong, the interest rate has
been decreasing during the Year, providing a favourable
environment for the investment and property market.

Nevertheless, with a bearish market sentiment and a gloomy
economic outlook, the Hang Seng Index dropped by 10.1%
from 26,092 on 30 September 2019, and closed at 23,459 on
30 September 2020. Securities firms in Hong Kong are also
having a hard time. During the first nine months of 2020, 32
local securities firms ceased operation, after 22 securities firms
ceased operation in 2019. In the face of both local and global
issues, capital market sentiment has inevitably been impacted.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEEN WD

BUSINESS REVIEW

Established in 1993, the Group is a renowned Hong Kong
based financial institution providing a wide range of financial
services including (i) commercial and personal lending as well
as margin and initial public offering (“IPO”) financing; (ii)
brokerage services, wealth management and asset
management; (iii) placing and underwriting services for listed
issuers; and (iv) corporate finance advisory services. The
Company was listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
in April 2007. In November 2019, “#% 22" has been recognised
as well-known trademark in mainland China and obtained
cross-class protection from the National Intellectual Property
Administration, affirming its wide recognition and brand value in
China.

Over the past decade, the Group has successfully transformed
into an interest income based financial institution and
diversified its income streams. The core strength of the Group
lies in its robust business model, with diverse businesses to
withstand increasingly complex market conditions.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWED

Financing

The Group’s financing segment derives interest income from
commercial and personal lending as well as margin and IPO
financing. The loans granted to customers range from short-
term unsecured loans (e.g. tax loan, bridging loan, term loan,
personal loan) to long-term secured loans (e.g. property
mortgage). Built on a renowned reputation for delivering
professional and personalised loan services, the Group has
developed a niche in the loan market, providing corporate and
retail clients with tailored liquidity solutions to meet their
corporate goals and personal needs.

During the Year, the segment’s revenue was HK$779.2 million
(2019: HK$940.0 million), accounting for 84.9% (2019: 86.8%)
of the Group’s total revenue. In the face of an unprecedented
challenging business environment, the Group continued to
adopt a conservative approach and further tightened the loan
approval procedures. The Group monitored the market situation
closely and adjusted the interest rate and loan-to-value ratio
timely, in order to enhance its risk and capital management.
Legal proceedings have been initiated in response to the
Impairment Allowances during the Year.

Brokerage Services

The Group currently provides brokerage services for securities,
futures and options traded on exchanges in Hong Kong,
mainland China (via Shanghai and Shenzhen-Hong Kong Stock
Connect schemes respectively) and major overseas countries,
as well as wealth management and asset management
services. The Group offers web-based and mobile trading
platforms which enable real-time transaction and investment
portfolio monitoring. As at 30 September 2020, the Group
operated 3 branches in Hong Kong and runs 3 liaison offices in
mainland China, which are located in Beijing, Shanghai and
Guangzhou respectively. The Group’s wealth management
division provides advice regarding a wide array of investment
services, including securities, mutual funds, insurance-linked
products, and real estate investment. In its asset management
arm, apart from running private equity fund, the Group also
provides customised discretionary investment services to its
customers.

During the Year, the increase of China concepts stocks turning
to Hong Kong for listing has contributed to the increase in the
stock market turnover. The Stock Connect Northbound and
Southbound average daily turnover value also reached record
half-yearly highs during the first half of 2020. As a result,
revenue from brokerage services increased by 13.3% to
HK$115.6 million (2019: HK$102.0 million) during the Year,
accounting for 12.6% (2019: 9.4%) of the Group's total revenue.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEEN WD

Placing and Underwriting

With a highly experienced team of professionals, the Group
offers placing and underwriting services to various Hong Kong
listed companies. The Group serves as placing agents in equity
and debt placing deals and IPO-related transactions. The
Group also participates in underwriting rights issue exercises.

During the Year, the Group participated in a number of primary
and secondary market financing projects. Revenue from the
placing and underwriting segment was HK$13.4 million (2019:
HK$34.5 million), accounting for 1.5% (2019: 3.2%) of the
Group’s total revenue.

Corporate Finance

The division holds a full corporate finance licence under the
Securities and Futures Ordinance, allowing it to advise on
Takeovers Code related transactions and undertake sponsor
work for IPOs in addition to general corporate finance advisory
services. Apart from IPO-related services, the Group offers
advisory services for corporate transactions including placing,
rights issue, corporate restructuring and merger and
acquisition.

The Group has engaged in a number of corporate transactions
and IPO projects during the Year. Revenue from the corporate
finance segment was HK$9.1 million (2019: HK$6.4 million),
accounting for 1.0% (2019: 0.6%) of the Group’s total revenue.

il

“Best in Brokerage” Capital Merits of Achievements in
Banking & Finance Awards 2019, Capital Magazine
BARM BEAREMIRTT RERAZ2019] 2
[ 2 BEFREAE]
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWED

OUTLOOK

With a number of challenges which are yet to be resolved, the
gloomy economic outlook and market instability are expected to
remain, and will continue to pose negative impacts to the
economy. In view of the significant downward pressure on the
economy, fiscal measures are being taken in various countries
to mitigate the social and economic impacts. A certain period
of time is anticipated for the market recovery.

In respect of the financial market, Hong Kong is still a vital link
for access to China’s stock market. During the Year, Hang Seng
Indexes Company Limited announced the inclusion of weighted
voting rights and secondary listed companies in the Hang Seng
Index universe, enabling the competitiveness of the Hong Kong
stock market. It is expected that more foreign-listed Chinese
firms and Chinese new economy companies may consider to
list in Hong Kong, and the return of China concepts stocks will
benefit the Hong Kong stock market in the long run as more
global funds will be allocated to the Hong Kong market. In
addition, development of the “Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macao
Greater Bay Area” would bring more opportunities for Hong
Kong as an international financial hub.

The Group will actively review its loan portfolio and loan
receivables status; conduct more comprehensive assessments
of the collaterals to minimise default risk; and exercise stringent
control over operating costs. In the face of threats and
opportunities ahead, the Group will adhere to its prudent
approach and adopt appropriate strategies to mitigate
downside risk while seizing opportunities, and will endeavour to
maintain steady businesses development.

FINANCIAL INFORMATION
Capital Structure, Liquidity and Financial Resources

The Group financed its operations by cash mainly generated
from operations and borrowings, as well as proceeds raised
from issuance of bonds. As at 30 September 2020, the Group's
current assets and current liabilities were HK$9,326.0 million
(2019: HK$9,440.2 million) and HK$4,582.6 million (2019:
HK$2,584.4 million) respectively. As at 30 September 2020,
aggregate of bank balances, cash and pledged bank deposits
of the Group amounted to HK$852.0 million (2019: HK$1,905.5
million), which were mainly denominated in Hong Kong dollar.

As at 30 September 2020, the total carrying amount of the
Company’s outstanding bonds decreased to approximately
HK$1,394.6 million (2019: HK$2,813.5 million) as the Group has
repaid part of the bonds by deploying internal resources during
the Year. Principal amounts of HK$ bonds and United States
dollar (“US$”) bonds were HK$1,385.2 million and US$1.2
million (equivalent to approximately HK$9.4 million),
respectively. With maturity dates falling within 2021 and 2022,
the HK$ bonds carry coupon rates ranging between 5.0% and
5.25% per annum, whilst the US$ bonds carry coupon rate at
4.75% per annum.

JiE]

BRAR

al

Emperor Capital Group Limited #HE#F 55
ANNUAL REPORT 2019/2020 £ #k

Al

AR Z BB = 15 R - JEET T BABA AV AR
BRI M ME T REEE W KEEYE
BEXAATE ENHLENENTIT
B - & B IESRE BUE i AR Bt &
MEBENTE - BATERTE—BREHT

RETE B -

Eemm5hm EBINAZEATEN
EMHENERZRB -NAFE ELEH
BERAREMBRKTAELRSE - TR
A B AR BUE IS - AR T
REMGOESE N - AT ELHEBI LT
MARBARMPEFEECXEEEES
B Em PES SR O RS EE S BR
BeNEEFEMYS  REKFGMIETE
AARRT o o [ BARAEE | /)%
%ﬂ%%ﬁ% REMTONEEHRES

XR

AEESERBEREERAS REWER
A - BE M ETTE 2 E AR A
KE AR ¢ S BRAR 128 I 48 2 BN o [ 3
RIRH)PEE M HE - NEBE KR TEET
RETE - WERBUE KB RYUERBENR
RRE NTER RN GFRENE
R -

MBER
BEXRE RBDESRUBER

AEBETBUKLEER BEMETES
FISHREAEEKREEE S - 12020
FOASB AKEBEZRHEELRATA
&5 B /&9,326,000,0005% 7T (20194 :
9,440,200,0007% 7t ) }&4,582,600,000/% 7T
(20194F : 2,584,400,0005 7T ) - 202049
A30H REEZRITEE  IBE DR
iR 17 17 3 & # /A852,000,000/% 7£(2019
£:1,905,500,000/870) EELABTLETHE ©

R2020F9H30H ' BN ANEBEERAFE
LRSS ERERIEDES ARG EETE
54 HERMEE T 2 #491,394,600,0007 7T
(20194 :2,813,500,0007 7T ) ° & TLE S &
ETLEFHAREEED 7 A1,385,200,000/48
7T & 1,200,000 7T (18 & 7 499,400,000/%8
L) BLEFNEEEN LB F50%E
526%  METLBEFENEBEXRAEEF
475% BEES 2 EH B A2021F &
20224 A »



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEEN WD

As at 30 September 2020, the Group had bank borrowings of
HK$2,371.0 million (2019: HK$231.2 million), which solely
represented IPO financing and was fully repaid in early October
2020. The total borrowings of the Group, which included the
bonds and excluded the IPO financing, amounted to
HK$1,394.6 million (2019: HK$3,044.7 million), hence the
gearing ratio was 31.5% (2019: 59.5%; calculated as a
percentage of total borrowings excluding IPO financing over
total equity of the Group). The Group did not have any material
foreign exchange exposure as at 30 September 2020.

With the Group’s sufficient bank balances and cash, its
available unutilised banking facilities of HK$2,440.5 million, as
well as the proceeds raised from the issuance of bonds, the
Board considers the Group has sufficient working capital for its
operation and future development.

Pledge of Assets

As at 30 September 2020, bank deposit of the Group with
aggregate carrying amount of HK$160.0 million (2019:
HK$160.0 million) was pledged to a bank as security for
banking facilities.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 30 September 2020, the Group had 77 (2019: 80)
account executives and 131 (2019: 162) employees. Total staff
costs (including directors’ remuneration) were approximately
HK$62.1 million (2019: HK$99.0 million). Employees’
remuneration was determined in accordance with individual's
responsibility, competence and skills, experience and
performance as well as market pay level. Staff benefits include
medical and life insurance, provident funds and other
competitive fringe benefits.

To provide incentives or rewards to the staff, the Company
adopted a share option scheme on 26 January 2017,
particulars of which will be set out in the section headed “Share
Options” of this annual report.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board did not recommend any payment of final dividend for
the year ended 30 September 2020 (2019: Nil).
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EEREREEECEBE

Daisy Yeung, aged 55, joined the Group in January 1996. She
is the Managing Director of the Board and the Chief Executive
Officer of the Group. Ms. Yeung is the Chairperson of the
Executive Committee as well as a member of the Remuneration
Committee and the Nomination Committee of the Company. She
is responsible for the formulation of corporate strategy,
overseeing operations and the overall steering of the
Company’s management focusing in the areas of marketing
and business development. Ms. Yeung is also a director of
various subsidiaries of the Company, including Emperor
Securities Limited, Emperor Futures Limited, Emperor Wealth
Management Limited and Emperor Asset Management Limited,
all of which she is also a responsible officer under the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFQ”). Moreover, she is now
the Permanent Honorary President and Vice-Chairman of The
Institute of Securities Dealers Limited and a General Committee
member of The Chamber of Hong Kong Listed Companies. She
has accumulated over 24 years of management experience in
financial industry and has been active in driving the
development of the local securities industry. Ms. Yeung holds a
Bachelor's Degree of Science in Business Administration.
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CHOI SUK HING, LOUISA
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
AND COMPANY
SECRETARY

R
BITEERAAWE

PEARL CHAN
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

R fim S
BITEE

Choi Suk Hing, Louisa, aged 56, joined the
Board in March 2008. She is an Executive
Director and the Company Secretary of the
Company. Ms. Choi is the Chairperson of the
Corporate Governance Committee and a member
of the Executive Committee of the Company as
well as a director of various subsidiaries of the
Company. She is also a responsible officer of
Emperor Capital Limited, a subsidiary of the
Company under the SFO. Ms. Choi has over 22
years of experience in the finance industry
covering securities, futures and corporate
finance. Before that, she had worked in the
company secretary profession in both listed
companies as well as professional firms for over
8 years. Ms. Choi holds a Master's Degree in
Applied Finance from Macquarie University,
Australia. She is a fellow member of both The
Chartered Governance Institute (formerly known
as The Institute of Chartered Secretaries and
Administrators) in the United Kingdom and The
Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries.

Pearl Chan, aged 47, joined the Board in June
2011. She is an Executive Director and a member
of the Executive Committee of the Company. She
is also a director and responsible officer of
Emperor Capital Limited under the SFO. She has
been working in the corporate finance field for
more than 19 years. She was a practising lawyer
in Hong Kong before joining the Group. Ms. Chan
holds a Bachelor's Degree in Laws from The
University of Hong Kong and a Master's Degree
in Management from Macquarie University,
Australia.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Chu Kar Wing, aged 63, joined the Board in May 2010. He is
the Chairman of the Remuneration Committee as well as a
member of the Audit Committee and the Nomination Committee
of the Company. Mr. Chu was previously an independent non-
executive director of another Hong Kong delisted company,
China Power Clean Energy Development Company Limited
(Stock Code: 735) until 19 August 2019. He has extensive
experience in the banking and finance sector for several well-
known corporations. Moreover, he is now the President of
Canada-China Culture and Education Association. Mr. Chu
holds a Bachelor's Degree of Social Sciences majoring in
Economics.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Poon Yan Wai, aged 50, joined the Board in January 2014. He
is the Chairman of the Audit Committee as well as a member of
the Remuneration Committee and the Corporate Governance
Committee of the Company. He is now the financial controller,
company secretary and an authorised representative of a Hong
Kong listed company. He is also an independent non-executive
director of a Hong Kong listed company, Dragon Mining Limited
(Stock Code: 1712). He was previously an independent non-
executive director of another Hong Kong listed company, China
Brilliant Global Limited (formerly known as Prosten Health
Holdings Limited) (Stock Code: 8026) until 12 February 2018.
He has over 20 years of experience in the auditing and
accounting field. Mr. Poon holds a Bachelor’'s Degree in
Accountancy and a Master’'s Degree in Corporate Finance from
the Hong Kong Polytechnic University. He is a fellow member of
The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Wan Choi Ha, aged 53, joined the Board in July 2015. She is
the Chairperson of the Nomination Committee as well as a
member of the Audit Committee and the Corporate Governance
Committee of the Company. Ms. Wan has been admitted as a
solicitor in Hong Kong since 1993 and is now a Senior Partner
of Wan and Leung, Solicitors. Ms. Wan graduated from The
University of Hong Kong with a Bachelor's Degree in Laws.
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The Directors are pleased to present this annual report and the
audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for the
Year.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The Group is
principally engaged in the provision of financial services
including (i) commercial and personal lending as well as
margin and IPO financing; (ii) brokerage services, wealth
management and asset management; (iii) placing and
underwriting services for listed issuers; and (iv) corporate
finance advisory services.

The activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 37
to the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the Year are set out in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on page 65 of this report.

No interim dividend (2019: Nil) was paid during the Year and
the Board did not recommend any payment of a final dividend
for the Year (2019: Nil).

BUSINESS REVIEW AND PERFORMANCE

A fair review of the Group’s business, a discussion and analysis
of the Group's performance during the Year and an analysis of
the likely future development of the Group’s business are set
out in the Management Discussion and Analysis from pages 6
to 11 of this report. Description of the principal risks and
uncertainties facing the Group are set out in the Corporate
Governance Report from pages 45 to 48 of this report and
notes 38 and 39 to the consolidated financial statements
respectively.

There is no important event affecting the Group that had
occurred since the end of the Year up to the date of this report.
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In addition, discussion on the Group’s environmental policies
and performance, key relationships with the Company's key
stakeholders as well as compliance with relevant laws and
regulations which have significant impact on the Company are
set out in the Environmental, Social and Governance Report
2019/2020 of the Company.

RESERVES AND DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF
THE COMPANY

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group during the
Year are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity on page 68.

The Company’s reserves available for distribution to
Shareholders as at 30 September 2020 represented the
aggregate of contributed surplus (stated as “special reserve” in
note 36 to the consolidated financial statement) and retained
profits amounting to approximately HK$101.9 million and
HK$164.1 million respectively (2019: HK$101.9 million and
HK$89.2 million).

The special reserve of the Company represents the difference
between the nominal value of the ordinary shares of the
subsidiaries of the Company in issue and the nominal value of
the shares issued by the Company for acquisition of a
subsidiary pursuant to the group reorganisation on 2 April
2007.

Under the Companies Act in 1981 of Bermuda (as amended),
the contributed surplus of the Company is available for
distribution to the Shareholders. However, a company cannot
declare or pay a dividend or make a distribution out of
contributed surplus if there are reasonable grounds for
believing that:

(i)  the company is, or would after the payment be, unable to
pay its liabilities as they become due; or

(i)  the realisable value of the company’s assets would thereby
be less than the aggregate of its liabilities and its issued
share capital and share premium accounts.

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and assets and liabilities of the Group
for the last five financial years is set out on page 190 of this
annual report.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the share capital of the Company
during the Year are set out in note 30 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

During the Year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed
securities.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Bye-laws, or the laws of Bermuda, which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to
existing Shareholders.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Other than the share option scheme as disclosed in note 31 to
the consolidated financial statements, no equity-linked
agreements were entered into by the Company during the Year
or subsisted at the end of the Year.

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

During the Year, the Group acquired property and equipment at
a cost of approximately HK$1,074,000.

Details of changes in the property and equipment of the Group
are set out in note 16 to the consolidated financial statements.

DEBENTURES

Details of the debentures of the Company in the form of
unsecured bonds are set out in note 29 to the consolidated
financial statements.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the Year, the aggregate amount of turnover attributable
to the Group’s five largest customers accounted for 14% (2019:
20%) of the Group’s total turnover. The largest customer
accounted for 5% (2019: 6%) of the Group’s total turnover.

None of the Directors, their close associates or any
Shareholders (which to the best knowledge of the Directors own
more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had any
beneficial interest in the Group’s five largest customers.

The Group had no major supplier due to the nature of principal
activities of the Group.
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DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS’ SERVICE
CONTRACTS

The Directors during the Year and up to the date of this report
were:

Executive Directors:

Ms. Daisy Yeung (Managing Director)
Ms. Choi Suk Hing, Louisa
Ms. Pearl Chan

Independent Non-executive Directors:

Mr. Chu Kar Wing
Mr. Poon Yan Wai
Ms. Wan Choi Ha

Biographical details of the current Directors and senior
management as at the date of this report are set out from
pages 12 to 14 of this annual report. Details of the Directors’
remuneration are set out in note 10 to the consolidated financial
statements.

In accordance with Bye-laws 87(1) and 87(2) of the Company’s
Bye-laws, Ms. Daisy Yeung and Ms. Wan Choi Ha shall retire by
rotation at the 2021 AGM and, being eligible, shall offer
themselves for re-election thereat.

None of the Directors offering themselves for re-election at the
2021 AGM has an unexpired service contract with the Company
or any of its subsidiaries which is not determinable by the
Group within one year without payment of compensation (other
than statutory compensation).

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts, other than employment contracts, concerning the
management and administration of the whole or any substantial
part of the Group’s business were entered into or existed during
the Year.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

During the Year and up to the date of this report, the Company
has in force the permitted indemnity provisions which are
provided for in the Company’s Bye-laws and in the directors
and officers liability insurance maintained for the Group in
respect of potential liability and costs associated with legal
proceedings that may be brought against the Directors and the
directors of the Group respectively.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS IN SECURITIES

As at 30 September 2020, the interests and short positions of
the Directors and chief executives of the Company in the
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company and
its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
SFO) as recorded in the register maintained by the Company
pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model
Code for Securities Transactions by Directors adopted by the
Company (“ECG Securities Code”) were as follows:

Long position interests in the Company
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each of the Company (“Shares”)

Capacity/

Name of Director Nature of Interests

ESHR

510 EEHE

Ms. Daisy Yeung
BT LT

discretionary trust B
ARBEFEZEERZ @A

Beneficial owner

BEulfBA

Ms. Choi Suk Hing, Louisa Beneficial owner

ORIz EmEBAA
Ms. Pearl Chan Beneficial owner
e {fml H 22 4= EmEA A

Note: The above Shares were held by Emperor Capital Group Holdings
Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Albert Yeung Capital Holdings
Limited (“AY Capital Holdings”). AY Capital Holdings was in turn held
by CDM Trust & Board Services AG (“CDM Trust”) in trust for a private
discretionary trust set up by Dr. Yeung Sau Shing, Albert (“Dr. Albert
Yeung”) under which Ms. Daisy Yeung had deemed interest by virtue
of being one of the eligible beneficiaries.

Save as disclosed above, as at 30 September 2020, none of
the Directors nor chief executives of the Company had any
interests or short positions in the Shares, underlying Shares and
debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO).

Eligible beneficiary of a private

EEREETHRABRES 2ERS

R2020F9A30H EENARAZES
TBRABRARARIRERBZE(TER
BEREEIEOIEXVEL) 2 &0 - FERER
MREEETREEZ LR ARRIREZES
N EIEDIE35215BEF 2 B fsiR
BARARANGRMZETETEARR 5 212
SFA(THEEFHFEEFLHTHDARSTTHM
GARRNBRB R 2 EmIABIT

RAEATZzFRER
AR AFREE.01ETZEBER ([KHG])

Number of Approximate%
Shares Issued Voting
Interested Shares
mEERN HIEE BT
ROBE BREERO%
2,879,5621,438 42.72%
(Note)
(Hfat)
18,000,000 0.26%
4,680,000 0.07%
2,925,000 0.04%

BiteF - LA BB RGN EFEHFIZERER AR
SIREFER D Z2EWNBRARREF L%
EIERERARFE - HGXKEHFLERA
CDM Trust & Board Services AG([CDM
Trust D AMEFEF AR —BRABIBEF(A
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HETLTRAEERIBAZ — MBEREHE
e o
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SHARE OPTIONS

The Company has adopted a share option scheme (“Share
Option Scheme”) on 26 January 2017. Particulars of the Share
Option Scheme are set out in note 31 to the consolidated
financial statements. No option was granted, exercised,
cancelled or lapsed under the Share Option Scheme since its
adoption.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Other than as stated above, at the end of the Year and at no
time during the Year was the Company, any of its holding
companies, subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries a party to any
arrangements to enable the Directors or chief executives of the
Company or their spouses or children under 18 years of age to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of Shares in, or
debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

As at 30 September 2020, none of the Directors or their
respective close associates was interested in any business
which was considered to compete or was likely to compete,
either directly or indirectly, with the business of the Group as
required to be disclosed pursuant to the Listing Rules.

OTHER PERSONS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES

So far as is known to any Directors or chief executives of the
Company, as at 30 September 2020, the following persons or
corporations (other than a Director or chief executive of the
Company) had, or were deemed or taken to have interests or
short positions in the Shares or underlying Shares as recorded
in the register required to be kept under Section 336 of the SFO
(“DI Register”) were as follows:

Long position in the Shares

Capacity/Nature of Interests

510, HEEME

AY Capital Holdings

B REF IR RSAE A 2 #Ean

Emperor Capital Group Limited HEXFSEBEER DT
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Number of Approximate%

Shares Issued Voting

Capacity/Nature of Interests Interested Shares

BERERN HIEE BT

B REmtE RHOBE BREERD%

CDM Trust Trustee of a privgte discretionary trust  2,879,521,438 42.72%
LABBEFEZXFEA (Note)
(Ktat)

Dr. Albert Yeung Founder of a private 2,879,521,438 42.72%
BEL discretionary trust (Note)
FLABIGEFEZ 8IS A (Mfat)

Ms. Luk Siu Man, Semon Interest of spouse 2,879,521,438 42.72%
B/ 222+ fifd 2 s (Note)
(Htat)

China Huarong Asset Interest in a controlled corporation 551,522,000 8.18%

Management Co., Ltd. REEHEBR 2

TREREEEERNBRAT

ERMEBEETERMAMRAF Interest in a controlled corporation 551,522,000 8.18%
RGN ER 2 s

Taiping Assets Management Investment Manager 612,900,000 9.09%
(HK) Company Limited REBEA
RKEBEEE(BE)BRARA

Taiping Trustees Limited Trustee 612,900,000 9.09%
K EEERAF XEEA
Note: These Shares were the same shares of which Ms. Daisy Yeung had it - HERMN AL X[ EENESTRABNE
deemed interest as set out under the section of “Directors’ and Chief Hom ] SR MEERFZ T HRE A%
Executives’ Interests in Securities” above. HiEm 2 BRRG -

Save as disclosed above, as at 30 September 2020, the B IR FEE SN H2020F9H30H » &
Directors or chief executives of the Company were not aware of A FIE Bk mTEA B W AHBEMA A
any person or corporation (other than a Director or chief T8 ZE(BRARFTNEEXZSTHAE
executive of the Company) who had, or were deemed or taken o) I (AT i% 17 sk AR B8 B 0 AR B 4R &
to have, any interests or short positions in any Shares or & {EH A A E B LM 2 M
underlying Shares as recorded in DI Register. RBmIOKE °
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DIRECTORS’ MATERIAL INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS OR
CONTRACTS AND CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Continuing Connected Transactions

During the Year, the Group had the following transactions with
connected persons (as defined in the Listing Rules) of the
Company and certain Directors had material interests, directly
or indirectly, in such transactions:

1.  Master Leasing Agreement (“2018 MLA”)

Date:

Parties:

Nature:

24 May 2018
(1) The Company

(2) Emperor International Holdings
Limited (“Emperor International”)

2018 MLA sets out the framework of the
terms governing all existing and future
tenancy/licensing transaction(s) (“Tenancy
Transaction(s)”) regarding leasing of certain
office properties or other properties
(including signage or signboard space)
from Emperor International and its
subsidiaries (“Emperor International Group”)
for the period from 24 May 2018 to 31
March 2021 with aggregate tenancy annual
caps being set for each of the financial
years ended 30 September 2018, 2019,
2020 and for the six months ending 31
March 2021 (“Aggregate Tenancy Annual
Caps”).
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Pursuant to the 2018 MLA, relevant
members of the Group and the relevant
members of Emperor International group
may from time to time enter into any
definitive leasing agreements in relation to
any Tenancy Transactions (“Definitive
Leasing Agreement(s)”). The terms of
each Definitive Leasing Agreement shall
be on normal commercial terms or on
terms which are no less favorable to the
Group than terms offered by independent
third parties. The terms and rental shall be
subject to arm’s length negotiation and
determined based on the condition of the
properties and with reference to the then
prevailing market rents on property(ies)
comparable in location, area and permitted
use.

As both the Company and Emperor
International were indirectly controlled by
the relevant discretionary trusts set up by
Dr. Albert Yeung who is deemed substantial
shareholder of the Company, Emperor
International was deemed as a connected
person of the Company under Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules. Accordingly, the
transactions contemplated under the 2018
MLA constituted continuing connected
transactions of the Company. Ms. Daisy
Yeung, a Director, has deemed interest in
the transactions by virtue of being one of
the eligible beneficiaries of the relevant
private discretionary trusts.

During the Year, the aggregate amounts of
the Tenancy Transactions with Emperor
International or its relevant members was
HK$10,238,051.

Effective Date: 9 August 2018, whereupon the Aggregate
Tenancy Annual Caps had replaced all the
then annual caps previously obtained by
the Company for the Tenancy Transactions.

Announcement: 24 May 2018 and 9 August 2018

With the upcoming expiration of the 2018 MLA, the
Company entered into a new master leasing agreement
with Emperor International on 3 December 2020 to
regulate arrangements for Tenancy Transactions between
the parties for a successive term of 3 years from 1 April
2021. Please refer to the announcement dated 3
December 2020 for details.
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2. Financial Services Agreement with Albert Yeung 2. HEBEEREFERERLAA(HEZA
Holdings Limited (“AY Holdings”) for Emperor Group EXZR)RREEBFT V22 /R
(“Emperor Group FSA”) BiE ([ RELE L FRE 2 )
Date: 27 August 2018 HE - 20188 H27H
Parties: (1) The Company RIHE (1) AAF

(2) AY Holdings (2) BEXKEFER

Amount

Nature of transaction for the Year

REME rEEZSH

HK$’000

FET

(a) Commission, brokerage, fees and interest income from the then listed 374
members under AY Holdings, its subsidiaries and associates (“Emperor

Group”)

KEGEKREFRZERBETERN EMKXEAR EMNBARLRBBEAL(RESE
B2z BLg BREMNEIA

(b) Maximum margin loan amount to the listed members of the Emperor Group -
BTHEREXFEETN FTKERARIZESTREREH

(c) Maximum IPO loan amount to the listed members of the
Eod

Emperor Group -
BTEREFEET LT EARIRSAEALAHEEEREH

(d) Maximum term loan amount to the listed members of the Emperor Group -
BTHEEEBE TN FMKEARIRSEHERSH

(e) Financial advisory fee from the listed members of the Emperor Group 2,055
KEREEEE TN EFHXERARICHENAE

Emperor Capital Group Limited HEXFSEBEER DT
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Under the Emperor Group FSA, the Group has agreed to BREREEBRSRRSEHE ~5E

provide to other listed members under Emperor Group (i) REmMEEEEETEMETMKE

brokerage services for securities, futures and options NRRENES HERHEEE 2

trading; (i) wealth management and asset management BeR%: (INVEEEREETER

services; (iii) placing and underwriting services: (iv) % (i) ERE B IHERS  (iv)BLE R

financing services including margin loans, IPO loans and % &?ﬁﬁ?&ﬁ?ﬂ BRAAHEEE

terms loans; and (v) financial advisory services. The REEFHER: RV)E @ Z i8R
transactions contemplated under the Emperor Group FSA HoREXESRAREHEE NETT
constitute continuing connected transactions of the CRXGERARB 2 FHBEBER

Company. Ms. Daisy Yeung has deemed interest in this 5o lBmH LT AEE RS EEE

agreement by virtue of being one of the eligible Hfith KB AR ABIFERE

beneficiaries of the private discretionary trusts of which TZEBRIZmALZ— WHEHEAER
such other listed members of Emperor Group were being EEBETHEAER -

held.

Term: From 1 October 2018 to 30 September FH H20185F10H 1 B %2021
2021 (on normal commercial terms and at FOH3RAZ— B E K
rates no more favourable than those KR TMERRE T HAM IS
available to other independent third SNE=FZE)
parties)

Announcement: 27 August 2018 N 20188 H27H

Circular: 5 October 2018 K 2018 10H5H

3.  Financial Services Agreement with Ms. Daisy Yeung for 3. HIBERFLLHRBRFEKT L2/
the Yeung Family (“Yeung FSA”) R G# ([ 2ERB =)

Date: 27 August 2018 HE: 201848 A27H

Parties: (1) The Company STHH (1) ARAR]

(2) Ms. Daisy Yeung (2) BHFLL

Emperor Capital Group Limited HEZESEBEERD T
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Nature of transaction
REME

Amount
for the Year

AEEZ SR
HK$’000
FB7

(a) Commission, brokerage, fees and interest income from Ms. Daisy Yeung and 3,706
her associate, but excluding the listed members of the Emperor Group

(“Yeung Family”)

KAEGHRFLEIREBEAL BIEEREEEE N EHKEQR([HRER

Rz Me KLE  EREMNEKA

(b) Maximum margin loan amount to the Yeung Family
BTERRGEZ&EIREREHE

(c) Maximum IPO loan amount to the Yeung Family
BTERIGEERSBAAAEEERSHE

(d) Maximum term loan amount to the Yeung Family
LTHRREZRSEHERTRE

(e) Financial advisory fee from the Yeung Family
KEBRRGEZ 2RBAE

42,480

199,807

1,500

800

(f)  Commission and fee payment to the Yeung Family for their services being -

provided to the Group
ABERREXNERNEERIERB M RER

Under the Yeung FSA, the Group has agreed to provide to
members of the Yeung Family (i) brokerage services for
securities, futures and options trading; (ii) wealth
management and asset management services; (iii)
financing services including margin loans, IPO loans and
term loans; and (iv) financial advisory services. The Group
has also agreed to pay commission and fee to the Yeung
Family, including (1) the commission and fee for their
acting as placees or underwriters for the securities of the
Company or for the securities underwritten or placed by
the Group; and (2) referral fee for introducing clients to the
Group relating to the Group’s business. Ms. Daisy Yeung
has deemed interest in this agreement by virtue of being
one of the members of the Yeung Family. As such, the
transactions contemplated under the Yeung FSA constitute
continuing connected transactions of the Company.

Emperor Capital Group Limited HEXFSEBEER DT
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Term: From 1 October 2018 to 30 September
2021 (on normal commercial terms and at
rates no more favourable than those
available to other independent third

parties)
Announcement: 27 August 2018

Circular: 5 October 2018

Compliance with Disclosure Requirements

Regarding the related party transaction as set out in note 34 to
the consolidated financial statements, the transactions as
shown in items (i), (iii) to (vi), (x) and (xi) are non-exempt
continuing connected transactions and that the Company has
complied with the disclosure requirements under Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules.

Auditor’s Letter on Non-exempt Continuing
Connected Transactions

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group'’s
non-exempt continuing connected transactions (“CCTs”") in
accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance
Engagements 3000 (Revised) “Assurance Engagements Other
Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and
with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on
Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong
Listing Rules” (“Auditor’'s Letter”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

The auditor has issued an unqualified letter containing its
findings and conclusions in respect of the CCTs disclosed by
the Group as set out from pages 22 to 27 of this Annual Report
in accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules. A copy of
the Auditor’s Letter has been provided by the Company to the
Stock Exchange.
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Confirmation of Independent Non-executive Directors

Pursuant to Rule 14A.55 of the Listing Rules, the independent
non-executive directors of the Company (“INED(s)”) have
reviewed the CCTs and the Auditor’s Letter and have confirmed
that these transactions have been entered into by the Group:

(i) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

(i) on normal commercial terms or better (as the case may
be); and

(iiiy according to the agreements governing them on terms that
are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
Shareholders as a whole.

Save as disclosed above, there was no transaction,
arrangement or contract which was significant in relation to the
Group’s business to which the Company or any of its holding
companies, subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party and
in which a Director or his/her connected entity had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of
the Year or at any time during the Year.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE OF
INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company had received from each of the INEDs an annual
confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules. The Company considered all of the INEDs are
independent.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emoluments of the Directors shall be decided by the Board
as recommended by the Remuneration Committee having
regard to a written remuneration policy (which ensures a clear
link of business strategy and a close alignment with the
Shareholders’ interest and current market best practice).
Remuneration should be paid with reference to the Board’s
corporate goals and objectives, the salaries paid by
comparable companies, time commitment and responsibilities
of the Executive and Non-executive Directors, internal equity of
employment conditions across the Group and applicability of
performance based remuneration. The Directors’ fees are paid
fees in line with market practice. No individual should
determine his or her own remuneration.

ERZEEARRAA
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Employees’ remuneration was determined in accordance with
individual's responsibility, competence and skills, experience
and performance as well as market pay level. Remuneration
package includes, as the case may be, basic salaries,
Directors’ fees, contribution to pension schemes, discretionary
bonus relating to financial performance of the Group and
individual performance, ad hoc rewards, share options and
other competitive fringe benefits such as medical and life
insurances. Details of the emoluments of the Directors and the
five highest paid individuals of the Group are set out in notes
10 and 11 to the consolidated financial statements.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Principal corporate governance practices adopted by the
Company are set out in the Corporate Governance Report from
pages 30 to 55 of this annual report.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, as at the latest
practicable date prior to the issue of this annual report, there
was sufficient public float of at least 25% of the Company’s
issued Shares as required under the Listing Rules.

DONATIONS

During the Year, the Group made charitable donations
amounting to approximately HK$10,000.

AUDITOR

A resolution will be submitted to the 2021 AGM to re-appoint
Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Daisy Yeung
Managing Director

Hong Kong
18 December 2020
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The Directors of the Company have adopted various policies to
ensure compliance with the code provisions of Corporate
Governance Code (the “CG Code”) under Appendix 14 of the
Listing Rules. For the Year, the Company had fully complied
fully with the code provisions of the CG Code except with the
deviation from code provision A.2.1 which requires the roles of
chairman and chief executive officer be separate and not be
performed by the same individual.

THE BOARD
Board Composition

As at 30 September 2020, the Board comprised six Directors
(three Executive Directors and three INEDs) who possess the
skills, experience and expertise either in the same industry or
relevant to the management of the business of the Group. The
biographies of the Directors are set out from pages 12 to 14 of
this report under the “Biographies of Directors and Senior
Management” section.

Chairperson and Chief Executive Officer

Code provision A.2.1 requires that the roles of chairman and
chief executive officer should be separate and not be
performed by the same individual. Ms. Daisy Yeung (being the
Chief Executive Officer of the Group) has also been appointed
as the Managing Director of the Company by the Board who
provides the Board with strong and consistent leadership while
at the same time leading the management on effective
planning, formulation, implementation and execution of long-
term business strategies of the Group. The Directors have
considered the issue of balance of power and authority of the
Board and believe the current structure (having strong
independent elements in the Board, delegation of authorities to
the management, supervision by the Board and Board
committees) can properly address the potential issue on power
concentration. All Directors, who bring different experience and
expertise to the Company, are properly briefed on issues
arising at Board meetings and that adequate, complete and
reliable information is received by the Directors. The Board is of
the opinion that the current Board structure functions effectively
and does not intend to make any change thereof.
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Independent Non-executive Directors

The INEDs are all professionals with well recognised
experience and expertise in financial, legal or accounting fields
who contribute impartial view and make independent judgment
on issues to be discussed at the Board meetings. They are
appointed for an initial term of three years which is renewed
automatically for successive terms of one year subject to early
termination with written notice being served by either party. The
terms of the INEDs are also subject to retirement by rotation
and re-election provisions under the Bye-laws of the Company.

The Company had received confirmation of independence from
each of the INEDs. Based on the annual review conducted by
the Nomination Committee, the Board considered each of them
to be independent by reference to the factors as set out in Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules. The INEDs had been expressly
identified as such in all corporate communications of the
Company that disclose the names of Directors.

Roles and Responsibilities of the Board

The Company is headed by the Board which is responsible for
the leadership, control and promotion of success of the Group
in the interest of the Shareholders by directing and supervising
its affairs and by formulating strategic directions and monitoring
the financial and management performance of the Group.

Delegation to the Management

The management is led by the Executive Committee of the
Company (which comprises all the Executive Directors of the
Board) who has been delegated powers and authorities to carry
out the day-to-day management and operation of the Group,
formulate business policies and make decision on key business
issues. The Executive Committee shall have all powers and
authorities of the Board except the following matters as set out
in a “Formal schedule on matters reserved for and delegated
by the Board”:

- determining the Group’s objectives and strategies;

- approving annual and interim results and financial
reporting;

- declaring or recommending payment of dividends or other
distributions;
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approving major changes that require notification by
announcement under the Listing Rules;

approving publication of the announcement for notifiable
transactions (except for discloseable transactions in
relation to lease transactions recognizing the right-of-use
asset according to HKFRS 16) under the Listing Rules;

approving non-exempt connected transactions/non-
exempted continuing connected transactions (other than
those transactions which took place from time to time
under the master agreement(s) previously approved by
the Board/Shareholders (as the case may be)) under the
Listing Rules;

approving proposed transactions requiring Shareholders’
approval under the Listing Rules;

approving major capital restructuring and issue of new
securities of the Company;

approving the establishment of Board committees;

approving policies and practices on compliance with legal
and regulatory requirements, including but not limited to
risk management policy, remuneration policy and
corporate governance policy;

approving financial assistance to Directors;

ensuring the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications
and experience, training programmes and budget of the
Company’s accounting, internal audit and financial
reporting functions; and

approving such other matters or transactions as specified
by the Board or as thought fit by the Committee or as
required by all applicable laws, rules and regulations from
time to time.

Emperor Capital Group Limited HEXFSEBEER DT
ANNUAL REPORT 2019/2020 £ #k

HAERE EHRANBEARERAE
Bz BREE

HERNZEBERELMMRAUBAN AT
DR 5 (EARIER E B B % 5 2 R
FIREREAREELHERS
BRAZATHRERSHRIN 2RE

HERBLEHRA 2 IFRRHER
5/ FRRHERERH(REEH
BEEg /MRERRBEIAME) )M AEZ
THETHETZIRBEHRIN)

HWERBETRAFZTERRMELZ
BEXS

HWEARR ZETBEEAREMANET
g5

HERKIBEEZES

HWEEBESTAPIREERTET @
MBSRE SR BHEETRRERE
BHE  HIBR R EEEIBBR

HEHRE SR 2 W HIRE)

FERA QR E - ABPEZ M F5 &
B ER BIERNKER B
At kR ZERE + &

HWEEZSREEXALZESGRARES
ST B NREAEAE - R A NRORR
MELZLBREMEREIRS -



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
TEERBRE

Induction, Support and Professional Development of
Directors

All Directors have been given relevant guideline materials
regarding the duties and responsibilities of being a Director, the
relevant laws and regulations applicable to the Directors, duty
of disclosure of equity and business interest of the Group and
such induction materials will also be provided to newly
appointed Directors shortly upon their appointment as
Directors. All Directors have been updated on the latest
developments regarding the Listing Rules and other applicable
regulatory requirement to ensure compliance and enhance their
awareness of good corporate governance practices. There is a
procedure agreed by the Board to enable Directors, upon
reasonable request, to seek independent professional advice in
appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s expenses in
order to assist them to perform their duties to the Company.

The Directors confirmed that they have complied with the Code
Provision A.6.5 of the CG Code on Directors’ training. During
the Year, each Director had participated in continuous
professional development by attending seminars/workshops/
reading materials on the following topics to develop and refresh
their knowledge and skills and provided a record of training to
the Company:

EECHE XEREXRE

PBEESEHCEBRHEAMEIES ZBA
LEL - BRARES 2 HBER KRG
RARBZBEREGRERBELEETL
HEAESIER MR EEFTEZERE

ik NEREMRNARIRELEREA
MEK - 2BEFNCRLEDRARE

BAEEZRZHEMERBERNAK
emiErEs RSNeREYRIFER
ERTEHZER EESCHERF &
E=ZTHEERATKAEERESIE
VEXRBRUABRER/ARRRAITE
B BFRBRAREELE-

EEER RECETEXERTIAA
EFHEIZTREXEABLEK XA
G SEFYUCLERKESLEE 5
BEFEBATEE BHE, TIEY/
BIREM AL - AR R B3R 2 A S
B WE RAR AR HIFIIALE -

Topics on training covered by all Directors

Name of Directors EEpR

Daisy Yeung S (a)
Choi Suk Hing, Louisa D (b)
Pearl Chan BeR . Ay (c)
Chu Kar Wing Kk (d)
Poon Yan Wai BB

Wan Choi Ha e

Relationship between the Board Members

None of the members of the Board has any relationship
(including financial, business, family or other material/relevant
relations) among each other.

Directors’ Insurance

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance cover in
respect of legal action against the Directors.

FrEESRE 2B &

corporate governance 1®¥%E78
finance 817§

industry-specific 17 ¥+8#
regulatory &

ExTeREH @M%

EEeXEBCHBETARBRR(BEY
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EE2RE
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Directors’ Attendance and Time Commitment EECcHEBAREERA

The attendance of Directors at the meetings during the Year is ANEEZEHFESH 2 BEILEHIWOT ¢
set out below:

No. of meetings attended / held
HEEE/ BTEERY

Corporate 2020 Annual
Audit Remuneration  Nomination  Governance Executive General
Name of Directors Committee =~ Committee = Committee =~ Committee =~ Committee Meeting
20205
EEfA ENZEE HMZEe REZEE L¥ERZEE  HTZEE® RRBEFAE
Executive Directors
HES
Ms. Daisy Yeung (Note 1) 99 22 11 18/18 11
BRER (M)
Ms. Choi Suk Hing, Louisa (Note 2) 99 11 18/18 1
LRt (Hit2)
Ms. Pearl Chan 99 18/18 il
BRIt
Independent Non-Executive
Directors
BUFHTES
Mr. Chu Kar Wing (Note 3) 99 33 22 11 111
RERTE(WF3)
Mr. Poon Yan Wai (Note 4) 99 33 22 11 11

BCRALEWEY)

Ms. Wan Choi Ha (Note 5) 99 313 1 il il
BYERL(HS)
Total number of meetings held: 9 3 2 1 1 18 1
greEzay.

Notes: Bzt

1. Chairperson of the Executive Committee 1. HITEEETHE

2. Chairperson of the Corporate Governance Committee 2. DESLEEETE

3. Chairman of the Remuneration Committee 3. ZMESETE

4. Chairman of the Audit Committee 4, EBREBETE

5. Chairperson of the Nomination Committee 5. BEEEeIFE
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During the Year, the Chairperson held a meeting with INEDs
without the presence of Executive Directors in compliance with
code provision A.2.7 of the CG Code.

The Board has reviewed the contribution required from each
Director to perform his/her responsibilities to the Company and
is satisfied that each Director has been spending sufficient time
in performing their responsibilities during the Year.

Board Meetings and Proceedings

Regular Board meetings were held at approximately quarterly
interval. The Directors have access to the advice and services
of the Company Secretary and key officers of the company
secretarial team for ensuring that the Board procedures, all
applicable rules and regulations are followed.

With the assistance of the Company Secretary, the meeting
agenda is set by the Chairperson of the meeting in consultation
with other Board members. Board meeting notice was sent to
the Directors at least 14 days prior to each regular Board
meeting. For all other board meetings, reasonable notice was
given. Board papers and related materials which provide
appropriate, accurate, clear, complete and reliable information
are generally sent to all Directors and relevant committee
members at least 3 days before each Board meeting and Board
Committee meeting (on other agreed period) to enable the
Directors to make informed decisions.

Minutes of Board meetings and Board committee meetings are
drafted by the secretary of the meetings and recorded in
sufficient details the matters considered and decisions reached,
with draft and final versions being circulated to the Directors for
their comment and records respectively, within reasonable time
after the meetings are held. Originals of such minutes, being
kept by the Company Secretary, are open for inspection at any
reasonable time with reasonable notice by any Director.

If a Director has conflict of interest in a matter to be considered
by the Board which the Board has determined to be material,
the matter will be dealt with by a physical Board meeting rather
than a written resolution. That Director will abstain from voting
on the relevant Board resolution in which he/she or any of his/
her associates has a material interest and he/she shall not be
counted in the quorum present at such Board meeting. INEDs,
who, and whose close associates have no material interest in
the transaction are present at that Board meeting.
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Board Committees

To assist the Board in execution of its duties and facilitate
effective management, certain functions of the Board have
been delegated by the Board to the Executive Committee, Audit
Committee, Remuneration Committee, Nomination Committee
and Corporate Governance Committee.

All members of the Audit Committee and the majority members
of the Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee are
INEDs. Clear written terms of reference of all the Board
Committees are given to the respective members of these
Committees. Details of the Board Committees are set out below:

1.

Executive Committee (set up on 18 November 2014)

The Executive Committee currently consists of three
Executive Directors, namely Ms. Daisy Yeung (Chairperson
of the Committee), Ms. Choi Suk Hing, Louisa and Ms.
Pearl Chan. The primary duties of the Executive
Committee are (a) formulating business policies and
making decision (including entering into transactions) on
matters relating to the management and day-today
operations of the Group; (b) making and reviewing
corporate/financial/treasury planning, investment and
operation strategy of the Group; (c) discussing and
approving any financial, borrowing, charging and
guarantee commitment to be made or on behalf of the
Group; (d) approving any transactions, including
discloseable transactions, exempt connected transactions
and non-exempt continuing connected transactions which
took place from time to time under the master
agreement(s) previously approved by the Board/
Shareholders (as the case may be) under the Listing
Rules; and (e) approving any publication of the relevant
announcement for discloseable transaction in relation to
lease transaction recognizing the right-of-use assets by
the Company as a lessee according to HKFRS 16 Leases
and (f) having all power and authorities of the Board
except those matters specifically reserved for the full
Board as set out in the “Formal Schedule on matters
reserved for and delegated by the Board” adopted by the
Board from time to time.

ERZEEARRAA

()
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Audit Committee (set up on 1 March 2007)

The Audit Committee consists of three INEDs, namely Mr.
Poon Yan Wai (Chairman of the Committee), Mr. Chu Kar
Wing and Ms. Wan Choi Ha.

The specific written terms of reference of the Audit
Committee is available on the websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company. The Audit Committee is
primarily responsible for (a) making recommendations to
the Board on the appointment, re-appointment and
removal of the external auditor; (b) reviewing and
monitoring the external auditor’'s independence and
objectivity and effectiveness of the audit process; (c)
approving the remuneration and terms of engagement of
external auditor; and (d) reviewing financial information
and overseeing the financial reporting system, risk
management and internal control systems. The Audit
Committee held three meetings during the Year.

A summary of work performed by the Audit Committee
during the Year is set out as follows:

i. reviewed with the management/finance personnel
and/or the external auditor the effectiveness of audit
process and the accounting principles and practices
adopted by the Group, the accuracy and fairness of
the annual consolidated financial statements for the
financial year ended 30 September 2019 (“Previous
Year”) and the interim consolidated financial
statements for the six months ended 31 March 2020;

i. reviewed with the senior management and finance
personnel the effectiveness of the risk management
and internal control systems of the Group during the
Previous Year;

iii. performed annual review of the non-exempt
continuing connected transactions of the Group for
the Previous Year;

iv. ~recommended the Board on the re-appointment of
external auditor at the 2020 annual general meeting
("2020 AGM™); and

v.  approved the audit plan for the financial year ended
30 September 2020, reviewed the independence of
external auditor and approved its engagement.

FERESE (R2007F3A18£7)
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Remuneration Committee (set up on 1 March 2007) 3. HMZESE(R2007F3518K)
The Remuneration Committee consists of three members, YNEZESH=2KBAEX EHH
namely Mr. Chu Kar Wing (Chairman of the Committee) REIENTESRERLE(ZE
and Mr. Poon Yan Wai, both being INEDs, and Ms. Daisy SXIFEECELAERERTLAKE
Yeung, being the Managing Director. B FL Lo

The specific written terms of reference of the FMEZEg s HEERBESHE

Remuneration Committee is available on the websites of REEZPT R AR BRI ER - HEE

the Stock Exchange and the Company. The Remuneration BE2FrZaEAMR@ARAZESR

Committee is primarily responsible for making SREIRE 2 FTB SR R 2R

recommendation to the Board on (a) the Company’s policy (D)BILIERITES 2HBH : K(c)@

and structure of all remuneration of Directors and senior AmITEE ke EEE 2 AES

management; (b) the remuneration of INEDs; and (c) the MFBREESREHEBER - KNF

specific remuneration packages for individual Executive EREZZHMNFBIHNES B

Directors and senior management. Details of the WEMFI0-FMEEERAFE

remuneration of each of the Directors for the Year are set BITMREE

out in note 10 to the consolidated financial statements.

The Remuneration Committee held two meetings during

the Year.

A summary of the work performed by the Remuneration RAFEEAN FMEEEMETZI

Committee during the Year is set out as follows: EBLZHIMT

i. reviewed the Directors’ fees and made . RBRINESHSITRESRME
recommendation to the Board; and EBER &

ii. reviewed the current remuneration structure/package i. BARTESELRESAEEEZ
of the Executive Directors and senior management BRHMER FBKFE I
and recommended the Board to approve their R ERS 2 BEEBHNGER
specific packages. EEgiRfRE-

Nomination Committee (set up on 28 March 2012) 4. EEZESE(HK20124F3F28H )

The Nomination Committee consists of three members,
namely Ms. Wan Choi Ha (Chairperson of the Committee)
and Mr. Chu Kar Wing, both being INEDs, and Ms. Daisy
Yeung, being the Managing Director.

The specific written terms of reference of the Nomination
Committee is available on the websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company. The primary duties of the
Nomination Committee are (a) reviewing the structure,
size, composition and diversity of the Board; (b) reviewing
the Board Diversity Policy; (c) determining the policy for
the nomination of Directors (“Nomination Policy”) and
identifying potential candidates for directorship; (d)
assessing the independence of INEDs; (e) reviewing the
time commitment of each Director; and (f) making
recommendations to the Board on the appointment, re-
appointment, re-election or re-designation of Directors and
succession planning for Directors. The Nomination
Committee held one meeting during the Year.
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A summary of the work performed by the Nomination
Committee during the Year is set out as follows:

i. reviewed the structure, size, composition and
diversity of the Board;

i. reviewed the independence of the INEDs;

iii. reviewed the confirmation from the Directors on time
commitment in performing their duties as Directors;
and

iv.. = made recommendation to the Board on the
re-election of Directors at the 2020 AGM.

Board Diversity Policy

As adopted by the Board, the Board Diversity Policy aims
to achieve diversity on the Board in the broadest sense in
order to have a balance of skills, experience and diversity
of perspectives to the business nature of the Company.
Selection of candidates on the Board is based on a range
of diversity perspectives, including but not limited to
gender, age, cultural and educational background,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of
service. The Nomination Committee will also assess the
merits and contribution of any Director proposed for re-
election or any candidate nominated to be appointed as
Director that will bring to the Board against the objective
criteria, with due regard for the benefits of diversity on the
Board that would complement the Company’s corporate
strategy.

Nomination Policy

The Company had adopted a written Nomination Policy of
the Group. It aims at assisting the Nomination Committee
in identifying and nominating suitable candidates for
directorship based on the Board Diversity Policy and sets
out the nomination criteria and the nomination procedures
for (i) nominating candidate as new Director; (ii) making
recommendation to Shareholders regarding any Director
for election or re-election of Director at general meeting;
and (iii) nomination by Shareholders on election of new
Director.

RAFEN REZBEMETZT
R Z ST -

i, BRI EEE I RE AB B
WEZ |

i MEBEMIFAITEF B

ii. RMNESEHETETES 2R
ERAREBZER &

iv. BLR2020EREFKE FEE
BAZEERESCIRMEHERE
=R

EFEZntHE

EEeMRM2ETE S TILER
FERRERAREREEE S T
b RIBA QBRI E M AHE
BRI KRN ZENEE R
BEFEREEZNEANRSZTEE
B BRERESRRMER - Fik - Xt
RBEBS HELR K A&
KRG FEH - RBE B M FGE
MEZEENESTHEMERRZ
EREFZIRBEAREFEWRZ
EBENMER UREBEIFE T
PTENREZFSSITEMEE T
ERAYNCIPA(SE 31

REREK

ARRIEHRAAEE 2 EMEER K
FoZBEEEMBIREEREZESRE
EESZTIEERDENRERES
ZEBEFEEN XRIREREUTAR
ZIRABBERRBRERF  ()RRKRE
ABHES (RN BERAE LER
HEEES ARRREHEES

K(iiBERMERFEFT ZIRS °

Emperor Capital Group Limited HEZESEBEERD T

ANNUAL REPORT 2019/2020 4 #R

39



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
SREABE

5. Corporate Governance Committee (set up on 28 March 5. #H#X¥EARZE2(R20124F3528H K
2012) )
The Corporate Governance Committee consists of five TEERLZESHABKEAEK -
members, namely Ms. Choi Suk Hing, Louisa (Chairperson palzlp=E ?%%g/ﬂﬂﬂﬂﬁi(i,\ =

of the Committee) being an Executive Director, Mr. Poon FE)BUFNTESTELCELE
Yan Wai and Ms. Wan Choi Ha, both being INEDs, a NMBRRERZLT —BRAIMEREE
representative of company secretarial function and a F’Wk%& % B g wH Bk e B0 P
representative of finance and accounts function. R«

The specific written terms of reference of the Corporate hEE 278 %%ﬁﬁ%%%ﬁ
Governance Committee is available on the Company’s ITBA$ Bt ER - hEERE
website. The primary duties of the Corporate Governance = ZEEH&,E\ 5(a )7f SMARRRE
Committee are (a) reviewing the policies and practices on m% ERTHAZHREEHRIME
corporate governance of the Company and making EERHEEBER (b )Mﬁ&%ﬁ%—i
recommendations to the Board; (b) reviewing and RRABIEETERRE Eﬂﬁ&ﬁﬁ
monitoring the policies and practices of the Company on R RER  (c)HIE - ®E E%Q%—E
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements; (c) EERAEEM Faﬁ/\/\E\K
developing, reviewing and monitoring the code of conduct BHEMMBERZTATA (d )*ﬁ%ﬁ&
applicable to Directors and relevant employees of the EREFERAREEE ZEI R
Group on dealings with the Company’s securities; (d) %Ei%?*@ K (e) & AN~ 7l E <7
reviewing and monitoring the training and continuous TEESTUARABRERE 2B
professional development of Directors and senior /R i%féﬁ*iéﬁ@ ANREFERIT—
management; and (e) reviewing the Company’s RE &

compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in this
report. The Corporate Governance Committee held one
meeting during the Year.

A summary of the work performed by the Corporate RAFEEAN rEEEGEEGMET

Governance Committee during the Year is set out as ZTEESHIIIT -

follows:

i.  reviewed the Corporate Governance Policy and i RBREDNEER E&%iﬁﬁﬂ%%%
made recommendation to the Board; TET/\T’E%,?

ii. reviewed the policies and practices on compliance i. BWMAEEFERLREERTEH
with legal and regulatory requirements; H2BERER

ii. reviewed the training and continuous professional i, WMNESKAREREEZE
development of Directors and senior management; RIFBEEEER

iv. reviewed the code of conduct applicable to Directors iv. BMAESFRAE l*ﬁ =N = N
and relevant employees of the Group; and HEAZITRER

v. reviewed the Company’s compliance with the CG v. WEARFEBFEEERTH
Code and disclosure in Corporate Governance &ﬁ%axn#& BB
Report.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary whose appointment was approved by
the Board, plays an important role in supporting the Board for
ensuring good information flow within the Board and ensuring
that the Board policies and procedures are followed. She is
responsible for advising the Board on governance matters and
has facilitated induction and professional development of the
Director. She has day-to-day knowledge of the Company’s
affairs.

During the Year, the Company Secretary had duly complied
with the training requirement under Rule 3.29 of the Listing
Rules.

SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS OF DIRECTORS

The Company had adopted its own code of conduct regarding
securities transactions by Directors (“ECG Securities Code”) on
no less exacting terms than the required standards as set out in
Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules regarding the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (“Model
Code”). Having made specific enquiry to the Directors, all of
them confirmed that they had complied with the required
standard of dealings as set out in the Model Code and ECG
Securities Code throughout the Year.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT
Financial Reporting

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities to prepare the
annual consolidated financial statements of the Group and
other financial disclosures required under the Listing Rules. The
management has provided all members of the Board with
monthly updates on internal consolidated financial statements
which give a balanced and understandable assessment of the
Group’s performance, position and prospects as at the
reporting date.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements for the Year,
the Board has adopted appropriate accounting policies and
applied them consistently, made judgment and estimates that
are prudent and reasonable and ensured the consolidated
financial statements are prepared on a “going concern” basis
(with supporting assumptions or qualifications as necessary)
and showed a true view of the state of affairs of the Group for
the Year. The management had provided sufficient explanation
and information to the Board on the consolidated financial
statements to enable it to make an informed assessment of the
financial and other information put before it for approval. The
auditors of the Company had made a statement about their
reporting responsibilities in the Independent Auditors’ Report.

DNEWE
NAMERESSHEZR HEXHE
FEENHREEEEARE UBREEFEN
MzBEMMBRT NEZSHRNIZFE
BET - REAEREARFTERNESSRM
BER-VYEHDEEZHERFTXERR-
BE AR 2 AEEBHE TR

RAFEERN RrWECZRETETR
A3 2018 T 2 EHFARTE

EEZESFRS

RRRIERMEBFI ZBHESRETRES
RHZTRTNRERSEEEST
A1) BAGRSRAN R R L AR RIBH 8%+ P 8K
ZALEMBETAEFETEFRZNEE
STRINMREST A 2 RERX HIZE -
AEEFHREERNE 2RESHER
WRENAFEAN-—BETRETHNES
ErRBES TSR EEE R -

BERZE
B ER

EZANERFAERUBAKEZFERE
IR mR M EmRRITRE 2 B b B F5 4%
BER-EEECEBARNEZS2RKE
REANIZAPERREFER  URM
RSB BAARE 2RI MR
ROFTFRSRIBEOFE -

RmERNFREAMBHRRE EFEK
MBRBZETHE YEMERZSTR
RFHLEE NG IR 2 FIE K fh 5t W
REEMBRRZ(FELL | R ERR
(I 70 75 22 055 F k) ST ME R AR B PR E 1 16
AW EE 2 AEBERANEE 2 Bk
No-BEEBCREFTSREEBRARMB
BRZAMBELRERNAEESTS A E
Pe S DAL 2 B 5 I B A B RHE L A11B
Al e ARAZ ZBEE BT 2 ERE
ERB LB R E AIEL R

Emperor Capital Group Limited HEZESEBEERD T

ANNUAL REPORT 2019/2020 4 #R

41



42

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

%8R B &

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

A.

Goals and objectives

Internal control is fundamental to the successful operation
and day-to-day running of a business and it assists a
company in achieving its business objectives. Internal
control policies and procedures within the Group are
updated regularly with the primary objective of providing
general guidance and recommendations on a basic
framework of risk management and internal control
systems (“Systems”).

The Board is responsible to ensure that the Group
establishes and maintains appropriate and effective
Systems. Such Systems are designed to manage rather
than eliminate risks of failure to achieve business
objectives, and can only provide reasonable, but not
absolute, assurance against material misstatement or
losses.

The key objectives of the Systems include:
° safeguarding assets;

° ensuring completeness, accuracy and validity of
financial records and reports;

° promoting adherence to policies, procedures,
regulations and laws; and

° promoting effectiveness and efficiency of operations.

A review has been conducted on (i) the Group’s internal
control measures and procedures covering material
controls, including operational, financial and compliance
controls; and (ii) risk management functions in the
principal subsidiaries of the Company.
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B. Governance Control

The control structure of the Systems is set out as follows:

(1)

2

The Board
o responsible for the Systems and reviewing their
effectiveness;

o oversee the Systems on an ongoing basis with
the assistance of the Audit Committee;

o ensure the maintenance of appropriate and
effective Systems;

o define management structure with clear lines of
responsibility and limit of authority; and

o determine the nature and extent of significant
risk that the Company is willing to take in
achieving the strategic objectives and formulate
the Group'’s risk management strategies.

Audit Committee

° review and discuss the Systems with the
management annually to ensure that the
management has performed its duty to have
effective Systems. This discussion includes the
adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and
experience, training programmes and budget of
the Company’s accounting and financial
reporting functions; and

° consider major findings on internal control
matters raised by external auditors and make
recommendations to the Board.
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3

4)

The management (including heads of business
units, departments and divisions)

o design, implement and monitor the Systems
properly and ensure the Systems are executed
effectively;

o monitor risks and take measures to mitigate
risks in day-to-day operations;

o give prompt responses to, and follow up the
findings on internal control matters raised by
internal or external auditors; and

o provide confirmation to the Board on the
effectiveness of the Systems.

Internal Audit Department

o carry out the analysis and independent
appraisal of the adequacy and effectiveness of
the Systems in respect of all material controls,
including financial, operational and compliance
aspects;

o alert the management on the audit review
findings or irregularities, if any, and advise them
on the implementation of necessary steps and
actions to enhance the internal controls of the
Group; and

o report the results of internal audit reviews and
agreed action plans to the Audit Committee and
the Board on regular basis.

C. Risk management

(1)

Emperor Capital Group Limited #HE

Risk Management Process

The risk management process includes risk
identification, risk analysis, risk evaluation, risk
management measures and risk control and review.

The management is entrusted with duties to identify,
analyse, evaluate, respond, monitor and
communicate risks associated with any activity,
function or process within its scope of responsibility
and authority. Risks are also evaluated by the Board
based on (i) the severity of the impact of the risks on
the Group’s financial results; (ii) the probability that
the risks will occur; and (iii) the velocity or speed at
which risks could occur.
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Based on the risk evaluation, the Company will
manage the risks as follows:

Risk elimination — The management may
identify and implement certain changes or
controls that in effect eliminate the risk entirely.

Risk mitigation — The management may
implement risk mitigation plan designed to
reduce the likelihood, velocity or severity of the
risk to an acceptable level or contingency plan
for possible loss scenarios.

Risk control and monitoring — It involves
making decisions regarding which risks are
acceptable and how to address those that are
not. Accidents and other situations involving
loss or near-loss will be investigated and
properly documented as part of the effort to
manage risks.

Risk retention — The management may decide
that the risk rating is low enough that the risk is
acceptable level and no action is required. The
risk will continue to be monitored as part of the
risk management program to ensure the level of
risk does not increase to an unacceptable level.

Significant Risks and Strategies

Certain significant risks have been identified through
the process of risk identification and assessment.
Such significant risks of the Group and their
respective key strategies/control measures are set
out below:

(i)

Credit Risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that the borrower or
counterparty may fail to perform its obligation to
pay in a timely manner, or that its ability to
perform such obligation may get impaired
before delivery date.

2

BRERBFTGE ARAEER
BT

.« EBRER-EEE T M
RERE TR ERAR
Z BBHEL -

e REERAR-EEEANEE
a5 B 1 21 DA S =L B 1
Beo#e REHEEBR
JZ R Z AL 3% A 7K S 3 ¥ A]
BE IR 2 BRI I E FE

e
=E

e RBEREERREE-HEIL
1 R] 35 0 L e K a0 4] g
PR EME L IRE &
IR K 3l AR IR R Y
SR EMIT R E
kZpaix EREANE
BRRZ IR

e HEFREBKFE-EFIEER
e 7 AL 70 L B R AR B MK
=\ B B Rl K B
AERBAEMITE - ERR
R EEAEN—HD B
7 18 B 5 B B DA R AR R B
g LA EDAEHK

EAERR

AEE B BB R R ER K
BFEMNETERER KNE
[ Py [ e B 7% 5 B K L B K 1%
SXANETERKEHER
ol

(i) FERERZ
EERRZEERAIY
FTREARKEITEMNRE
T HEBETEHEACITZ
BEN AT BEM R A B Z A ¢
K2Rk -

Emperor Capital Group Limited HEZESEBEERD T

ANNUAL REPORT 2019/2020 4 #R

45



46

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
%8R B &

The Group's Credit Committee, the ultimate
credit decision-making organ of the Group, is
responsible for putting in place credit policies
and procedures for approving margin financing
and lending portfolio as well as debt recovery
procedures to ensure prompt and effective
recovery of outstanding debts. The Group’s
exposure to credit risk lies mainly in two areas:

a)

Margin financing

The customers’ trading of securities or
futures may expose the Group to risk arising
from price volatility which may reduce the
customers’ ability to meet their obligations.
The Credit Committee will prescribe from
time to time the lending limits on individual
stock or on any individual customers and
their respective associates by considering
their creditworthiness, financial strength and
the size of their positions or commitments for
the purpose of monitoring the customer
concentration risk and stock concentration
risk.

The Credit and Risk Control Department
(“CRC Department”) is responsible for the
daily monitoring of the changes in
customers’ positions, their accounts and
financing ratios; to observe strictly the
approved financing and credit policies; to
make margin calls and perform forced
liquidation, where appropriate; to report to
the management regularly and when
abnormalities arise; to closely monitor the
unusual movements and trading halts of
stocks and timely identify non-performing
debts; and to demand higher margin
requirements and step up risk control for
particular customers or products, where
appropriate.

Lending portfolio

All loans and advances are subject to
credit analysis, borrower’s due diligence,
risk assessment and are approved by the
management according to the credit
policies set by the Credit Committee. The
Loans Operation Department is tasked
with the daily monitoring of exposures for
loans and advances.
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(ii)

(iii)

Moreover, the Internal Audit Department also
conducts independent reviews on the
adequacy and effectiveness of these policies
and controls to ensure that the Group is
operating according to the established policies,
procedures and credit limits.

Equity Risk

Equity risk arises from fluctuation in the price
and volatility of equities such as stocks, equity
portfolio and stock index futures. The Group
does not have proprietary equity investments.
On the other hand, the Group may be subject to
exposure arising from the underwriting
commitments. The Group mitigates its risks by
conducting detailed analysis of the issuer’s
fundamentals and pricing against market
conditions and appetites. Such risk exposure is
also reduced by way of internal sales and
distribution and by sub-underwritings.

Liquidity Risk

The Group’s financing business is a capital
intensive business which may be subject to
liquidity risk. As part of its ordinary brokerage
activities, the Group is also exposed to liquidity
risk arising from timing difference between
settlements with clearing houses or brokers and
customers. The goal of liquidity risk management
is to ensure the Group maintains adequate
liquid capital to fund its business commitments
as well as to comply with the relevant Financial
Resources Rules applying to various licensed
subsidiaries.

To address the liquidity risk, the Group’s
Finance and Accounts Department and the
management will review and monitor the
Group’s liquidity position on daily basis to
ensure availability of sufficient liquid funds. In
addition, the Group has maintained sufficient
stand-by banking and other facilities in order to
meet any contingency in its operations. The
management believes the Group’s working
capital is adequate to meet its financial
obligations.

(ii)

(iii)
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(iv) Operational Risk

v)

Operational risk is the risk of losses arising from
inadequate or failed internal processes, people,
systems or external events. The Group extends
operational risk management to cover potential
losses arising from legal and compliance
breaches. Operational risk is reduced and
controlled through establishing effective internal
controls, clear lines of responsibility, proper
segregation of duties and effective internal
reporting and contingency planning. It is our
corporate culture that the business and
operating line management are fully aware of
their responsibilities for managing the
operational risks of their business units on a
day-to-day basis. Independent monitoring and
reviews are conducted by the Compliance
Department and the Internal Audit Department,
which report regularly to the management and
the Audit Committee.

Others

Occurrence of any natural disaster or outbreak
of contagious diseases such as COVID-19
pandemic or SARS, could adversely affect the
Group’s business and operations. The Group
implements business continuity plans which
include “Work from Home”, “Flexible Working
Hours” and “Split-team Arrangements”; and
ensures all safety measures as required by the
Hong Kong SAR Government are fully
implemented.
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D. Internal Control

(1)

Operational Control

During the Year, the management analysed the
control environment, identified risks pertaining
thereto, and implemented various controls therein.

Approach taken: The management conducted
interviews with relevant staff members, reviewing
relevant documentation of the internal control
system and evaluating findings of any
deficiencies in the design of the Group’s internal
control system, providing recommendations for
improvement and assessing the effectiveness of
implementation of such recommendations, where
appropriate. The scope and findings of review on
the risk management and internal control are
reported to and reviewed by the Audit Committee
annually.

Information flow: The transparent information
flow alerts the management promptly of any
deviations. Benchmarking with historical
database and comparisons with the same also
act as a detecting device for spotting unusual
activities.

Procedure manuals and operational
guidelines: They are in place to safeguard the
assets against unauthorised use or disposition,
ensuring maintenance of proper accounting
records in compliance with the applicable laws,
rules and regulations for the provision of reliable
financial information for internal use and/or
external publication.

Management information system and
technology: Such use to control over the
business activities allows close tracking of
various inputs and outputs of the Group’s
business such as human resources, product
offerings, lending portfolio and customer
information. It also tracks audit trails in the
authorisation system, under which permissions
and responsibility of authorisation are clearly
identified and adequate records can be
maintained in the Systems.

Reports and variance analysis: Such reports
and analysis of each operating segment in the
upstream, midstream and downstream are
conducted on a regular basis such that the
performance of each operating segment can be
easily accessible.
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(2) Financial Controls

proper controls are in place for the recording of
complete, accurate and timely accounting and
management information;

annual budget and quarterly forecast on all
capital and revenue items are prepared and
approved by the management before being
adopted;

the management monitors the business
activities closely and reviews monthly financial
results of operations against budgets/forecast;

regular reports on revenue, trade receivables’
ageing and debtors’ ageing and internal
financial reports are prepared to the
management which give a balanced and
understandable assessment of the Group’s
financial performance;

monthly updates on internal financial statements
are provided to all Directors which give a
balanced and understandable assessment of
the Group’s performance, financial position and
prospects in sufficient details;

annual audit by external auditor is carried out to
ensure that the consolidated financial
statements are prepared in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles, the
Group’s accounting policies and the applicable
laws and regulations; and

daily available fund report is reviewed to
monitor the cash flows against budgets/
forecast.
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(3) Compliance Control

The following policies and procedures are in place to
safeguard the compliance control:

o Systems and Procedures on Disclosure of
Inside Information to ensure, with the
assistance of internal work team (if required),
that any material information which comes to
the knowledge of any one or more officers
should be promptly identified, assessed and
escalated, where appropriate, for the attention
of the Board. The Board shall make timely
decisions on disclosure, if necessary, and take
appropriate measures to preserve confidentiality
of inside information until proper dissemination
of the inside information;

o Policies and practices on compliance with
legal and regulatory requirements which shall
be reviewed and monitored regularly by the
Corporate Governance Committee as delegated
by the Board;

o CCT Compliance Committee is established to
monitor, control and regularly review connected
transactions and continuing connected
transactions of the Company and ensure proper
compliance with all relevant laws and
regulations and the Listing Rules and disclosure
requirements;

o Whistle-blowing policy for employees of the
Group to raise concerns, in confidence, about
possible improprieties in financial reporting,
internal control or other matters of the Group.
Such arrangement will be reviewed by the Audit
Committee which ensures that proper
arrangement is in place for fair and independent
investigation of the matters; and

o Anti-money Laundering and Counterterrorist
Financing Policy and Procedures is
established to set out the general framework for
combating crime against money laundering and
financing of terrorism. It provides guideline to
prevent the Group’s employees and clients/
customers/suppliers/vendors/contractors from
being misused for money laundering, terrorist
financing or other financial crime and has set
out some indications of potentially suspicious
transactions/activities for employees’ reference.
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E. Management Confirmation

The Board acknowledged that it had received a
confirmation from the management on the effectiveness of
the Systems of the Group. The Audit Committee and the
Board had reviewed the Systems and were not aware of
any significant issues that would have an adverse impact
on the effectiveness and adequacy of the Group’s
operational, financial and compliance areas of the
Systems.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company had established a shareholders’” communication
policy and the Board shall review it on a regular basis to ensure
its effectiveness. The Company communicates with the
Shareholders mainly in the following ways: (i) the holding of
annual general meeting (“AGM”) and special general meetings
(“SGM"), if any, which may be convened for specific purposes
which provide opportunities for the Shareholders to
communicate directly with the Board; (ii) the publication of
announcements, annual reports, interim reports and/or circulars
as required under the Listing Rules and press release providing
updated information of the Group; (iii) the availability of latest
information of the Group on the Company’s website at
https://www.EmperorCapital.com; (iv) the holding of press
conference(s) from time to time; and (v) meeting with investors
and analysts on a regular basis and participate investor road
show and sector conference.

There is regular dialogue with institutional Shareholders and
general presentations are made when financial results are
announced. Shareholders and investors are welcome to visit the
Company’'s website to raise enquiries through our Investor
Relations Department whose contact details are available on
the Company’s website and the “Corporate Information and Key
Dates” section of this report.

Separate resolutions are proposed at general meetings for
substantially separate issues, including the re-election of
retiring Directors. The Company’s notice to Shareholders for the
2020 AGM was sent to Shareholders at least 20 clear business
days before the meeting and notices of all other general
meetings are sent to Shareholders at least 10 clear business
days before the meetings.

Ms. Daisy Yeung who is deemed to be the Chairperson of the
Board, 2020 AGM and chairman/members of the Board
Committees and the external auditors had attended the 2020
AGM to answer questions from the Shareholders. With the
assistance of the Company Secretary, the Chairperson of the
meeting had explained the procedures for conducting a poll
voting during the meeting.
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DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company had adopted a written dividend policy setting out
the principles for the Board to determine appropriate amount of
dividend to be distributed. The Company intends to provide
Shareholders with regular interim and final dividends (as the
case may be) based on the earnings attribution to its
Shareholders after taking into consideration of the factors
stated in the policy, inter alia, (i) cash flow requirements for
business operations; (ii) cash available, financial liabilities and
capital commitment; (iii) market environment and challenges;
and (iv) future development and investment opportunities. The
declaration of dividends or recommendation on such payment
shall be subject to all applicable laws, rules and regulations
including but not limited to the Listing Rules, Companies
Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong), applicable
laws of Bermuda and the Bye-laws of the Company.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Set out below is a summary of certain rights of the
Shareholders as required to be disclosed pursuant to the CG
Code:

Right to Convene/Call General Meetings

Pursuant to the Bermuda Companies Act 1981 and Bye-laws of
the Company, Shareholder(s) holding at the date of the deposit
of the requisition not less than one-tenth (10%) of the paid-up
capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at general
meetings of the Company shall have the right to submit a
written requisition requiring a SGM to be called by the Board.
The written requisition (i) must state the object(s) of the
meeting, and (ii) must be signed by the requisitionists and
deposited at the principal place of business of the Company in
Hong Kong for the attention of the Company Secretary, and
may consist of several documents in like form, each signed by
one or more requisitionists. Such requisitions will be verified
with the Company’s Hong Kong Branch Share Registrar and
upon its confirmation that the requisition is proper and in order,
the Company Secretary will ask the Board to convene a SGM
by serving sufficient notice to all Shareholders. On the contrary,
if the requisition has been verified as not in order, the
requisitionists will be advised of this outcome and accordingly,
the SGM will not be convened as requested.
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If the Directors do not within 21 days from the date of the
deposit of a valid requisition proceed duly to convene a SGM
for a day not more than two months after the date of deposit of
a proper requisition, the requisitionists or any of them
representing more than one-half of the total voting rights of all of
them may themselves convene a SGM, but any SGM so
convened shall not be held after the expiration of 3 months from
the said date of deposit of the requisition. In addition, such
meeting convened by the requisitionists shall be convened in
the same manner, as nearly as possible, as that in which
meetings are to be convened by the Board.

Putting Forward Proposals at General Meetings

Pursuant to the Bermuda Companies Act 1981, either any
number of the registered Shareholders holding not less than
one-twentieth (5%) of the paid-up capital of the Company
carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the Company
(“Requisitionists”), or not less than 100 of such registered
Shareholders, can request the Company in writing to (a) give to
Shareholders entitled to receive notice of the next general
meeting notice of any resolution which may properly be moved
and is intended to be moved at that meeting; and (b) circulate
to Shareholders entitled to have notice of any general meeting
any statement of not more than 1,000 words with respect to the
matter referred to in any proposed resolution or the business to
be dealt with at that meeting. The requisition signed by all the
Requisitionists must be deposited at the principal place of
business of the Company in Hong Kong with a sum reasonably
sufficient to meet the Company’s relevant expenses and not
less than six weeks before the meeting in case of a requisition
requiring notice of a resolution or not less than one week before
the meeting in the case of any other requisition. Provided that
an AGM is called for a date six weeks or less after the
requisition has been deposited, such requisition though not
deposited within the time required shall be deemed to have
been properly deposited for the purposes thereof.

Proposing a Person for Election as a Director

The procedures for the Shareholders to propose a person for
election as a Director are available for viewing on the
Company’s website.

Enquires from Shareholders

Shareholders should direct their enquiries about their
shareholdings to the Company’s Hong Kong Branch Share
Registrar, Tricor Secretaries Limited. Other enquiries can be
directed to the Investor Relations Department of the Company
whose contact details are shown in “Corporate Information and
Key Dates” section of this Annual Report.
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CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There are no significant changes in the Company’s
constitutional documents during the Year.

AUDITOR’S INDEPENDENCE AND
REMUNERATION

The Audit Committee is mandated to review and monitor the
independence of the auditors to ensure objectivity and
effectiveness of the audit process of the financial statements in
accordance with applicable standards. Members of the Audit
Committee were of the view that the Company’s auditors,
Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu is independent and has
recommended the Board to re-appoint it as the Company’s
auditors at the 2021 AGM. During the Year, Messrs. Deloitte
Touche Tohmatsu has rendered audit services and certain non-
audit services to the Group and the remuneration paid/payable
to it by the Group is set out as follows:

Services rendered

FriZ AR %5

Audit services

ZHARH

Non-audit services
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Fees paid/payable
BN EBLER
HK$°000

FER

1,942
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
EMPEROR CAPITAL GROUP LIMITED

(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Emperor
Capital Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as “the Group”) set out on pages 65 to 189,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as
at 30 September 2020, and the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated statement of
changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the

year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as
at 30 September 2020, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group
in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.
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Key Audit Matters (continued)

Key audit matter

RARETSEE

RRETEERE(E)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EMzEtNEERRETSER

Expected Credit Loss (“ECL”) Model on loans and advances and accounts receivable from secured margin
clients (collectively referred to as the “Advances to Customers”)

BHEHMRBHUREREEAFREF RS BBR AEFBHN ) ERRBEREER(BRHEEEBR RN

We identified the impairment of Advances to Customers
(other than the impairment in stage 3) as a separate key
audit matter, arising from the application of the ECL
Model under HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” (“HKFRS
9”), due to the significant judgment and estimation made
by management to determine the ECL amount at the
reporting date.

BRI EARBEEMGRELEFSR e TAI([FEM
BREERESR DREMBBEHEEHREAMELATS
BFORE (R F = B2 RERR SN R A — B RS =T
S HIAREERE AN EAREERRSRRFTER
B EELERHE R AET -

As disclosed in note 4 to the consolidated financial
statements, the ECL measurement involves significant
management judgement and estimation, with the
involvement of the Group’s external specialist, in (i) the
selection of appropriate models and key inputs used in
the ECL model, including the probability of default (“PD")
and loss given default (“LGD"), (ii) the application of
multiple economic scenario in the ECL model and (iii) the
selection and use of reasonable and supportable
forward-looking information available without undue cost
or effort in the ECL model to estimate the future
movement of different economic drivers and how these
drivers will affect each other and the correlation with the
key inputs, including PD and LGD.

FINER B B 5 MR iR 4P IV FR - TREIE BB IRAT &5 RIA
TEEERESBEINIERMAEL 2 EAHE M ¢ (I)#
BAREMEEEERA 2GERALERE ABER (R
EOMERIENER)  (VEBEMEEEERATERZE
REBR  k(iVEBREEBEREATEEREREEAR
REIUEZ ANYOBERTAEMA RS2 E R ATHE
MRS MEF T REEHES R R 2 RREHUARZEFRE
AT EARF B RN A SR (BRE OB R EY
BB ERRE -

Our procedures in relation to the impairment of
Advances to Customers included:

BRI AR TP BN RERNTHERFEE

Understanding the Group’s established credit
risk policies and procedures for impairment
assessment in relation to the application of
ECL model under HKFRS 9, including model
set up and approval and selection and
application of assumptions and key inputs into
the model;

THREEERBEERRBRBREAERAEBMK
HERFFRIA NFAHEEBEEX A RIER

HEF BEEXNRTREL EERERM

ANEX I ERER N R AR

Understanding the key controls over ongoing

monitoring processes, including:

TREEERERENTIBER 85

(i)

the process of margin call procedures for
margin shortfall and actions taken by
management for those accounts
receivable from margin clients arising
from the business of dealing in securities
with margin calls;

REZ TRFETHNERRERZREFLE
EERKEESEEXBMBEENRESR
ZIERW A RE P RFARBITEIMNER

the process of periodic reviews for
identification of any indications of
deterioration of the creditability of borrowers
through searching of publicly available
information and any delinquency in loans or
interest repayment for loans and advances;
HERKBRERESARAGEELRETE
BRAGERC R REME RN EE
RHFR 2 TEHERRF
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Key Audit Matters (continued)

Key audit matter (continued)

RRETEE(E)

RRETEE(E)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter
(continued)

EMzEtNEERARETSE(E

Expected Credit Loss (“ECL”) Model on loans and advances and accounts receivable from secured margin
clients (collectively referred to as the “Advances to Customers”) (continued)

RUEEFRBYREREEAFREFRS CBROEFBH ) ERRBEEERE(RHEEFE KA (E)

The management further assesses whether there has
been a significant increase in credit risk (“SICR") for
exposures since initial recognition. If there has been a
SICR, the Group will measure the loss allowance based
on lifetime ECL rather than 12-month ECL. In assessing
whether the credit risk of an asset has significantly
increased, the Group takes into account qualitative and
quantitative, reasonable and supportable forward-looking
information available without undue cost or effort with
significant judgement involved.

ERELE - FHERI SRR EERRESBEELEN - fH
EERBBRZEN EEEHRE2HEHEERBEMIE12
EAEEEEEEHRRE N H—BEEZEER
BELBRZIENE EXEZREARETUVEA YA
BENEUNEEZABMARFEESEZENAEEEE
Ehr R REAAE -

The total gross amount of (i) loans and advances and (ii)
accounts receivable from secured margin clients under
stages 1 and 2 as at 30 September 2020 are
HK$2,673,654,000 and HK$1,267,346,000 less impairment
loss of HK$25,317,000 and HK$25,638,000 respectively.
Please see notes 21, 22 and 39 to the consolidated
financial statements.

F2020F9A30H ' B — KB EEIE TR EREBTUAK
(NEWBEERAFREFPERREST D 5/R2,673,654,000/% 7T
K21,267,346,00078 7T * 8 2 (B &5 18 73 51l /325,317,000 7T
%:25,638,000/& 7 - sm 2 BkR A M AN 21 - 22%39 -
We identified the impairment of Advances to Customers
at Stage 3 as a key audit matter due to the involvement
of significant management estimation in determining the
ECL amount.
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Assessing the reasonableness and appropriateness
of the management’'s judgement on staging
criteria for determining if SICR has occurred
(stage 1 or 2) or the financial asset is credit-
impaired (stage 3) and the basis for classification
of exposures into the 3 stages as required by
HKFRS 9 and examining supporting information
on a sample basis to assess the appropriateness
of the classification of loan exposures as at the
end of the reporting period;
AEEREEHETEAHREERRBREEN
(F—XF_BR)IHEESSEEERE
(B=PEER) MR ER 2RI LA R IR B 7B B 75 T 5 22 B
FOT PR E R o $8 7 = (B BR ) B AR E
HERSEMRBEN AR ZEFRER
ARHE RIS IR ERER S EH R E 1
Evaluating, together with our internal specialists, the
reasonableness and appropriateness of the ECL
models and assumptions, information multiple
economic scenarios and parameters used in the
model including establishing the forward-looking
factors, and the relationship between the forward-
looking factors and the key inputs, including PD and
LGD, in the ECL model to determine the impairment
loss of Advances to Customers in stage 1 or 2; and;
B MNABERFATEREEBHERN MR
FTAMRE  EX - ZRBEHEST L2 (25
EAREMERR)NERBERSE N RFTHTER
EEEFEBERANAELEREABRRENABE(S
REAOBXIENBR)NBE UEEE X
F_BEROMTPBRMREERE &
Assessing the competence and independence
of the third party specialists engaged by the
Group and their experience in conducting
similar ECL computation; and
HEEEEZRB I E=7ER N KB
Mg EETRUEREEBERAE &R &
Testing the accuracy and completeness of key
data sources applied in the ECL computation
on a sample basis by checking to the Group'’s
supporting information, the relevant loan files
and external data source, as applicable.
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Key Audit Matters (continued)

Key audit matter (continued)

RRETEE(E)

Impairment of Advances to Customers at Stage 3
REZERZEEFB5EE

In assessing the lifetime ECL on Advances to Customers
classified as stage 3, the Group performed the
assessment based on the Group’s historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to the
borrowers, general economic conditions at the reporting
date as well as the forecast of future conditions with
significant judgment involved. The Group also reviews
the value of the collateral received from the customers in
determining the impairment. The methodology and
assumptions used for estimating both the amount and
timing of future cash flows are reviewed regularly to
reduce any differences between loss estimates and
actual loss experience.

REHEDBAE=—RBROATFPEFRNEHAREEER
B BEXRERE SEEENBTEEBRLRETHG
WIZRERA R E A E - RS B EBH — R EACTFR
KARRTBRETHE  ERPREXF - BRETNE
EREREMNDWEPHERMEE - EFFRIREREN
TRNFBMANIERRRGETEREN  AEEEERG
AFEEREBRERNER -

As set out in notes 21, 22 and 39 to the consolidated
financial statements, the total gross amount as at 30
September 2020 of (i) loans and advances and (ii)
accounts receivable from secured margin clients
amounted to HK$3,904,722,000 and HK$3,499,512,000
respectively, of which HK$1,231,068,000 and
HK$2,232,166,000 respectively are classified as stage 3.

BANER A BTSRRI TE21 ~ 22 X 39FT# - 720209 A30H - (i)
ERMBFARNEREERITREFERESE A
3,904,722,0007% 7T }3,499,512,0005# 7T - E 11,231,068,000
BT 2,232,166,00078 707 B9 8 A5 = FEER -

Impairment allowances of HK$720,405,000 and
HK$1,698,367,000 have been provided in relation to (i)
loans and advances and (ii) accounts receivable from
secured margin clients under stage 3, respectively, as
disclosed in note 39 to the consolidated financial
statements.

PARAR & B A5 MR M EE 30PN R - ERLE = BIA TH()E
B (i) B AR R B P IR R (B A ) A
/%720,405,0007%8 7T % 1,698,367,000/8 7T ©

RRETEERE(E)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter
(continued)

EMzEtNRERARETSE(E

Our procedures in relation to the impairment of
Advances to Customers at stage 3 included those
covered in the above key audit matter related to
ECL model and the following additional procedures:

B BN E=ZERNAEFP BRI ZBERITHIE
FEE EXEERREEERREANBRETFHMN
BEE AL TIIEIMER

Corroborating and challenging management’s
assessment and key estimations used in
determining expectation of reasonably possible
outcomes on the recoverability of the loans to
borrowers against our understanding of the
situation and the industries of the borrowers or
guarantors and collateral, if any, from reading
public announcements and other externally
available information; and

RRIVEBER DS RSB B AR
NSRS RIEIR R (07 KR FT68AT 3
AR RS A AR
B3 A 2 A 5 SR TR AR A OBF £ R PR B 1
iR

Examining underlying documentation
supporting the management’s key estimations
used in determining the present value of the
estimated future cash flows, including the
historical repayment records and any
settlement subsequent to the end of the
reporting period, if any, and other information
available for the creditability of those
borrowers.
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Key Audit Matters (continued) BRETEEE

Key audit matter (continued) How our audit addressed the key audit matter
(continued)

HRRFESASFRE EMzEtNEERARETSE(E

Impairment of Advances to Customers at Stage 3 (continued)
REZERZEEFBFEEE)

- Examining the estimated future cash flows and
the fair value of collaterals together with our
own internal valuation specialists, where
appropriate, including:

- HEZRMBECHARFEERER —EREGETARKR
ERMERROAHEES ) B2

o Obtaining the appraisal reports and
assessing the competence and
independence of the third party
professional valuer and their experience
in conducting valuation of similar assets;

o EERFIEZBELHEE =S EXRMEERN
BENRIBI M R ERBLUEEETRE
EREER

° Assessing whether the selection of the
valuation methodology is appropriate for
the collateral; and

o HEMEMREENMEEIERTEE:
K

° Evaluating the appropriateness of key
inputs used in the valuation of the
collateral by independently checking to
the external data and publicly available
information.

o  EBBYREINNBEMAHAGSER:
AHREAmEEMARRBAREBREER
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Other Information

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report, but does not include the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we
conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Directors and Those Charged
with Governance for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group’s financial reporting process.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion solely to you, as a
body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies
Act, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of
this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal
control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

Emperor Capital Group Limited HEXFSEBEER DT
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B % B AR

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor's report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a
going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate
threats or safeguards applied.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B % AR

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of
the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should
not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the independent
auditor’s report is Eric Tong.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

18 December 2020
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
GEREREMEZEKER

For the year ended 30 September 2020 & Z=2020F9H30H IFF[E

2020 2019
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
B 5 FET FET

Revenue WA

Commission and fee income 4 & &R A 6 118,051 118,184
Interest income F.E WA 6 799,356 964,670
917,407 1,082,854
Other operating income EAth & I A 11,776 6,884
Impairment allowances, net of reversal J& {E & & © IR EE D 7 (1,327,345) (889,284)
Staff costs B TR 8 (62,138) (98,999)
Commission and fee expenses 4 M FEE H (43,927) (60,755)
Other expenses E 37 H 12 (65,038) (92,778)
Finance costs B 15 & 9 (110,399) (176,261)
Share of profit (loss) of an associate fE{h —EE:E R F) 2@ F(EE) 57 (1,880)
Loss before taxation B Fi A& 18 12 (679,607) (230,219)
Taxation 18 13 (10,140) (28,487)
Loss for the year attributable to owners of the Company (689,747) (258,706)
RARFEBEAEBEFERE

Other comprehensive expense Bt 2 EFH s

Item that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss:
HigngeEHEEEm AR -

Exchange differences arising on translation of foreign operations (166) -

R E BN EBREE CERZHE
Other comprehensive expense for the year FE Hith 2 (166) -

Total comprehensive expense for the year attributable to (689,913) (258,706)
owners of the Company

RARHEBANEEFELZERS AR
Loss per share SR EE

Basic A 15 HK(10.23) cents HK(3.84) cents
-l Al

Emperor Capital Group Limited HEZESEBEERD T
ANNUAL REPORT 2019/2020 % ¥R 65



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
B R R &R

At 30 September 2020 720204 9H30H

2020 2019
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
B 5 FET FET

Non-current assets 3 REEE

Property and equipment #3 & :& & 16 9,306
Right-of-use assets {f g & = 17 -
Intangible assets Ef & &E 18 -
Interest in an associate 7 — k& A Rl Z 19 -
Amount due from an associate f&U — L E N A 708 19 3,492 3,435
Other assets H & E 20 7,223 8,871
Loans and advances B KB 21 626,683 419,757
Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income 26 -
FREMPEEEEATEIIECEREE
Deferred tax assets EEFIBEE 23,036 5,618
690,817 446,987
Current assets B EE

Accounts receivable FEUZIEX 22 4,338,635 3,428,457
Loans and advances B3 & E# 21 2,532,317 2,651,785
Other debtors, deposits and prepayments 6,933 10,403
H i USRS - 2 & MIAN IR
Tax recoverable 7] B Y F I8 21,613 27,338
Pledged bank deposits — general accounts 23 160,000 160,000
EHEFRITER——REP
Bank balances and cash — segregated accounts 24 1,574,525 1,416,696
IRITAERRIRE —BURF
Bank balances and cash — general accounts 24 692,032 1,745,508
RITAEREIRE ——REP

9,326,055 9,440,187

Emperor Capital Group Limited HEXFSEBEER QA
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

B R R &

At 30 September 2020 20204 9H30H

Notes
i
Current liabilities B & &
Accounts payable EfTERX 25
Other creditors and accrued charges H b & BR Kk M BT &
Tax liabilities FHiH & &
Lease liabilites & & & 27
Short-term bank borrowings 2 #i$R171& 7k 28
Bonds issued B #1TEH 29
Net current assets B EEFE
Total assets less current liabilities #2& ERTE & &
Non-current liabilities 3F7 B & &
Lease liabilities HHE B & 27
Bonds issued B #1TEF 29
Net assets FEE
Capital and reserves EA K f# &
Share capital B 30

Reserves &

Total equity #5458

The consolidated financial statements on pages 65 to 189 were
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 18
December 2020 and are signed on its behalf by:

2020
HK$’000
FTERT

1,719,559
49,617
33,061
10,034

2,371,000

399,281
4,582,552
4,743,503
5,434,320

13,384

995,323
1,008,707
4,425,613

67,408

4,358,205

4,425,613

2019
HK$'000
THAT

1,564,292
127,879

34,150

231,173

626,904

2,684,398

6,855,789

7,302,776

2,186,640

2,186,640

5,116,136

67,408

5,048,728

5,116,136

£ EER20205F 128188 #1f K& 3% # T €]
FOE5E R F189B VEE
NNEBERREFTZHRE

g HEK wHT

DAISY YEUNG
B
DIRECTOR
EF

Emperor Capital Group Limited

CHOI SUK HING, LOUISA

ORI
DIRECTOR
EF

RERFEEBRLF
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
For the year ended 30 September 2020 & Z=2020F9H30H IFF[E

Attributable to owners of the Company

ARTRAE AR

Capital
Share Share Special contribution Translation Retained

capital premium reserve reserve reserve profits Total
Rx  R0EE  BHEE EXEARKE  RERE  RERN At
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$'000
TéR TEn Tén TEn TEn TER TEn

At 1 October 2018 742018510418 67,408 3,199,289 9,950 2,004 (27) 2,139,359 5,417,983

Loss and other comprehensive expense for the year - - - -

FEBRRAMAXAR

(258,706)  (258,706)

Dividend recognised as distribution %2 1E7 k2 & - - - - - (43,141) (43,141)
At 30 September 2019 78201994308 67,408 3,199,289 9,950 2,004 (27) 1837512 5116,136
HKFRS 16 adjustment (Note 2) - - - - - (610) (610)
BEMBREENE 16 BAR(HH2)

At 1 October 2019 (restated) 72019F 104 18 (L E5]) 67,408 3,199,289 9,950 2,004 (27) 1836902 5115526
Other comprehensive expense for the year - - - - (166) - (166)
FREMRERY

Loss for the year £E & - - - - - (689,747)  (689,747)
At 30 September 2020 72020694308 67,408 3,199,289 9,950 2,004 (193) 1147155 4425613

Special reserve represents the difference between the nominal 45 RIFEEIEAN D RIME A RC 31T L@ 2
value of the ordinary shares of the subsidiary of the Company in E{EEANARIRIER2007F4F28B 2 B S
issue and the nominal value of the shares issued by the Company 4t EE — KB R BT 2 RMH 2 mER
for acquisition of a subsidiary pursuant to a group reorganisation < Z=%8e

on 2 April 2007.

Capital contribution reserve represents the deemed contribution BAMAFEBIERABCBEFES TEHREE
arising from a fellow subsidiary waiving certain amount of EZ&MA—HRRXWBRSEEFMAZFKIE-
management fee in previous years.

Emperor Capital Group Limited #HEXFFEBEERAD
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
RERETRER

For the year ended 30 September 2020 & Z=2020F9H30H IFF[E

OPERATING ACTIVITIES &% 58
Loss before taxation B Fi Al E518
Adjustments for: F% :
Finance costs 8175 % A
Interest income F| EUZA
Depreciation of property and equipment ¥ N &5 2 &
Depreciation for right-of-use assets £ A& ETE
Share of (profit) loss of an associate fEfE —EE:E A E 2 CaFl) EiE

Impairment allowances, net of reversal Jil (B & - F1BR B [l

Operating cash flows before movements in working capital
LEESHPR I KLEHERE

(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable FEUBRZRZ (38 h0) 5
Decrease in other assets Efh & & 7 m 4
Increase in loans and advances BN #4210

Decrease in other debtors, deposits and prepayments
H i EUAR K - & RIEN I 2B

(Increase) decrease in bank balances and cash — segregated accounts

RITHER MRS —BURP 2 G )R

=

Increase (decrease) in accounts payable JEFBRF 2 &1 CE4>)

Decrease in other creditors and accrued charges

HAib e B M B B A 2R

Cash (used in) generated from operations (FAR) R E & 2R &
Hong Kong Profits Tax paid 2 &EF15F

PRC Tax paid B4/ BIfE

Canada income tax paid 2 & AFTER

Interest paid (excluding bond interest) B4 F| B (T B IEEHFE)

Interest received &Y Fl &

NET CASH (USED IN) GENERATED FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
(AR)RBEEEEB RS FH

Emperor Capital Group Limited

2020
HK$’000
TR

(679,607)

110,399
(799,356)
2,756
11,920
(57)

1,327,345
(26,600)

(1,907,985)
1,648
(416,996)

12,947

(157,829)

155,267

(16,336)

(2,355,884)

(22,813)
(109)
(13,095)

789,879
(1,602,022)

2019
HK$'000
F

(230,219)

176,261

(964,670)

2,771

1,880

889,284

(124,693)

1,572,477
449
(944,146)

19,722

225,604

(271,342)

(23,524)

454 547
(159,806)
(122)
(1,131)
(10,573)

964,670

1,247,685

REFFKRERRAF
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
RERETRER

For the year ended 30 September 2020 & Z=2020%F9H30H L F[E

2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FAT

INVESTING ACTIVITIES &RE&EZE
Purchase of property and equipment 38 & %)% I 5% (& (1,074) (4,696)
Proceeds from disposal of property and equipment &Y & & & 2 TS F7UE - 6
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES ARREEE 2 HE&FHE (1,074) (4,690)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES @& EE
Drawdown on bank borrowings #2EURTT &K 34,502,200 6,356,000
Repayment of bank borrowings E:&E1TE R (32,362,373) (6,585,052)
Proceeds from bonds issuance #1T{& 515708 - 1,000,000
Redemption of bonds issued f&[BI B 31 71&% (1,427,975) (971,500)
Bonds issuing cost paid BT {E#H 1T A = (9,438)
Interest paid on bonds issued & 23 1T{E%5 2 2145 & (150,361) (127,297)
Repayment of lease liabilities B EFHE A E (11,871) -
Dividend paid Eff% & — (43,141)
NET CASH GENERATED FROM (USED IN) FINANCING ACTIVITIES 549,620 (380,428)
RE(AR)MEZTBHZ2REFE
NET (DECREASE) INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (1,053,476) 862,467
ReERBESEEYM2CAD) B NFE
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 1,745,508 883,041
FIzRERASEEY
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE END OF THE YEAR 692,032 1,745,508
FRZESRASEEY
ANALYSIS OF THE BALANCES OF CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
ReRBREEEBYZ &R
Bank balances and cash — general accounts $R1T458 RIRE - —REEFP 692,032 1,745,508

EERETHMIDNE FEEH 2 RENE
& B R M EEB3 R -

Disclosure in relation to the changes in liabilities arising from
financing activities are detailed in note 33 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRME

For the year ended 30 September 2020 & Z2020%F9H30H L F[E

1.

General

Emperor Capital Group Limited (the “Company”) is
incorporated and registered as an exempted company with
limited liability under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda
(as amended) and acts as an investment holding company.
The immediate holding company is Emperor Capital Group
Holdings Limited (“Emperor Capital Holdings”), which is a
limited liability company incorporated in the British Virgin
Islands (the “BVI"). The ultimate holding company is Albert
Yeung Capital Holdings Limited, a limited liability company
incorporated in the BVI. The entire issued share capital of
Albert Yeung Capital Holdings Limited is, in turn, held by
CDM Trust & Board Services AG, being the trustee of a
private discretionary trust set up by Dr. Yeung Sau Shing,
Albert.

Shares of the Company have been listed on the Main Board
of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) since 24 April 2007. The addresses of the
registered office and principal place of business of the
Company are disclosed in the “Corporate Information and
Key Dates” section of the annual report.

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The
principal activities of the Company’s principal subsidiaries
are set out in note 37.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollar (“HK$"), which is also the functional currency of
the Company.

During the current year, referral fee expenses of
HK$6,886,000 (2019: HK$16,072,000) were regrouped from
"‘other expenses" to "commission and fee expenses" in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income. The comparatives figures had been
regrouped to conform with the current year presentation.
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) REBREZES( B E A
1M 2 AR AT o EARIERA
AAGXNEFIERBRAT  RNEB
BRESFMK L ZERAGE - HXK
BAHIERBRAR 2B BITRAS
BERBEIRL —BARRARBERLR
5L ACDM Trust & Board Services AG
Ao

KRR Z D BE2007F4 A24B £ B2 4®E
BERBMERIFAERRAB([BRZA])
FREM - ARRFMPRERELEEE
EMEEENFRIAFEMREEHA
Hi|—ffe

RRTHERREER AR - AAREE
B AR 2 EBRBEHNMIFEST ©

e BHmRRIIAET(EIT]) 25
HINRARB 2N G -

RARFEEZ R 6,886,000/ 7T (20194
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BEhkHEt2EKRERANBIHMS
BB EEHeRFEESH -

HEBEBRFECEHDANTAEAREE L
A o

Emperor Capital Group Limited HEZESEBEERD T

ANNUAL REPORT 2019/2020 4 #R

71



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MWK

For the year ended 30 September 2020 & Z=2020%F9H30H L F[E

2. Application of New and Amendments To
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”)

New and Amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year

The Group has applied the following new and amendments to
HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”) for the first time in the current year
which are relevant to the Group:

HKFRS 16 Leases

Amendments to HKFRS 9 Prepayment Features with
Negative Compensation

Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2015 — 2017 Cycle

Except as described below, the application of the new and
amendments to HKFRSs in the current year has had no material
impact on the Group’s financial performance and positions for
the current and prior years and/or on the disclosures set out in
these consolidated financial statements.

HKFRS 16 “Leases”

The Group has applied HKFRS 16 for the first time in the
current year. HKFRS 16 superseded HKAS 17 “Leases”
(“HKAS 17"), and the related interpretations.

Accounting policies resulting from application of HKFRS 16
are disclosed in note 3.

Definition of a lease

The Group has elected the practical expedient to apply
HKFRS 16 to contracts that were previously identified as
leases applying HKAS 17 and HK(IFRIC) - Int 4 “Determining
whether an Arrangement contains a Lease” and not apply
this standard to contracts that were not previously identified
as containing a lease. Therefore, the Group has not
reassessed contracts which already existed prior to the date
of initial application.

For contracts entered into or modified on or after 1 October
2019, the Group applies the definition of a lease in
accordance with the requirements set out in HKFRS 16 in
assessing whether a contract contains a lease.

ol
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRME

For the year ended 30 September 2020 & Z2020%F9H30H L F[E

2.

Application of New and Amendments To
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”) (continued)

HKFRS 16 “Leases” (continued)

As a lessee

The Group has applied HKFRS 16 retrospectively with the
cumulative effect recognised at the date of initial application,
1 October 2019.

As at 1 October 2019, the Group recognised additional lease
liabilities and measured right-of-use assets at the carrying
amounts as if HKFRS 16 had been applied since
commencement dates, but discounted using the incremental
borrowing rates of the relevant group entities at the date of
initial application by applying HKFRS 16.C8(b)(i) transition.
Any difference at the date of initial application is recognised
in the opening retained profits and comparative information
has not been restated.

When applying the modified retrospective approach under
HKFRS 16 at transition, the Group applied the following
practical expedients to leases previously classified as
operating leases under HKAS 17, on lease-by-lease basis, to
the extent relevant to the respective lease contracts:

i relied on the assessment of whether leases are onerous
by applying HKAS 37 “Provisions, Contingent Liabilities
and Contingent Assets” as an alternative of impairment
review;

ii. excluded initial direct costs from measuring the right-of-
use assets at the date of initial application; and

ii. applied a single discount rate to a portfolio of leases
with a similar remaining terms for similar class of
underlying assets in similar economic environment.
Specifically, discount rate for certain leases of
properties by regions was determined on a portfolio
basis.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MWK

For the year ended 30 September 2020 & Z=2020%F9H30H L F[E

2. Application of New and Amendments To 2. FEAFITRKETEBMKR
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards HEN(EBNBREER])
(“HKFRSs”) (continued) (&

HKFRS 16 “Leases” (continued) ERMBREENE165HE
(%)
As a lessee (continued) ERAMAN (&
When recognising the lease liabilities for leases previously RERERIDEAKEHEZHE T
classified as operating leases, the Group has applied EgER AEEERERERBHE
incremental borrowing rates at the date of initial application. AEEEN R -FrERZAEAES
The lessee’s incremental borrowing rate applied is 3%. EENRAE3Y% o
At
1 October 2019
i
2019%1081H
HK$’000
THET
Operating lease commitments disclosed as at 30 September 2019 18,371
20195F9 A30 B #KFE v I L M E A4
Lease liabilities discounted at relevant incremental borrowing rates 17,817

AR EERNEMR BEAE

Less: Adjustments for contracts reassessed base on definition of lease under HKFRS 16 (4,189)
W ARRBE BV EREEAEIGREBE NHECEREFT T H2EL
Lease liabilities as at 1 October 2019 A2019F10A1H 2 HEAE 13,628

Analysed as: DHTA :

Current gl 8,877
Non-current FEREN =5 4,751
13,628

ol

Emperor Capital Group Limited #HEXFFEBEERAD
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR BRRHE

For the year ended 30 September 2020 & Z2020%F9H30H L F[E

2.

Application of New and Amendments To 2. EAFITRKETEBUKR

Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards HEN(EBNBREER])

(“HKFRSs”) (continued) (#&

HKFRS 16 “Leases” (continued) ERMBREENE165HE
(#%&)

As a lessee (continued) EBABEA ()

The carrying amount of right-of-use assets as at 1 October R20199F10A1B  EREEEZRE

2019 comprises the following: BEREUNTEHE :

Right-of-
use assets

EREEE

HK$’000
TR

Right-of-use assets recognised upon application of HKFRS 16 13,018
RERBEEVBEMELAZ 1R ERRAZERAEEE

By class: %485 :

Leasehold land and building FA & + ity R 1EF 13,018
Note: Wi
Before the application of HKFRS 16, the Group considered RIERE A RELERE1695 NER
refundable rental deposits paid as rights and obligations under BENRERERSBIEERAEE2E
leases to which HKAS 17 applied. Based on the definition of lease BIE17 2 HHEB T2 EMNEEE - BES
payments under HKFRS 16, such deposits are not payments EE RS ERF16RBNTHENRZE
relating to the right to use of the underlying assets and were E ZERSVIFHMBEEETHEEESR
adjusted to reflect the discounting effect at transition. The M URFHARIARMIEE 7B ZE o )N
application of the discounting effect on 1 October 2019 has no 2019F10 A1 HfE AL IR L £ i ¥ AR 2 F
material impact on the Group’s financial position and performance RERERBES A EREELNE169H
at the initial application of HKFRS 16. Accordingly, there is no BRI R RIDEKE R E - F It - Wi
adjustment on the opening statement of financial position and MEA A SRR R RS S RIEL A

statement of changes in equity.

Emperor Capital Group Limited HEZESEBEERD T
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MWK

For the year ended 30 September 2020 & Z=2020%F9H30H L F[E

2. Application of New and Amendments To 2. FEAFITRKETEBMKR
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards HEA( BB BREER])
(“HKFRSs”) (continued) (&

HKFRS 16 “Leases” (continued) EBUBHREENFE165HE
(#%&)

As a lessee (continued) 1EEERHEAN(E

The following adjustments were made to the amounts LA A% 2019F10 A1 BB BB OR

recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position RANERZEBAERZFHE T %

at 1 October 2019. Line items that were not affected by the L E BB VERIEEN -

changes have not been included.

Carrying

Carrying amounts
amounts under
previously HKFRS 16
reported at at 1 October
30 September 2020
2019 ERMBHRE

KRR ER EAIE165RE T
20194 #2020
9H30H2Z  Adjustments 108182
AREE Fiiik4 AREE

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BT BT BT

Non-current Assets JEiBI & E

Right-of-use assets i A& E - 13,018 13,018
Current Liabilities i B & &

Lease liabilities HE & & - 8,877 8,877
Non-current Liabilities B & &

Lease liabilities THE & & - 4,751 4,751

Capital and Reserves &4 f#{&

Reserves f# & 5,048,728 (610) 5,048,118
Note: For the purpose of reporting cash flows from operating BifeF - s AR S B E2020F9 A30H
activities under indirect method for the year ended 30 IFEZRETHREREMS &
September 2020, movements in working capital have been BESZEHOBRE L XEEZR
computed based on opening consolidated statement of 2019F 10 A1 8 Z Ei¥4R & B AR
financial position as at 1 October 2019 as disclosed above. Rit&E o

Emperor Capital Group Limited #HEXFFEBEERAD
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR BRRHE

For the year ended 30 September 2020 & Z=2020F9H30H IFF[E

2. Application of New and Amendments To
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”) (continued)

New and amendments to standards and
interpretations that have been issued but not yet

effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and
amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued but are not

yet effective:

HKFRS 17

Amendment to HKFRS 16
Amendments to HKFRS 3
Amendments to HKFRS 3

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 1
and HKAS 8

Amendments to HKAS 16

Amendments to HKAS 37

Amendments to HKFRS 9,
HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7

Amendments to HKFRS 9,
HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7,
HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16

Amendments to HKFRSs

Insurance Contracts and
the related amendments'’

COVID-19-Related Rent
Concessions®

Definition of a Business?

Reference to the Conceptual
Framework®*

Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current and
related amendments to Hong
Kong Interpretation 5 (2020)¢

Definition of Material*

Property, Plant and
Equipment — Proceeds before
Intended Use*

Onerous Contracts — Cost of
Fulfilling a Contract*

Interest Rate Benchmark
Reform — Phase 18

Interest Rate Benchmark
Reform — Phase 2°

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2018 — 20204

FER#ET REERT B R BH
EEA(ERMBREED )

(&

© 28 5 B [ R 4 2 #TR] R A4S

ATEAIR 2

AEBEWEEFEMA T BEMERK
EMZHR] R ERT BB owELE

Al :

BB mEED
175

EBE RS
165 2B
EBE SRS
EE A
EBR KRS ED
LA TV
EESHELE 1SR
2R

B eS|
1 RASe LR
EX LA N

B g
F16F B A

BB g EL
BITHZIERT R
ERTBREEL
FO5 BB ER
FE39% L ABIE
WEERETH 2
CHES
BRI R
Fo% BEGHEL
EIFREBHK
REERETH
BRI R R
FAFREAUBERE
EBFE165% 2 ERTA
EERERE
b ([jvg
CHEN

RBANRER
CHE

2019B M RER
HEESER

E¥BITR

BSERESl

BRBEIBARE
FIEREAR
EEREBES
(20205 )2
BRERTE

BAZTEE!

R - REREA

ZFrRRE
BEAH - BT

—RK A
MR BN -

A5 4R Eng

SRR

MEREERE -
FMEERC

BB SRS LA
20185 %
2020F 2 F 2
B
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MWK

For the year ended 30 September 2020 & Z=2020F9H30H IFF[E

2. Application of New and Amendments To
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”) (continued)

New and amendments to standards and
interpretations that have been issued but not yet
effective (continued)

1

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2023

Effective for business combinations and asset acquisitions
for which the acquisition date is on or after the beginning of
the first annual period beginning on or after 1 January 2020

(4

8 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2020

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2022

5 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2021

6 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 June
2020

In addition to the above new and amendments to HKFRSs, a
revised Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting was
issued in 2019. Its consequential amendments, the
Amendments to References to the Conceptual Framework in
HKFRS Standards, will be effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2020.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application
of all new and amendments to HKFRSs and Interpretation will
have no material impact on the consolidated financial
statements in the foreseeable future.

Emperor Capital Group Limited HEXFSEBEAER QT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRME

For the year ended 30 September 2020 & Z2020%F9H30H L F[E

3.

Significant Accounting Policies

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In addition,
the consolidated financial statements include applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Listing Rules”) and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis except for certain financial
instruments that are measured at fair value at the end of each
reporting period, as explained in the accounting policies set
out below. Historical cost is generally based on the fair value
of the consideration given in exchange for goods and
services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date, regardless of
whether that price is directly observable or estimated using
another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of an
asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants
would take those characteristics into account when pricing
the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value for
measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these
consolidated financial statements is determined on such a
basis, except for share-based payment transactions that are
within the scope of HKFRS 2 “Share-based Payment”, leasing
transactions that are accounted for in accordance with
HKFRS 16 (since 1 October 2019) or HKAS 17 (before
application of HKFRS 16), and value in use in HKAS 36
“Impairment of Assets”.

3.

EXRERTEE

RAEMBHRRIIREE LSS AER
2 EET B ME LR - UL - 47
BVBBRERBATEHARIMERR
AlERF EMRRI EHRA D REE
REMEPIFTRE 2 BREEER -

BREREMRIEZAFHEFEZSE TS
BMTAEIN SRAEPBmMRIRE L RAE
ERB(RT XA 2 S BER DA
B BELERA—RERARBER R
RIS RBZAFE

AFEATSREERTEAHRESF
TP L EEER I EZEAER
BB THRZEREREES
WA SR FERARS —BEERAGTF
SEENBBEZATER AEEEE
ThE2HEEETEARAZEERE
BETEENBEER EEXARBRE
B EZEGREVBRERPIETERS
SWERG ATFEHELER EFU
TEE BB ISR EERIFE 25 [ AR
DAEERZNZHIBEARNZ ARG BE
W25 REEBM RS ER
F£1655( B2019F10 A1 & ) s F
S ERFE17TR(REREBMBHRE
ERF16HA) ARZHERSGURSE
BERTERE36CTE [ EERE] R 2fE
FR{EERR SN o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MWK

For the year ended 30 September 2020 & Z=2020%F9H30H L F[E

3.

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on
the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements
are observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair
value measurement in its entirety, which are described as
follows:

° Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity
can access at the measurement date;

° Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

° Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and entities controlled
by the Company (and its subsidiaries). Control is achieved
when the Company:

° has power over the investee;

° is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

° has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if
facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to
one or more of the three elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loss
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses
of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income from the date the Group gains
control until the date when the Group ceases to control the
subsidiary.

Emperor Capital Group Limited HEXFSEBEAER QT
ANNUAL REPORT 2019/2020 £ #k
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRME

For the year ended 30 September 2020 & Z2020%F9H30H L F[E

3.

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests (if any). Total comprehensive income of
subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Company and
to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies
in line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of
the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Interest in an associate

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant
influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in
the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee
but is not control or joint control over those policies.

The results and assets and liabilities of associate are
incorporated in these consolidated financial statements using
the equity method of accounting. The financial statements of
associate used for equity accounting purposes are prepared
using uniform accounting policies as those of the Group for
like transactions and events in similar circumstances. Under
the equity method, an investment in an associate is initially
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position
at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group's
share of the profit or loss and other comprehensive income of
the associate. When the Group’s share of losses of associate
exceeds the Group’s interest in that associate (which
includes any long-term interests that, in substance, form part
of the Group’s net investment in the associate), the Group
discontinues recognising its share of further losses.
Additional losses are recognised only to the extent that the
Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made
payments on behalf of that associate.

An investment in an associate is accounted for using the
equity method from the date on which the investee becomes
an associate. On acquisition of the investment in an
associate, any excess of the cost of the investment over the
Group’s share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets
and liabilities of the investee is recognised as goodwill, which
is included within the carrying amount of the investment. Any
excess of the Group’s share of the net fair value of the
identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of the
investment, after reassessment, is recognised immediately in
profit or loss in the period in which the investment is
acquired.

3.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MWK

For the year ended 30 September 2020 & Z=2020%F9H30H L F[E

3.

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Interest in an associate (continued)

The Group assesses whether there is an objective evidence
that the interest in an associate may be impaired. When any
objective evidence exists, the entire carrying amount of the
investment (including goodwill) is tested for impairment in
accordance with HKAS 36 as a single asset by comparing its
recoverable amount (higher of value in use and fair value less
costs of disposal) with its carrying amount. Any impairment
loss recognised forms part of the carrying amount of the
investment. Any reversal of that impairment loss is
recognised in accordance with HKAS 36 to the extent that the
recoverable amount of the investment subsequently
increases.

When the Group ceases to have significant influence over an
associate, it is accounted for as a disposal of the entire
interest in the investee with a resulting gain or loss being
recognised in profit or loss. When the Group retains an
interest in the former associate and the retained interest is a
financial asset within the scope of HKFRS 9, the Group
measures the retained interest at fair value at that date and
the fair value is regarded as its fair value on initial
recognition. The difference between the carrying amount of
the associate at the date the equity method was
discontinued, and the fair value of any retained interest and
any proceeds from disposing of the relevant interest in the
associate is included in the determination of the gain or loss
on disposal of the associate. In addition, the Group accounts
for all amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
income in relation to that associate on the same basis as
would be required if that associate had directly disposed of
the related assets or liabilities. Therefore, if a gain or loss
previously recognised in other comprehensive income by that
associate would be reclassified to profit or loss on the
disposal of the related assets or liabilities, the Group
reclassifies the gain or loss from equity to profit or loss (as a
reclassification adjustment) upon disposal of the relevant
associate.

The Group continues to use the equity method when an
investment in an associate becomes an investment in a joint
venture or an investment in a joint venture becomes an
investment in an associate. There is no remeasurement to fair
value upon such changes in ownership interests.

Emperor Capital Group Limited HEXFSEBEAER QT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRME

For the year ended 30 September 2020 & Z2020%F9H30H L F[E

3.

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Interest in an associate (continued)

When the Group reduces its ownership interest in an
associate but the Group continues to use the equity method,
the Group reclassifies to profit or loss the proportion of the
gain or loss that had previously been recognised in other
comprehensive income relating to that reduction in ownership
interest if that gain or loss would be reclassified to profit or
loss on the disposal of the related assets or liabilities.

When a group entity transacts with an associate of the Group,
profits and losses resulting from the transactions with the
associate are recognised in the Group’s consolidated
financial statements only to the extent of interests in the
associate that are not related to the Group.

Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a performance
obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of the goods or
services underlying the particular performance obligation is
transferred to the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or service (or a
bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a series of
distinct goods or services that are substantially the same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised
over time by reference to the progress towards complete
satisfaction of the relevant performance obligation if one of
the following criteria is met:

o the customer simultaneously receives and consumes
the benefits provided by the Group’s performance as
the Group performs;

° the Group’s performance creates or enhances an asset
that the customer controls as the Group performs; or

° the Group’s performance does not create an asset with
an alternative use to the Group and the Group has an
enforceable right to payment for performance
completed to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when the
customer obtains control of the distinct good or service.

A contract asset represents the Group'’s right to consideration
in exchange for goods or services that the Group has
transferred to a customer that is not yet unconditional. It is
assessed for impairment in accordance with HKFRS 9. In
contrast, a receivable represents the Group’s unconditional
right to consideration, i.e. only the passage of time is
required before payment of that consideration is due.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MWK

For the year ended 30 September 2020 & Z=2020%F9H30H L F[E

3.

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers
(continued)

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation to
transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Group
has received consideration (or an amount of consideration is
due) from the customer.

A contract asset and a contract liabilities relating to the same
contract are accounted for and presented on a net basis.

Variable consideration

For contracts that contain variable consideration, such as
sponsoring service fee and performance fee, the Group
estimates the amount of consideration to which it will be
entitled using the most likely amount, which better predicts
the amount of consideration to which the Group will be
entitled.

The estimated amount of variable consideration is included in
the transaction price only to the extent that it is highly
probable that such an inclusion will not result in a significant
revenue reversal in the future when the uncertainty
associated with the variable consideration is subsequently
resolved.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group updates the
estimated transaction price (including updating its
assessment of whether an estimate of variable consideration
is constrained) to represent faithfully the circumstances
present at the end of the reporting period and the changes in
circumstances during the reporting period.

Description of the Group’s performance obligation of main
source of income under the scope of HKFRS 15 are as
follows:

Brokerage

The Group provides broking and dealing services for
securities, futures and options contracts. Commission income
is recognised at a point in time on the execution date of the
trades at a certain percentage of the transaction value of the
trades executed. The Group provides custodian and handling
services for securities, futures and options customer
accounts. Fee income is recognised when the transaction is
executed and service is completed (i.e. at a point in time),
except for custodian service fee which is recognised over
time.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRME

For the year ended 30 September 2020 & Z2020%F9H30H L F[E

3.

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers
(continued)

Corporate finance

The Group provides placing, underwriting or sub-underwriting
services to customers for their fund raising activities in equity
and debt capital markets. Revenue is recognised when the
relevant placing, underwriting, subunderwriting are
completed. Accordingly, the revenue is recognised at a point
in time.

The Group also provides sponsoring services to clients for
their fund raising activities and corporate advisory services to
corporate clients for their corporate actions. The Group
considers that all the services promised in a particular
contract of being a sponsor or corporate advisor are
interdependent and interrelated and should be therefore
accounted for as a single performance obligation. As there is
enforceable right to payment for the Group for the
performance of services completed up to date based on the
contracts with customers regarding sponsor or corporate
advisory services, the revenue is recognised over time based
on the stage of completion of the contract, the services
transferred to customers up to date.

Asset management

The Group provides asset management services to
customers. The customers simultaneously receives and
consumes the benefit provided by the Group, hence the
revenue is recognised as a performance obligation satisfied
over time. Asset management fee income is charged at a
fixed percentage per month of the net asset value of the
managed accounts under management of the Group.

The Group is also entitled to a performance fee when there is
a positive performance for the relevant performance period
and it is recognised at the end of the relevant performance
period, when it is highly probable that a significant reversal in
the amount of cumulative revenue recognised will not occur
when the uncertainty associated with the variable
consideration is subsequently resolved.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRME

For the year ended 30 September 2020 # Z£2020F9A308 It F/E

3.

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Leases

Definition of a lease (upon application of HKFRS 16 in
accordance with transitions in note 2)

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the
right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of
time in exchange for consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified or arising from
business combinations on or after the date of initial
application, the Group assesses whether a contract is or
contains a lease based on the definition under HKFRS 16 at
inception, modification date or acquisition date, as
appropriate. Such contract will not be reassessed unless the
terms and conditions of the contract are subsequently
changed.

The Group as a lessee (upon application of HKFRS 16 in
accordance with transitions in note 2)

Allocation of consideration to components of a contract

For a contract that contains a lease component and one or
more additional lease or non-lease components, the Group
allocates the consideration in the contract to each lease
component on the basis of the relative stand-alone price of
the lease component and the aggregate stand-alone price of
the non-lease components.

Non-lease components are separated from lease component
on the basis of their relative stand-alone prices.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to leases of leased properties and machinery and
equipment that have a lease term of 12 months or less from
the commencement date and do not contain a purchase
option. It also applies the recognition exemption for lease of
low-value assets. Lease payments on short-term leases and
leases of low-value assets are recognised as expense on a
straight-line basis or another systematic basis over the lease
term.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRME

For the year ended 30 September 2020 & Z2020%F9H30H L F[E

3.

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Leases (continued)

The Group as a lessee (upon application of HKFRS 16 in
accordance with transitions in note 2) (continued)

Right-of-use assets
The cost of right-of-use asset includes:

° the amount of the initial measurement of the lease
liability;

° any lease payments made at or before the commencement
date, less any lease incentives received;

o any initial direct costs incurred by the Group;

o and an estimate of costs to be incurred by the Group in
dismantling and removing the underlying assets,
restoring the site on which it is located or restoring the
underlying asset to the condition required by the terms
and conditions of the lease.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any
remeasurement of lease liabilities. Right-of-use assets are
depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of its
estimated useful life and the lease term.

The Group presents right-of-use assets as a separate line
item on the consolidated statement of financial position.

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted under HKFRS
9 “Financial Instruments” (“HKFRS 9”) and initially measured
at fair value. Adjustments to fair value at initial recognition are
considered as additional lease payments and included in the
cost of right-of-use assets.

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group recognises
and measures the lease liability at the present value of lease
payments that are unpaid at that date. In calculating the
present value of lease payments, the Group uses the
incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement date
if the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily
determinable.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MWK

For the year ended 30 September 2020 & Z=2020%F9H30H L F[E

3. Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 3.

Leases (continued)

The Group as a lessee (upon application of HKFRS 16 in
accordance with transitions in note 2) (continued)

Lease liabilities (continued)
The lease payments include:

° fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments)
less any lease incentives receivable;

° variable lease payments that depend on an index or a
rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at the
commencement date;

° amounts expected to be payable by the Group under
residual value guarantees;

° the exercise price of a purchase option if the Group is
reasonably certain to exercise the option; and

U payments of penalties for terminating a lease, if the
lease term reflects the Group exercising an option to
terminate the lease.

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are adjusted
by interest accretion and lease payments.

The Group remeasures lease liabilities (and makes a
corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-use assets)
whenever:

° the lease term has changed or there is a change in the
assessment of exercise of a purchase option, in which
case the related lease liability is remeasured by
discounting the revised lease payments using a revised
discount rate at the date of reassessment.

o the lease payments change due to changes in market
rental rates following a market rent review/expected
payment under a guaranteed residual value, in which
cases the related lease liability is remeasured by
discounting the revised lease payments using the initial
discount rate.

The Group presents lease liabilities as a separate line item on
the consolidated statement of financial position.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRME

For the year ended 30 September 2020 & Z2020%F9H30H L F[E

3.

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Leases (continued)

The Group as a lessee (upon application of HKFRS 16 in
accordance with transitions in note 2) (continued)

Lease modifications

The Group accounts for a lease modification as a separate
lease if:

° the modification increases the scope of the lease by
adding the right to use one or more underlying assets;
and

° the consideration for the leases increases by an amount
commensurate with the stand-alone price for the
increase in scope and any appropriate adjustments to
that stand-alone price to reflect the circumstances of
the particular contract.

For a lease modification that is not accounted for as a
separate lease, the Group remeasures the lease liability
based on the lease term of the modified lease by discounting
the revised lease payments using a revised discount rate at
the effective date of the modification.

The Group accounts for the remeasurement of lease liabilities
and lease incentives from lessor by making corresponding
adjustments to the relevant right-of-use asset. When the
modified contract contains a lease component and one or
more additional lease or non-lease components, the Group
allocates the consideration in the modified contract to each
lease component on the basis of the relative stand-alone
price of the lease component and the aggregate stand-alone
price of the non-lease components.

The Group as a lessee (prior to 1 October 2019)

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

Assets held under finance leases are recognised as assets of
the Group at their fair value at the inception of the lease or, if
lower, at the present value of the minimum lease payments.
The corresponding liability to the lessor is included in the
consolidated statement of financial position as a finance
lease obligation.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MWK

For the year ended 30 September 2020 & Z=2020%F9H30H L F[E

3.

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

The Group as a lessee (prior to 1 October 2019)
(continued)

Lease payments are apportioned between finance expenses
and reduction of the lease obligation so as to achieve a
constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the
liability. Finance expenses are recognised immediately in
profit or loss, unless they are directly attributable to qualifying
assets, in which case they are capitalised in accordance with
the Group’s general policy on borrowing costs (see the
accounting policy below). Contingent rentals are recognised
as expenses in the periods in which they are incurred.

Operating lease payments, including the cost of acquiring
land held under operating leases, are recognised as an
expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
Contingent rentals arising under operating leases are
recognised as an expense in the period in which they are
incurred.

Lease incentives relating to operating leases are considered
as integral part of lease payments, the aggregate benefit of
incentives is recognised as a reduction of rental expense on
a straight-line basis.

Property and equipment

Property and equipment are stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of items
of property and equipment less their residual values over
their estimated useful lives, using the straight-line method.
The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation
method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period,
with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a
prospective basis.

An item of property and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss
arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property
and equipment is determined as the difference between the
sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is
recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRME

For the year ended 30 September 2020 & Z2020%F9H30H L F[E

3.

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in the
respective functional currency (i.e. the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates)
at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the
transactions. At the end of the reporting period, monetary
items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of the
Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) using exchange rates
prevailing at the end of each reporting period. Income and
expenses items are translated at the average exchange rates
for the year. Exchange differences arising, if any, are
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated
in equity under the heading of translation reserve.

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is, a disposal of
the Group's entire interest in a foreign operation, or a
disposal involving loss of control over a subsidiary that
includes a foreign operation, or a partial disposal of an
interest in an associate that includes a foreign operation of
which the retained interest becomes a financial asset), all of
the exchange differences accumulated in equity in respect of
that operation attributable to the owners of the Company are
reclassified to profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRME

For the year ended 30 September 2020 # Z£2020F9A308 It F/E

3.

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

Share options granted to directors and employees

Equity-settled share-based payments to employees and
others providing similar services are measured at the fair
value of the equity instruments at the grant date.

The fair value of the equity-settled share-based payments
determined at the grant date without taking into consideration
all non-market vesting conditions is expensed on a straight-
line basis over the vesting period, based on the Group's
estimate of equity instruments that will eventually vest, with a
corresponding increase in equity (share-based payments
reserve). At the end of each reporting period, the Group
revises its estimate of the number of equity instruments
expected to vest based on assessment of all relevant non-
market vesting conditions. The impact of the revision of the
original estimates, if any, is recognised in profit or loss such
that the cumulative expense reflects the revised estimate,
with a corresponding adjustment to the share-based
payments reserve.

For share options that vest immediately at the date of grant,
the fair value of the share options granted is expensed
immediately to profit or loss.

When share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share options reserve will be transferred to
share premium. When the share options are forfeited after the
vesting date or are still not exercised at the expiry date, the
amount previously recognised in share options reserve will be
transferred to retained profits.

Employment benefit

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans are
recognised as an expense when employees have rendered
service entitling them to the contributions.

Bonus plans

The Group recognises a liability and an expense for bonuses
and profit-sharing, where appropriate, based on approved
formulas that take into consideration the profit attributable to
the Group after certain adjustments. The Group recognises a
provision where contractually obliged or where there is a past
practice that has created a constructive obligation.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRME

For the year ended 30 September 2020 & Z2020%F9H30H L F[E

3.

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Employment benefit (continued)

All other short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid as
and when employees rendered the services. All short-term
employee benefits are recognised as an expense unless
another HKFRS requires or permits the inclusion of the
benefit in the cost of an asset. A liability is recognised for
benefits accruing to employees (such as wages and salaries,
and annual leave) after deducting any amount already paid.

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with the
conditions attaching to them and that the grants will be
received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on a
systematic basis over the periods in which the Group
recognises as expenses the related costs for which the
grants are intended to compensate. Specifically, government
grants whose primary condition is that the Group should
purchase, construct or otherwise acquire non-current assets
are recognised as a deduction from the carrying amount of
the relevant asset in the consolidated statement of financial
position and transferred to profit or loss on a systematic and
rational basis over the useful lives of the related assets.

Government grants related to income that are receivable as
compensation for expenses or losses already incurred or for
the purpose of giving immediate financial support to the
Group with no future related costs are recognised in profit or
loss in the period in which they become receivable. Such
grants are presented under “other income”.

The benefit of a government loan at a below-market rate of
interest is treated as a government grant, measured as the
difference between proceeds received and the fair value of
the loan based on prevailing market interest rates.

Borrowing costs

All borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MWK

For the year ended 30 September 2020 & Z=2020%F9H30H L F[E

3.

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from “loss before taxation” as
reported in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income because of items of income or
expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and
items that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s
liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax
base used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for
all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which
those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of
assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the
taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and
associate, except where the Group is able to control the
reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that
the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future. Deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences associated with such investments and interests
are only recognised to the extent that it is probable that there
will be sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise the
benefits of the temporary differences and they are expected
to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of the reporting period and reduced to the extent that it
is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRME

For the year ended 30 September 2020 & Z2020%F9H30H L F[E

3.

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Taxation (continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the
liability is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate
(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of
its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes
levied to the same taxable entity by the same taxation
authority.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss,
except when it relates to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case,
the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired
separately are carried at costs less accumulated amortisation
and any accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation for
intangible assets with finite useful lives is provided on a
straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives. The
estimated useful life and amortisation method are reviewed at
the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any
changes in estimate being accounted for on a prospective
basis. Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives that are
acquired separately are carried at cost less any subsequent
accumulated impairment losses (see the accounting policy in
respect of impairment losses on tangible and intangible
assets below).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MWK

For the year ended 30 September 2020 & Z=2020%F9H30H L F[E

3.

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Impairment losses on property and equipment,
right-of-use assets and intangible assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its property and equipment, right-of-use
assets and intangible assets with finite useful lives to
determine whether there is any indication that those assets
have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication
exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in
order to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any).
Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested for
impairment at least annually, and whenever there is an
indication that they may be impaired.

The recoverable amount of property and equipment, right-of-
use assets and intangible assets are estimated individually,
when it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of
an asset individually, the Group estimates the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset
belongs.

In testing a cash-generating unit for impairment, corporate
assets are allocated to the relevant cash-generating unit
when a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be
established, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest
group of cash generating units for which a reasonable and
consistent allocation basis can be established. The
recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating
unit or group of cash-generating units to which the corporate
asset belongs, and is compared with the carrying amount of
the relevant cash-generating unit or group of cash-generating
units.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of
disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset (or a cash-generating unit) for which the
estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRME

For the year ended 30 September 2020 & Z2020%F9H30H L F[E

3.

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Impairment losses on property and equipment,
right-of-use assets and intangible assets
(continued)

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating
unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is
reduced to its recoverable amount. For corporate assets or
portion of corporate assets which cannot be allocated on a
reasonable and consistent basis to a cash-generating unit,
the Group compares the carrying amount of a group of cash-
generating units, including the carrying amounts of the
corporate assets or portion of corporate assets allocated to
that group of cash-generating units, with the recoverable
amount of the group of cash-generating units. In allocating
the impairment loss, the impairment loss is allocated first to
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill (if applicable)
and then to the other assets on a pro-rata basis based on the
carrying amount of each asset in the unit or the group of
cash-generating units. The carrying amount of an asset is not
reduced below the highest of its fair value less costs of
disposal (if measurable), its value in use (if determinable)
and zero. The amount of the impairment loss that would
otherwise have been allocated to the asset is allocated pro
rata to the other assets of the unit or the group of cash-
generating units. An impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is
increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount,
but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed
the carrying amount that would have been determined had
no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or a cash-
generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment
loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised on the
consolidated statement of financial position when a group
entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. All regular way purchases or sales of financial
assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date
basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or
sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within
the time frame established by regulation or convention in the
market place.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MWK

For the year ended 30 September 2020 & Z=2020%F9H30H L F[E

3.

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured
at fair value except for trade receivables arising from
contracts with customers which are initially measured in
accordance with HKFRS 15. Transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial
assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets or
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
(“FVTPL")) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the
financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial
recognition.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability and of
allocating interest income and interest expense over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts and
payments (including all fees and points paid or received that
form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction
costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected
life of the financial asset or financial liability, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on
initial recognition.

Interest income which are derived from the Group’s ordinary
course of business are presented as revenue.

Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at amortised cost:

° the financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is to collect contractual cash flows;
and

° the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income (“FVTOCI"):

o the financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is achieved by both collecting
contractual cash flows and selling; and

o the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to
cash flow s that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRME

For the year ended 30 September 2020 & Z2020%F9H30H L F[E

3.

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets (continued)

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at
FVTPL, except that at the date of initial application of HKFRS
9/initial recognition of a financial asset the Group may
irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes in the fair
value of an equity investment (that is not held for trading and
is not contingent consideration of an acquirer in a business
combination) in other comprehensive income, with only
dividend income generally recognised in profit or loss.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

° it has been acquired principally for the purpose of
selling in the near term; or

° on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of identified
financial instruments that the Group manages together
and has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-
taking; or

o it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a
hedging instrument.

In addition, the Group may irrevocably designate a financial
asset that are required to be measured at the amortised cost
or FVTOCI as measured at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or
significantly reduces an accounting mismatch.

(i)  Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective
interest method for financial assets measured
subsequently at amortised cost. Interest income is
calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the
gross carrying amount of a financial asset, except for
financial assets that have subsequently become credit-
impaired (see below). For financial assets that have
subsequently become credit-impaired, interest income
is recognised by applying the effective interest rate to
the amortised cost of the financial asset from the next
reporting period (with the amortised cost being the
gross carrying amount less the impairment allowance).
If the credit risk on the credit-impaired financial
instrument improves so that the financial asset is no
longer credit-impaired, interest income is recognised by
applying the effective interest rate to the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset from the beginning of the
reporting period following the determination that the
asset is no longer credit-impaired.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MWK

For the year ended 30 September 2020 & Z=2020%F9H30H L F[E

3.

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets (continued)

(i)  Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for being
measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI or designated
as FVTOCI are measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at
the end of each reporting period, with any fair value
gains or losses recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group performs impairment assessment under expected
credit loss (“ECL") model on financial assets including other
debtors and deposits, amount due from an associate, loans
and advances, accounts receivable, other assets and bank
balances which are subject to impairment under HKFRS 9.
The amount of ECL is updated at each reporting date to
reflect changes in credit risk since initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all
possible default events over the expected life of the relevant
instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL (“12m ECL")
represents the portion of lifetime ECL that is expected to
result from default events that are possible within 12 months
after the reporting date. Assessments are done based on the
Group's historical credit loss experience, adjusted for factors
that are specific to the debtors, general economic conditions
and an assessment of both the current conditions at the
reporting date as well as the forecast of future conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for accounts
receivable and contract assets (if any) that result from
transactions within the scope of HKFRS 15 and the ECL on
these assets are assessed individually for debtors with
significant balances and/or collectively using a provision
matrix with debtors having similar credit ratings.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRME

For the year ended 30 September 2020 & Z=2020F9H30H IFF[E
3. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

For all other instruments, the Group applies the general
approach to measure ECL for all financial assets and loan
commitments, if any, which are subject to impairment under
HKFRS 9. On this basis, the Group measures the loss
allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, in
which case the Group recognises lifetime ECL.

(iy  Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the reporting date with the risk of a
default occurring on the financial instrument as at the
date of initial recognition. In making this assessment,
the Group considers both quantitative and qualitative
information that is reasonable and supportable,
including historical experience and forward-looking
information that is available without undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has
increased significantly:

significant changes in external market indicators of
credit risk for a particular financial instrument or
similar financial instruments with the same
expected life;

an actual or expected significant deterioration in
the financial instrument’s external (if available) or
internal credit rating;

existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are expected
to cause a significant change in the borrower's
ability to meet its debt obligations;

an actual or expected significant change in the
operating results of the borrower;

an actual or expected significant adverse change
in the regulatory, economic, or technological
environment of the borrower that results in a
significant change in the borrower’s ability to meet
its debt obligations;

significant changes in the expected performance
and behaviour of the borrower.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MWK

For the year ended 30 September 2020 & Z=2020F9H30H IFF[E
Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

3.

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(i)

(ii)

Emperor Capital Group Limited #HEZ
ANNUAL REPORT 2019/2020 % 3§

Significant increase in credit risk (continued)

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment,
the Group presumes that the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition when contractual
payments are more than 30 days past due (except for
accounts receivable from secured margin clients where
a shorter period of “past due” has been applied by the
directors in view of the nature of business operation and
practice in managing the credit risk), unless the Group
has reasonable and supportable information that
demonstrates otherwise.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of the
criteria used to identify whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk and revises them as
appropriate to ensure that the criteria are capable of
identifying significant increase in credit risk before the
amount becomes past due.

Definition of default

The Group considers that default has occurred when
the instrument is more than 90 days past due (except
for accounts receivable from secured margin clients
where a shorter period of “past due” has been applied
by the directors in view of the nature of business
operation and practice in managing the credit risk),
unless the Group has reasonable and supportable
information that demonstrates otherwise.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR BRRHE

For the year ended 30 September 2020 & Z2020%F9H30H L F[E
3. Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 3. ERGIHEE)

Financial instruments (continued) SRMIAE)
Financial assets (continued) THEEE)
Impairment of financial assets (continued) EREERE(E)
(i)  Credit-impaired financial assets (i) EERESREE
A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more MEE AR L EHEHEHSY
events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated & AE B E R R RIR & it B X
future cash flows of that financial asset have occurred. THRTE AAMeMEES
Evidence that a financial asset is credit impaired W ERLREGRE @A
includes observable data about the following events: EHREERENZEBREEH
TH B RSB EMH -
(a) significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the (a) BITASERAEERE KA
borrower; TE N2
(b) a breach of contract, such as a default or past due (b) EXRAEHXD:HunE %) ks A
event; =15
(c) the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or (c) EBRANERAERBRBER
contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s AR ES SRR EH
financial difficulty, having granted to the borrower R E - MERARIER
a concession(s) that the lender(s) would not AL T2 B1TE BRI
otherwise consider; T
(d) it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter (d) fERAGFIEERE A ESH
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; or B EA 3K
(e) the disappearance of an active market for that (e) #ZertEERVKHEEMmE
financial asset because of financial difficulties. EER TS K ©
(iv)  Write-off policy (iv) WSHECR
The Group writes off a financial asset when there is EREERBETEFIRREEN
information indicating that the counterparty is in severe TS PR B N S B HR U [0 7] RE ({5 2
financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of FHREERBBRMRERD EITE
recovery, for example, when the counterparty has been ERF)AXNEEMESHE
placed under liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy E-KEREFEERZ(HEHE)
proceedings. Financial assets written off may still be EBMHN S RLE E A R IDAKR A
subject to enforcement activities under the Group's SEWEREFETRGHNITE
recovery procedures, taking into account legal advice B o Wi SHIB A AR L EFERFAF o (1A
where appropriate. A write-off constitutes a HgW O AR ER -

derecognition event. Any subsequent recoveries are
recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MWK

For the year ended 30 September 2020 & Z=2020F9H30H IFF[E
Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

3.

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(v)

Emperor Capital Group Limited #HEZ

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability
of default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the
loss if there is a default) and the exposure at default.
The assessment of the probability of default and loss
given default are based on historical data and forward-
looking information. Estimation of ECL reflects an
unbiased and probability-weighted amount that is
determined with the respective risks of default occurring
as the weights.

Generally, the ECL is estimated as the difference
between all contractual cash flows that are due to the
Group in accordance with the contract and all the cash
flows that the Group expects to receive, discounted at
the effective interest rate determined at initial
recognition.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset unless the
financial asset is credit impaired, in which case interest
income is calculated based on amortised cost of the
financial asset.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in
profit or loss for all financial instruments by adjusting
their carrying amount, with the exception of accounts
receivable from secured margin clients and loans and
advances where the corresponding adjustment is
recognised through a loss allowance account and
presented under “net of allowances for impairment”.

In assessing the lifetime ECL for financial assets, the
Group performs the assessment based on the Group's
historical credit loss experience, adjusted for factors
specific to the borrowers and the current conditions at
the reporting date as well as the forecast of future
conditions. The Group also reviews the value of
collateral received from the customers in measuring
impairment. The methodology and assumptions used
for estimating the impairment amount are reviewed
regularly to reduce any differences between loss
estimates and actual loss experience.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRME

For the year ended 30 September 2020 & Z2020%F9H30H L F[E

3.

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity are
classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in
accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and an
equity instrument.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities including accounts payable, other
creditors, short-term bank borrowings and bonds issued are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest method.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of the group after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Group are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue
costs.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised
cost, the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and
the sum of the consideration received and receivable is
recognised in profit or loss.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or
have expired. The difference between the carrying amount of
the financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid
and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

Financial assets and financial liabilities offsetting

A financial asset and a financial liability are offset and the net
amount presented in the consolidated statement of financial
position when, and only when, the Group currently has a
legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts;
and intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the
asset and settle the liability simultaneously.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRME

For the year ended 30 September 2020 # Z£2020F9A308 It F/E

4.

Critical Accounting Judgements and Key
Sources of Estimation Uncertainty

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which
are described in note 3, the directors of the Company are
required to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are
not readily apparent from other sources.

The estimates and associated assumptions are based on
historical experience and other factors that are considered to
be relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an on-going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if
the revision affects only that period or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both current
and future periods.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The application of ECL Model

The directors of the Company estimate the amount of loss
allowance for ECL on financial assets at amortised cost
based on the credit risk of the respective financial instrument.
The loss allowance amount is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows with the consideration of
expected future credit loss of the respective financial
instrument. The assessment of the credit risk and therefore
expected cash flows of the respective financial instrument
involves a high degree of estimation and uncertainty. The
provision of ECL is sensitive to changes in estimates. The
estimates would include the amount and timing of future cash
flows, guarantees and collateral value when determining
impairment allowances. When the actual future cash flows are
less than expected or more than expected, a material
impairment loss or a material reversal of impairment loss may
arise, accordingly. The information about the ECL on financial
assets at amortised cost are disclosed in note 39 to the
consolidated financial statements.

The Risk Management Department is responsible for
developing and maintaining the processes for measuring ECL
including monitoring of credit risk, incorporation of forward-
looking information and the method used to measure ECL;
and ensuring that the Group has policies and procedures in
place to appropriately maintain and validate models used to
assess and measure ECL.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRME

For the year ended 30 September 2020 & Z2020%F9H30H L F[E

4.

Critical Accounting Judgements and Key
Sources of Estimation Uncertainty
(continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)
The application of ECL Model (continued)

Incorporation of forward-looking information

The Group employs experts who use external and internal
information to generate scenarios of future forecasts of
relevant economic variables. The internal and external
information used includes the historical data of the Group
and economic data and forecasts published by governmental
bodies, monetary authorities or other financial institutions.
Accordingly, when measuring ECL, the Group selects and
uses reasonable and supportable forward-looking information
without undue cost or effort in its assessment, which is based
on assumptions and estimates for the future movement of
different economic drivers and how these drivers will affect
each other as well as the correlation.

Measurement of ECL

Probability of default (“PD") constitutes a key input in
measuring ECL. PD is an estimate of the likelihood of default
over a given time horizon and the calculation is based on
reasonable and appropriate statistical models selected by the
management. These statistical models are based on market
data, including expected future changes in macroeconomic
conditions and industry trend (where available), as well as
internal data comprising both quantitative and qualitative
factors which includes historical data, assumptions and
expectations of future conditions. In current situations
increased uncertainties, the directors of the Company have
taken into account of the possible worsening economic
outlook into the ECL model by adjusting the probabilities
assigned to the multiple economic scenarios (i.e. upside
scenario, normal scenario, downside scenario and
pessimistic scenario) set in the ECL model with reference to
the publicly available information. The management gathers
this information and adjusts the data to reflect probability-
weighted forward looking information that is reasonable and
supportable and available without undue cost or effort.

Loss Given Default (‘LGD”) is an estimate of the loss arising
on default. It is based on the difference between the
contractual cash flows due and those that the lender would
expect to receive, taking into account cash flows from
collateral and integral credit enhancements with estimation
involved. The LGD models for secured assets consider
forecasts of future collateral valuation taking into account sale
discounts, transaction volume of the secured assets and
seniority of claim. For unsecured loans, the calculation of
LGD includes the judgments in determining the proportion of
loan recovered after default and the duration of recovery.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRME

For the year ended 30 September 2020 # Z£2020F9A308 It F/E

4.

Critical Accounting Judgements and Key
Sources of Estimation Uncertainty
(continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)
The application of ECL Model (continued)

Measurement of ECL (continued)

In assessing the lifetime ECL on credit-impaired financial
assets classified as stage 3, the Group performs the
assessment based on the Group’s historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to the
debtors or borrowers, which include any (i) significant
financial difficulty of the debtors or borrowers, (i) breach of
contract or probability that the debtors or borrowers will enter
bankruptcy and (iii) the status and progress of financial
restructuring, general economic conditions and both the
current conditions at the reporting date as well as the
forecast of future conditions with significant judgments
involved. Moreover, the Group also reviews and assesses the
fair value of the collateral received from the customers in
determining the impairment.

Relevant information with regard to the exposure of credit risk
and expected credit losses are set out in note 39 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Critical judgements in applying accounting
policies

Significant increase in credit risk in measurement of ECL

As explained in note 3, the Group monitors all financial assets
that are subject to impairment requirements to assess
whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk
since initial recognition, except for certain loans and
advances and accounts receivable from margin clients which
are measured on lifetime ECL basis as for those credit risk
had increased significantly since initial recognition. If there
has been a significant increase in credit risks, the Company
will measure the loss allowance based on lifetime rather than
12m ECL. HKFRS 9 does not define what constitutes a
significant increase in credit risk. In assessing whether the
credit risk of an asset has significantly increased the Group
takes into account qualitative and quantitative that is
reasonable and supportable, including historical experience
and forward-looking information that is available without
undue cost or effort. Information that will be taken into
account when assessing whatever there is significant
increase in credit risks are set out in “Impairment of financial
assets” in note 3 and note 39.

i)
)
wa
£
alj

Emperor Capital Group Limited #HE#F 55
ANNUAL REPORT 2019/2020 £ #k

EXREFTHERMET AR
ENTERR(E)

(CRREESE =4 -2 46
ERARMEEFREL (&
FTERREEER(E
AHERERE =R ZEENESRE
EZzHRBEERRR  ARERE
AEEBEEEBBERETHE I
BEBSARERARERAZ HPBHRE
(VEBAKBERABABRESR - (i)E
HIBAB TS A BB TR R RE AR EE Ko (i) B
BEEMNLEE  BEEBEMRN - K
RS BB B AR AR S REARH
B 2 RRARTAE B R = B o) - MEETE IR
B AEETEEHRFEEFME
HEFmz A E.

mENEERRMAREREERZ
BER BN G A M RERMES9 -

%

B
B

FE A& 5 BOR B 2 B8 62 U I

ATEAREEERZIEERREE RN
QAP FESPAT R At - 7 S B B YR 78 38 TR
BERENAAETREE AFHBETR
EREEERREEDEEE M- Mt
BIREREEERRBERINE &
WHE BT REPRFAREREBHR
A= HEMEEBRELTE - 1F
ERBRBEZEEN AQAKERZH
(MIE12fE B) AR EEBRAEER
B BAMBMELREIRIL KRR
EEERBRBEEENNRE - FE—IA
BENEERREEREILINE KL
BEEAENMAENEENEENE
B BRAEREREEFN L TBENX
A% BRI G R RTHE £ & £ o AT
HEERRECBZIENE/ERZE
FER M 3R M3z 2 MEEZ
RAE ]



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRME

For the year ended 30 September 2020 & Z2020%F9H30H L F[E

4.

Critical Accounting Judgements and Key
Sources of Estimation Uncertainty
(continued)

Critical judgements in applying accounting
policies (continued)

Determination of consolidation scope of certain pledged
securities in money lending

The Group entered into secured loan arrangements with
customers that contains several covenants such that the
Group may have the voting rights on certain relevant
activities of the pledged company if a covenant is breached.
When these protective rights become exercisable, there is a
change in facts and circumstances and the control
assessment is reassessed.

All facts and circumstances must be taken into consideration
in the assessment of whether these rights are substantive
and whether the Group, as lender, have practical ability to
exercise these rights as power to direct the relevant activities
of the pledged company. The principle of control sets out the
following three elements of control: (a) power over the
pledged company; (b) exposure, or rights, to variable returns
from involvement with the pledged company; and (c) the
ability to use power over the pledged company to affect the
amount of the lender’s returns.

In conducting the assessment to determine this consolidated
scope, the directors of the Company considers whether the
rights held by the Group are substantive and whether are
there any barriers (economic or otherwise) that prevent or
deter the Group from exercising its rights based on all facts
and circumstances.

Income taxes

As at 30 September 2020, tax losses of HK$103,000,000
have been recognised as deferred tax assets (2019: HK$
Nil). The remaining tax losses of HK$1,309,000,000 (2019:
HK$552,000,000) have not been recognised as deferred tax
asset due to the unpredictability of future profit streams. The
realisability of the deferred tax asset mainly depends on
whether sufficient future profits or taxable temporary
differences will be available in the future. In case where the
actual future taxable profits generated are less or more than
expected, or change in facts and circumstances which result
in revision of future taxable profits estimation, a material
reversal or further recognition of deferred tax asset may arise,
which would be recognised in profit or loss for the period in
which such a reversal or further recognition takes place.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MWK

For the year ended 30 September 2020 & Z=2020F9H30H IFF[E
5. Segment Information

Information reported to the executive directors of the
Company, being the chief operating decision makers, for the
purposes of resources allocation and assessment of segment
performance focuses on types of services provided.

According to HKFRS 8, the Group has the following operating
and reportable segments:

(a) Financing — Provision of margin financing
and money lending services

(b) Brokerage services — Provision of securities, options,
futures, insurance, other assets
and wealth management
products broking services and
related handling services

(c) Placing and — Provision of placing and
underwriting underwriting services
(d) Corporate finance - Provision of corporate finance

advisory services

During the year ended 30 September 2020, the Group has
re-allocated certain corporate expenses in order to better
reflect the activities of all operating segments. Comparative
figures in prior year have been restated to conform to the
current year’s presentation.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR BRRHE

For the year ended 30 September 2020 & Z=2020F9H30H IFF[E

5. Segment Information (continued) 5. oEERE
Segment revenue and results DEBWA R FEE
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and AT RAEE 2 WA REBIREE KA
results by operating and reportable segments: ERDEZ T
For the year ended 30 September 2020 HE2020F9H30H LFE

Brokerage  Placing and Corporate
Financing services underwriting finance  Elimination Total

e BERE - REREH TERE 6 EH)

HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
TERT TER TERT TERT TERT TERT

REVENUE A
Segment revenue - external
customers

DEBRA - SN EE P

Commission and fee income 118,051
AeRERKA

Interest income F| 84T\ 779,246 799,356

Inter-segment sales 7 & HE 327211 - (327.211) -
1,106,457 115,607 (327,211) 917,407

Inter-segment sales are charged at prevailing market rates. DEPEIHE NIRRT IS ERINE -

Emperor Capital Group Limited HEZESEBEERD T
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MWK

For the year ended 30 September 2020 & Z=2020F9H30H IFF[E

Brokerage

Financing services
¢ BLERE
HK$000 HK$'000

TER TER

RESULTS ¥4

Segment results 7 ZPEE4E (713,736)

Unallocated other operating income
ADEEMBZRA

Unallocated corporate expenses A2 E 2R

- staff costs (including directors’ remuneration
but excluding staff commission expenses)

-BIpA(BEES Me ETEEETIRSE
)

- service charge to related companies
(note 34(a)(ii)
- TBERR 2 RBE (H34(a)i)

- others Efth

Share of profit of an associate
JE(E — 2 A ) 2 A

Loss before taxation B F I E B

Taxation T8
Loss for the year FEE R

Emperor Capital Group Limited HEXFSEBEAER QT
ANNUAL REPORT 2019/2020 £ #k

5. Segment Information (continued) 5. 9HERE)
Segment revenue and results (continued) DEMAREE ()
For the year ended 30 September 2020 (continued) BZE2020F9A30R L FE(£&)

Placing and
underwriting

REREH
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TR TiER TER

Corporate
finance Total

TERE At

(662,378)
3,509

)

(9,704)

(9,591)

57

(679,607)

(10,140)
(689,747)




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR BRRHE

For the year ended 30 September 2020 & Z2020%F9H30H L F[E

5. Segment Information (continued) 5. oEERE
Segment revenue and results (continued) DEMAREE(E)
For the year ended 30 September 2019 (restated) HZE2019F9A30H L FE(FF)

Brokerage  Placing and Corporate
Financing services  underwriting finance Elimination
EM Bkt EKEEAH EXRAE iE

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Tt Tt T T T T

REVENUE A

Segment revenue - external
customers
DEWA - SMEE R

Commission and fee income - 77,366 34,453 6,365 - 118,184
ReRERKBA
Interest income F|E4xA 940,016 24,654 - - - 964,670
Inter-segment sales 7 2FEISHE 305,391 - 20,000 3,505 (328,896) -
1,245,407 102,020 54,453 9,870 (328,896) 1,082,854
Inter-segment sales are charged at prevailing market rates. DESEHE TIRIRIT IS ERIKE

Emperor Capital Group Limited HEZESEBEERD T
ANNUAL REPORT 2019/2020 % ¥R 113



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MWK

For the year ended 30 September 2020 & Z=2020%F9H30H L F[E

5. Segment Information (continued) 5. oEERE
Segment revenue and results (continued) PEBAREE(E)
For the year ended 30 September 2019 (restated) (continued) HZE2019F9A30H IEFE(F)(4E)

Brokerage  Placing and Corporate
Financing services  underwriting finance Total
EXN Bk  EEEEH rERE @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T FET TEx TET TET

RESULTS £
Segment results 7 E0ELE (228,140) 35,018 7,579 (3,966) (189,509)
Unallocated other operating income 231
AREEMEZWA
Unallocated corporate expenses A B £ &R

- staff costs (including directors’ remuneration (1,729)

but excluding staff commission expenses)
-BIRA(ERES Me EFEREEIRE
i)

- management fee to a related company (263)
(note 34(a)(ii)

- T MEERR 2 ERE (H3E34(a)i)

- service charge to related companies (15,922)
(note 34(a)(ii)

- TBERR 2 RBE (H34(a)ii)

- others EAt (21,147)
Share of loss of an associate (1,880)
JE(E—fERt = A 2 B
Loss before taxation 73 A& 18 (230,219)
Taxation {18 (28,487)
Loss for the year FEE1E (258,706)

Emperor Capital Group Limited HEXFSEBEAER QT

ANNUAL REPORT 2019/2020 £ #



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR BRRHE

For the year ended 30 September 2020 & Z=2020F9H30H IFF[E

5.

Segment Information (continued)

Segment revenue and results (continued)

The accounting policies of the reportable segments are the
same as the Group's accounting policies described in note 3.
Segment results represents the profit (loss) earned by each
segment without allocation of central administration costs
(including directors’ remuneration and central administrative
staff costs but excluding staff commission expenses),
unallocated other operating income, management fee to a
related company, service charge to related companies, and
share of profit (loss) of an associate. This is the measure
reported to the executive directors of the Company for the
purpose of resources allocation and performance
assessment. No analysis of segment asset and segment
liability is presented as the chief operating decision maker
does not regularly review such information for the purposes
of resources allocation and performance assessment.
Therefore, only segment revenue and segment results are
presented.

Other segment information
For the year ended 30 September 2020

Brokerage

Financing
e

HK$'000
TR

Additions of property and equipment 16
NENERR

Depreciation of property and equipment

MERFRBIE

Depreciation of right-of-use assets

EREEENE

3,368

Impairment allowances on accounts receivable,
net of reversal

FEMRERTR 2B E B - HIRR A

994,290

Impairment allowances on loans and advances,
net of reversal

BERRBRRERE  HEED

329,538

Interest income F| 84T A 779,246

Finance costs BT &R

97,995

Emperor Capital Group Limited

services
RICRE

HK$°000

TR

1,050

1,592

8,552

3,297

DERBA R KA (E)

A 2WH B2 SFH R E M 3T 2
AEBMETERMER - DA FEEED
ARATEREN 2 i M (B9 ) AR D BCHP R
THER(BREFZME KT RITK
ANBERA B TME RN KD
EMEEWA BT —HEEQARZ
EEE RTHERR IR ELEN
—ElE R 2w (B8 - B R A
REMITEFZZ2RAE D B ER M
RFAZIEM  AEBEERBEALIE
HEGERERAD BER K EER
BowEZIDMEERDBREZD
Ireo Btk E25 0 BUWRA RS BRAE

B E2020F9H30HLLFE
Placing and

underwriting

REREH
HK$'000
TR

Corporate
finance
tERE
HK$°000
TR

Total
#st

HK$'000

TRR
8 1,074
2,756

11,920

997,807

329,538

799,356

110,399

RERFEEBRLF

ANNUAL REPORT 2019/2020 4 #R
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MWK

For the year ended 30 September 2020 & Z=2020%F9H30H L F[E

5. Segment Information (continued) 5. 9HERE)
Other segment information (continued) Bt 5 SER(E)
For the year ended 30 September 2019 B ZE2019F9A30H ILFE
Brokerage  Placing and Corporate
Financing services  underwriting finance Total
B Bicks EEREAH ERAE @5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T FET TEx TET TET
Additions of property and equipment 167 4,512 - 17 4,696
NEMERR
Depreciation of property and equipment 1,159 1,609 - 3 2,771
NERREITE
Impairment allowances on accounts receivable, 511,918 - - - 511,918

net of reversal

JEWIRS 2 RERE MR ED

Impairment allowances on loans and advances, 377,366 - - - 377,366
net of reversal

BRRBRRERE  NRED

Interest income IS4 A 940,016 24,654 - - 964,670

Finance costs #1715 & f 176,261 - - - 176,261
Geographical information i@ & R
The following illustrates the geographical analysis of the AT ERAAZAR S ER B HAMIR R P 2 A
Group's revenue from its external customers, based on the 2RO MRBBINEREZE 2K
country from which the trades are derived in relation to LWATE - HERR SRR, K&
brokerage revenue from overseas products trading or/and HER L4 REHEBERMPERME
based on the country in which the customers are located in WAME DEREPHAEZERK -

relation to financing, brokerage, placing and underwriting and
corporate finance revenue.

Revenue

L ON
2020

HK$’000
TR

Hong Kong &% 902,675 1,075,106
United States & 14,717 7,738

Others EHfth 15 10
917,407 1,082,854

Emperor Capital Group Limited HEXFSEBEAER QT
116 ANNUAL REPORT 2019/2020 £



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR BRRHE

For the year ended 30 September 2020 & Z=2020F9H30H IFF[E

5.

Segment Information (continued) 5.

Information about major customer

For the years ended 30 September 2020 and 30 September
2019, there was no single customer who contributed 10% or
more of the Group’s revenue.

Revenue 6.

Revenue (Note (vi)) YA (FtzE(vi))

Commission and fee income (Note (i)): 4 K& RU A (Hfa(i) :

Commission and fees income on dealing in securities (Note (ii))

BERS 2 Me R ERWA K (i)

Commission and fees income on dealing in futures and
options contracts (Note (ii))
BEERERIESHN 2 AE LB BB (M)

Commission from insurance brokerage and wealth management
(Note (ii))
Ripas s R = BB 2 A2 (M e i)

Corporate finance advisory services fee income (Note (iii))

15 R & AR AR B WA (B a2 (i)

Placing and underwriting commission (Note (iv))
il & RBiEme (MEiv)

TRER ()

EREEEFZER
#%202049 5308 201949 A30R
IEFE - WHEE TP RE AL AR
SEKRABI10%EIA o

WA

Interest income: LA TTEE Z FBULA -

Interest income from margin and initial public offer financing (“IPO”)

(Note (v))
FREERAFRBR(TERAFRBRDEE 2 A WA (K aE(v))

Interest income from loans and advances (Note (v))
BB Z N BWA (HfaE(v))

Interest income from bank deposits (Note (ii))

RITI AR B WA (F (i)

Others (Note (ii)) £ (515E(ii))

Emperor Capital Group Limited

2020
HK$’000
THER

9,145

13,409

118,051

390,434

388,812

19,473

637

799,356
917,407

2019
HK$'000
TR

58,753

12,318

6,295

6,365

34,453

118,184

541,606

398,410

24,476

178

964,670

1,082,854

REFFKRERRAF
ANNUAL REPORT 2019/2020 £ %}
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBERRME
For the year ended 30 September 2020 & Z=2020F9H30H IFF[E

6. Revenue (continued)

Notes:

(i)

(i)

(iiif)

(iv)

(vi)

Emperor Capital Group Limited

The commission and fee income is the only revenue arising
under the scope of HKFRS 15, while interest income is
under the scope of HKFRS 9.

Included in revenue, revenue arising from contract with
customers recognised at a point in time and over time were
HK$108,906,000 (2019: HK$111,819,000) and HK$9,145,000
(2019: HK$6,365,000), respectively.

All services provided to customers are for periods of one
year or less. As permitted under HKFRS 15, the transaction
price allocated to these unsatisfied contracts is not
disclosed.

Amounts are reported under brokerage services segment as
set out in Note 5.

Amounts are reported under corporate finance segment set
out in Note 5.

Amounts are reported under placing and underwriting
segment set out in Note 5.

Amounts are reported under financing segment set out in
Note 5.

Except for the amounts of commission and fee income on
dealing in futures and options contracts of HK$14,717,000
and HK$10,000 (2019: commission and fee income on
dealing in futures and options contracts of HK$7,738,000
and HK$6,000) which are incurred from United States
products trading and other overseas products trading
respectively, and interest income from bank deposits of
HK$5,000 (2019: interest income from bank deposits of
HK$4,000) which are under other overseas locations, all
other revenues from external customers are under Hong
Kong operation as set out in Note 5.

REFZEEARAF

ANNUAL REPORT 2019/2020 £ #

LONG |

B
()

(i)
(iii)

(iv)

(Vi)

R kERBARBEEMBREE
AISB1SSREE M ME— A - T 24K
ARIBR & BB % W& £ R B9k Y
#E -

U A B FERA SRS R 2 & — EXRS R4 1
R BEA X AD R A108,906,000
7 70(20194F : 111,819,000/ 7T ) &
9,145,000/ 7T (20194F 16,365,000/ 7T ) °

RUEGEPZMERBHMR S —Fk
B RERBMBE RS LERNEIS
HATHRE DERZERTERAKZ
R P BRI ARBE -

BEBREHLET 2 RS BHAW
55 °
TERESBET Z 2RSS EHRN
5

FEEEBEN AT Z2HRSBEHER
BIFES

ERDRIAT 2 2| RHANMILS

EHERR I REMBINERR BE
S EEHERBRAIZHAERE
B AELESBIA14,717,0008 T &
10,0008 (20194 : EEHE M
EEHZBEREARKASES A
7,738,000/ 7T 26,0007 7T ) LA & &
HEIIMLE ZRITERZHFEWA
5,000/ 70 (20194 : SR{TEFERZFIE
A 4,000/8 70 ) BR AN - SRE R BB
BZINBEEMTE Rt ASH R
MIEES ©



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR BRRHE

For the year ended 30 September 2020 & Z=2020F9H30H IFF[E
7. Impairment Allowances, net of Reversal 7 RERE NREE

Impairment allowances on: JH{EE & :

Accounts receivable &Y ERFK 1,057,869 521,768
Loans and advances E & R 329,872 379,594
Reversal of impairment allowances on: J&{E & & #[E :
Accounts receivable JEUIRTR (60,062) (9,850)

Loans and advances B3 & &% (334) (2,228)
1,327,345 889,284

8. Staff Costs 8. EIMXK

2020 2019
HK$°000 HK$'000
FTERT TAET

Staff costs represent the amounts paid and payable to the directors
and employees and comprise:

BIRAHECNEENTEZRREE 22 B

Salaries, bonus and allowances ¥4 - fE4T J2 284 94,872
Contributions to retirement benefits scheme RBREFIFT 2L 4,127
98,999

Emperor Capital Group Limited HEZESEBEERD T
ANNUAL REPORT 2019/2020 % ¥R
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MWK

For the year ended 30 September 2020 & Z=2020F9H30H IFF[E
9. Finance Costs

Interest on: NZIEE ZH &
Bank overdrafts and loans $R1T& % & B
Bonds issued B #7T{E%

Lease liabilities fAE & &

Others Efth

9. HMBEH

10,553

165,688

28 20
110,399 176,261

10. Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Emoluments

The emoluments paid or payable to each of the 6 (2019: 7)
directors and the chief executive were as follows:

For the year ended 30 September 2020

Executive directors

YnES
Choi
Suk Hing,
Louisa
4L
HK$'000
Tén
(Note (b))
)

Pearl
Chan
RIE
HK$'000
Thn
(Note (b))

Daisy

Yeung

i
HK$'000
TiEn
(Notes (b), (d))
(b) ()

Fees 1% 250
Other remuneration £ &%
Salaries and allowances ¥4 28

Discretionary bonus (Note (a))

BB (W)

Contributions to retirement benefits
scheme
RAVERIETEIE

Total remuneration B4 %5

REFFEERRA
ANNUAL REPORT 2019/2020 £

al

Emperor Capital Group Limited

10. EERESTRAEBZHME

BN T66L(20195F 7R EE M
REITHRABZMEMT

HZE2020F9H30H L FE

Independent non-executive directors

BUFHGES

Chu Poon Wan
Kar Wing Yan Wai Choi Ha Total
RER BR BYE Ch
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
7 47 7 47
(Note (c)) (Note (c)) (Note (c))



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B RRME

For the year ended 30 September 2020 & Z2020%F9H30H L F[E

10. Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Emoluments

(c

For the year ended 30 September 2019

ontinued)

Executive directors

(#)
HZE201949A30R LEE

Independent non-executive directors

10. EEREETHRAEZHME

HTES
Choi
Chan Suk Hing, Pearl Chu Poon Wan
Louisa Chan Kar Wing Yan Wai Choi Ha Total
2 Bl RER ALCE &t
HK§'000 HK§'000 HK§'000 HK§'000 HK$ 000
B B BT TAL
(Note (b)) (Note (c)) (Note (c))
)
Fees % 250 229 250 250 250 250 250 1,729
Other remuneration A&
Salaries and allowances &4 J:28 2,160 4632 2586 2217 - - - 11595
Discretionary bonus (Note () 1,200 1,200 525 360 - - - 3,285
META (i)
Contributions to retirement benefits 17 55 181 129 - - - 382
scheme
BB B
Total remuneration M& % 3,627 6,116 3,542 2,956 250 250 250 16,991

Notes: KifaE -

(a) Discretionary bonus is determined as regard to the Group’s (a) BIBRADSETFAEELEZES A
operating results, individual performance and comparable AFKIA RIS A LR BT MIE
market statistics.

(b)  The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were for (b) LERAIATEEHNEE AEZER
their services in connection with the management of the ~ElREWB AR EESEEHE RS
affairs of the Company and its subsidiaries. There was no R - R AFERN  EEHERE
arrangement under which a director waived or agreed to 1 fr] Z2 B i 32 B8 [R] 2 38 SR B AE £
waive any remuneration during the year. & o

(c) The non-executive directors’ emoluments shown above were (c) LERAVIERITESHNMEIARS
for their services as directors of the Company and its EAARRREWB AR ESR
subsidiaries. There was no arrangement under which a Bl e RAFERN - EEHEBIREM
director waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during ZHME R B ERDEMME -
the year.

(d) Ms Daisy Yeung is also the Chief Executive of the Company (d) BRFRTIDARARZSTHAER
and her emoluments disclosed above include those for IR ERFBEZR e BERIERR
services rendered by her as Chief Executive. No =T B TR it 2 AR 7% i 15 2 B
apportionment has been made as it is impracticable to © o B EESHE M AR T R EHKHT B
apportion this amount among her services to the Company NERMAR TS PTIS BN & 1T IR L 0]
and its subsidiaries. Fel B A (AT 9 4 o

() Mr Chan Shek Wah resigned as executive director on 31 (e) PREGELLERN2019F8A31HEHLH

August 2019.

TEE-

Emperor Capital Group Limited HEZESEBEERD T
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MWK

For the year ended 30 September 2020 & Z=2020%F9H30H L F[E

11. Employees’ Remuneration 1. EE#ME
The five individuals with the highest emoluments in the Group RELZE2020F9A30H L FE - AEE
included two (2019: three) directors of the Company for the ZHEZABRRETMALTBERARAMAE
year ended 30 September 2020, details of whose (2019%F : =ZR)EF REZMEFHE
emoluments are included in the disclosures in note 10 above. REXHWFI0ETE -RAFEE  Hip=
The emoluments of the remaining three (2019: two) individual (20195 : MB)ATZMEAT -

for the year were as follows:

2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000

FERT TET

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind & & * 385 & B 9@ 7 2,400 1,871
Bonus E4L 8,432 5,366

Contributions to retirement benefits scheme RAKE 5T &7k : 119
10,990 7,356

The remunerations were within the following bands: BT T 5 E -

Number of employees
EEAH
2020 2019
HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000 3,000,001 7T 23,500,000/ 7T

HK$4,000,001 to HK$4,500,000 4,000,001 7T £ 4,500,000/% 7T

During the year, no remuneration has been paid by the Group RAFEE  REBN B NS T EMA
to any of the directors or the five highest paid individuals as EERhEERTMAL EREEMN
an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as AREES INARE B 2 RE)HAER
compensation for loss of office. RERB 2 HE -

Emperor Capital Group Limited HEXFSEBEAER QT
ANNUAL REPORT 2019/2020 £ #k



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR BRRHE

For the year ended 30 September 2020 & Z=2020F9H30H IFF[E

12. Loss Before Taxation 12. BRBIAIESE
2019
HK$'000
FHT
Loss before taxation has been arrived at after charging:
BREATEIEE I
Other expenses: E 37 i
Auditor’s remuneration 1% EiRT M & 2,425
Legal and professional fee JAE N EHEE A 9,054
Advertising and promotion expenses && M E & H 8,359
Information technology services and communication expenses 5,312
B AR AR K <
Depreciation of property and equipment #)% & & 2 T & 2,771
Depreciation of right-of-use assets {§ A g & EH & -
Operating lease rentals in respect of T7I| &8 2 &&HOME
— rented premises THE % 16,856
— equipment &f& 14,945
Net exchange loss [ 5, /518 % 58 810
General and administrative expenses —#& & 1TH 7 16,321
Rates and building management fee ZfMIEFERE 2,922
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries H & B A AEE -
Settlement expenses &5 & & F 3,346
Miscellaneous expenses #IE S 9,657
92,778

Emperor Capital Group Limited HEZESEBEERD T
ANNUAL REPORT 2019/2020 % ¥R 123
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MWK

For the year ended 30 September 2020 & Z=2020F9H30H IFF[E
13. Taxation

Current year: KEE :
Hong Kong Profits Tax & /& 158
PRC Enterprise Income Tax B2 FT15

Canada Income Tax J1& K55

Under (over) provision in prior year: 8 FEBE T (BEEE)

Hong Kong &/
Deferred tax: IEIEFIIH :

Current year KNG

3. B

28,840
122

2,500

(17,417) (2,941)

10,140 28,487

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% on the
estimated assessable profits for both years.

Under the Law of the People’s Republic of China (“PRC”") on
Enterprise Income Tax (the “EIT Law”) and Implementation
Regulation of the EIT Law, the tax rate for the PRC
subsidiaries is 25%.

Taxation arising in other jurisdictions is calculated at the rates
prevailing in the relevant jurisdictions.

Emperor Capital Group Limited #HEXFFEBEERAD
ANNUAL REPORT 2019/2020 £ #k

al

R E S - FE NS5 EE ER
B AHR16.5% 2 TR H o
BREBEREARKLMBE(HE])REMR
BEE(REMRBRE]D) REEMREF
BORBHGD  FENBARZRHER
25% °

Hof R R 2 BB B RARE 2
RTBEE -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR BRRHE

For the year ended 30 September 2020 & Z2020%F9H30H L F[E
13. Taxation (continued)

The taxation for the year can be reconciled to the loss before
taxation per the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income as follows:

Loss before taxation &%t Al E518

13. BLE(E)

AREEHRIARGE Ham M HE M2 E s
RATER B A EEERNT

2020 2019
HK$’000

HK$'000
THETT

FERT

Taxation at income tax rate of 16.5% (2019: 16.5%)
1£16.5%(2019%F : 16.5%) 2 TS K5t E 2 Hi18

Tax effect of expenses not deductible for tax purpose
BT S AR 2 B s e

Tax effect of income not taxable for tax purpose
MBS BERAMBAZ RBEZE

Under(over)provision in respect of prior years

BEFERET 2 (BRREE)

Utilisation of tax losses previously not recognised
BERBATARBERRZHNIBEE

Tax effect of tax losses not recognised KA MR IBE B 2 7%

Tax effect of recognition of deferred tax previously not recognised

ERBERBERRLERA L MGTE

Others Efth

Taxation charge for the year ANFE R B %

(679,607) (230,219)
(112,135) (37,986)
2,513 171
(6,584) (4,464)
1,350 (34)
(912) -
142,867 72,412
(16,925) -
(34) (1,612)
10,140 28,487

As at 30 September 2020, the Group had unused estimated
tax losses of approximately HK$1,411,911,000 (2019:
HK$551,578,000) available for offset against future profits of
the respective companies in which the losses arose. The
unused tax losses can be carried forward indefinitely with no
expiry date but subject to the approval of the Hong Kong
Inland Revenue Department. As at 30 September 2020, tax
losses of HK$103,000,000 have been recognised as deferred
tax assets (2019: HK$ Nil). The remaining tax losses of
HK$1,309,000,000 (2019: HK$552,000,000) have not been
recognised as deferred tax assets due to the unpredictability
of future profit streams.

202059 A30H © A E 7] A K 85
ELEBEBEEBBRZBBARZ RGN Z
REBHETTRIEEI849/51,411,911,000
77T (20194 : 551,578,000/ 7T ) ° A f&
FA 2 R I8 S 18 N0 & [ m B HA i A & PR AR
e MASEBUB BRI EER  FiE
YEE - 72202059 A30H - 103,000,000
B HBEEEERRBEEHIBEEE
(2019%F + T L) o H R & 5% FI 2k
Rz T EAMN T 2 HIBEEIE
1,309,000,0003% 7T.(20194F : 552,000,000
BTN EERARTEHRIEEE -

Emperor Capital Group Limited HEZESEBEERD T
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MWK

For the year ended 30 September 2020 & Z=2020%F9H30H L F[E

14.

15.

Dividends 14. RE

2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000

FBT FiBT

Recognised as distribution: HERIED K

Final dividend paid in respect of 2019: Nil

(2019: HK$0.0064 per share in respect of 2018) 43,141
2019 BN RERE : T
(2019% : #£2018F ®A%IK10.0064/%7T)
43,141

The directors did not recommend any payment of final EEeTEAMEZE2020F9H30H &
dividend for the years ended 30 September 2020 and 30 201959 A 308 1L FE IR E{a] R AR AR
September 2019. B
Loss Per Share 15. BREE
The calculation of the basic loss per share attributable to RRABER ANEIESREREIRHRE
owners of the Company is based on the following data: THBIEFE -

2020 2019
HK$°000 HK$'000
TER TAET

Loss 18

Loss for the purpose of basic loss per share (689,747) (258,706)
ARt EEREREREZ R

Number of shares RHEE

Weighted average number of ordinary shares for the purposes of

basic loss per share 6,740,846 6,740,846
AR BEEREAREE 2 S mRINETF S
Basic loss per share §REXEE CLGEOPRNEN  HK(3.84) cents
AL il
No diluted loss per share for the years ended 30 September R AN A R E# £2020F9 308 &
2020 and 30 September 2019 were presented as there were 201959 HA30R I FEHEA () EEE
no potential ordinary shares outstanding during the years. EEER ARV EZIZEFELS

PR -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR BRRHE

For the year ended 30 September 2020 & Z2020%F9H30H L F[E

16. Property and Equipment 16. MERZE
Furniture Computer
Leasehold and Office and other Motor
improvements fixtures equipment equipment vehicle Total
TR
ET3] BRREE BAERE Attt RE 5
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAn TAn TAR ThR ThR TAn
COST B
At 1 October 2018 F22018F10A 1H 14,833 2,144 6,566 19,376 673 43,592
Additions K& 990 36 43 3,627 - 4,69
Disposals & - - - (49) - (49)
At 30 September 2019 12201959 A30H 15,823 2,180 6,609 22,954 673 48,239
Additions RE 510 60 53 451 - 1,074
Disposals % - - - - - -
At 30 September 2020 A202069830H 16,333 2,240 6,662 23,405 673 49,313
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION
e
At 1 October 2018 742018510 41H 12,730 1,980 6,564 14,403 528 36,205
Provided for the year A F & &ff 829 64 45 1,699 135 2,172
Eliminated on disposals H &8 & - - - (44) - (44)
At 30 September 2019 12201959 A30H 13,559 2,044 6,609 16,058 663 38,933
Provided for the year N E 787 63 53 1843 10 2,756

Eliminated on disposals & & i - - _ _ _ _

At 30 September 2020 #20209830F 14,346 2,107 6,662 17,901 673 41,689
CARRYING VALUES &

At 30 September 2020 4202095308 1,987 133 - 5,504 - 7624
At 30 September 2019 1X2019F9A30H 2,264 136 - 6,896 10 9,306
All the above items of property and equipment are FiA btz s R ER B UESE
depreciated on a straight-line basis at the rate of 20% per B20% 2 FETLANE - W EE B

annum, except that leasehold improvements are depreciated FAHSSF (AR EABE) TURE -

over the shorter of the lease terms or 5 years.

Emperor Capital Group Limited HEZESEBEERD T
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MWK

For the year ended 30 September 2020 & Z=2020%F9H30H L F[E

17. Right-of-use Assets 17. ERAEEE

As at 1 October 2019 20199104 1H

Leased
properties

HEYE

HK$’000
FERT

Carrying amount SREE 13,018
As at 30 September 2020 7202049 H30H

Carrying amount 8RHE{E 22,759
For the year ended 30 September 2020 & £2020F9 8308 It F/E

Depreciation charge #T& & (11,920)

Additions to right-of-use assets FHEEERNE 21,661
Total cash outflow for leases & 2 3 & 7t HH 42 %8 12,413

For both years, the Group leases various offices, an
advertising billboard and server center for its operations.
Lease contracts are entered into for fixed term of 20 months
to 61 months. Lease terms are negotiated on an individual
basis and contain a wide range of different terms and
conditions. In determining the lease term and assessing the
length of the non-cancellable period, the Group applies the
definition of a contract and determines the period for which
the contract is enforceable. During the year, there are
additions to right-of-use assets of HK$21,661,000 relating to
leasing offices.

Lease liabilities of HK$23,418,000 are recognised with related
right-of-use assets of HK$22,759,000 as at 30 September
2020. The lease agreements do not impose any covenants
other than the security interests in the leased assets that are
held by the lessor. Leased assets may not be used as
security for borrowing purposes.

As at 30 September 2020, the directors have assessed the
impairment of right-of-use assets allocated to respective
cash-generating unit and considered that no impairment is
necessary.

Details of maturity analysis of lease liabilities are set out in
notes 27 and 39.

Emperor Capital Group Limited HEXFSEBEAER QT
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PREFE AEBBEEZHEBAE
BERR M ERESPODAEEE A -
EA %2 EEFH A20ME A £611E
A -HEGRREEBERETHE
K BEa K& EEERRIEH - REE
HEA R TA B BRNRER - K
SEERAGHANTEEREESLO®RGIE
M EE - AN FERN FEHABEERE
21,661,000 L EWRAERM -

MR20209F9A30H - & #E723,418,000
BETHEBE HEFERAEBEEAR
22,759,000 7T - E W&k HA AR
EZHEBEZEREZRIN  WEN N
% - HEEETSBEERENE
o

R2020F9A30H  EEE AN E R
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR BRRHE

For the year ended 30 September 2020 & Z2020%F9H30H L F[E

18. Intangible Assets 18. B EE
FHET
COST A
At 1 October 2018, 30 September 2019 and 30 September 2020 9,802

M2018FE10H 18 » 201949 A30H 202059 A30H
AMORTISATION AND IMPAIRMENT 384 & B &

At 1 October 2018, 30 September 2019 and 30 September 2020 9,802
20185 10H 18 + 201999 H30H 202049 H30H

CARRYING VALUES fREE

At 30 September 2020 720209 830H -
At 30 September 2019 74201949 H30H -

Trading rights were fully amortised over 10 years from the R 51 B 2000F B3 F - BB B AT
effective day of the merger of the Stock Exchange, the Hong ERPREEBRARIZEFEKRB
Kong Futures Exchange Limited and the Hong Kong RBIZ104E T AR S o
Securities Clearing Company Limited to year 2000.

19. Interest in an Associate 19. R—EBHEQNT 2E=R

2020 2019
HK$°000 HK$'000

FEx TAET

Cost of investment in an unlisted associate W 3 - mH# <A 7] 2 & & K 24N 1

Share of post-acquisition loss and other comprehensive expense 1) (1)

FEIEWE R ER R E b 2R

Amount due from an associate (Note 1) [ Ug— B & A B FIB(fzE1) 5,987 5,987

Less: Loss allocated in excess of cost of investment (2,495) (2,552)

B B EEEBEREKA

3,492 3,435

Emperor Capital Group Limited HEZESEBEERD T
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MWK

For the year ended 30 September 2020 & Z=2020%F9H30H L F[E

19. Interest in an Associate (continued) 19. R—EBE QAR 2ER (&)
As at 30 September 2019 and 30 September 2020, the Group MK20199F9A30H K202049H30H -
had interest in the following associate: REBERTIEERNRHEB R -

Proportion of
Form of nominal value
business Place of Class of of issued capital
Name of entity structure incorporation share held held by the Group  Principal activity

FREFMBERCRT

ERER FRERER aREE  FARRGER REAEEZLA — FEEHR
2020 2019
(Note 2)  (Note 2)
(Hat2)  (Wit2)

Boom High Investment Incorporated BVI Ordinary shares 28% 28% Investment holding
Limited (“Boom High")  sEffAAZ RERNAE TBR REER

mEREBRAR(RE))

2020 2019
HK$°000 HK$'000

FEx TAET

The Group's share of profit (loss) ZN5 B fE {555 7| (E518) 57

The Group’s share of total comprehensive income (expense) Y4 (1,880)

AEEEE2EWE (RS8R

Aggregate carrying amount of the Group’s interest in the associate
AREBERE S AR REAE

Notes: Kt -

(1)  The amount due from an associate is unsecured, non- (1) ER—HBEArFKEAERER. £
interest bearing and repayable on demand. BRIREREE-

(2) The Group is able to exercise significant influence over (2) BRAEERSX 2B REERE
Boom High because it has more than 20% voting rights in FHEBHBIB20% IR EE  MASE
its financial and operating policy decisions and the Group is ﬁTE?EHB%Z%% AR E
entitled to appoint a director in Boom High. BIKITEERFE T

Emperor Capital Group Limited HEXFSEBEAER QT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR BRRHE

For the year ended 30 September 2020 & Z=2020F9H30H IFF[E
20. Other Assets 20. HihEE

Statutory and other deposits JAE M Hthig 4

8,871
Statutory and other deposits represent deposits with various EEMEMBEIETERTIRR SRS
exchanges and clearing houses. They are non-interest BARZRE ZERER/RE -
bearing.
21. Loans and Advances 21. ERRBR

2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000
TER TAT

Fixed-rate loans receivable B EEFIEE R 3,705,116 3,269,090

Variable-rate loans receivable JEUTE B E 199,606 218,636

3,904,722 3,487,726
Less: provision for impairment & : Ja{E & & (745,722) (416,184)

3,159,000 3,071,542

Analysed as: T4 :

Current B 2,532,317 2,651,785

Non-current FER 1385 626,683 419,757

3,159,000 3,071,642

Emperor Capital Group Limited HEZESEBEERD T
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MWK

For the year ended 30 September 2020 & Z=2020F9H30H IFF[E

21.

Loans and Advances (continued) 21. EXRBR(E

The carrying amounts of the Group’s fixed-rate and variable- ZA%£E 2 ERETE X LT B ER 2 EAE
rate loans receivable together with their remaining contractual EREFE&#A W HE Z250TF ¢
maturity dates are as follows:

2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000

FERT TAET

Fixed-rate loans receivable: JEUW EFEFIRE K :
Within one year —&F A 2,262,943 2,507,222
In more than one year but no more than five years —F & B RFR 139,270 78,822

Over five years A% & 299,807 131,540

2,702,020 2,717,584
Past due 2 %1 ] 257,374 135,322

2,959,394 2,852,906

Variable-rate loans receivable: JEYSFE B E T

Within one year —F X 8,048 9,241
In more than one year but no more than five years —5&{ERERN 40,303 32,932
Over five years A1 147,302 176,463
195,653 218,636
Past due B %15 3,953 -
199,606 218,636

Details of movements in provision for impairment of loans and ERRBIOREREE S 2 F BN

advances are set out in note 39. 5539 °

Emperor Capital Group Limited HEXFSEBEAER QT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR BRRHE

For the year ended 30 September 2020 & Z2020%F9H30H L F[E

21. Loans and Advances (continued) 21. EXRRBR(E)

The effective interest rates of the Group’s loans receivable AEERKERZEEREMEET :

are as follows:

2019

Effective interest rates:

BRRA =

Fixed-rate loans receivable 0.67% per month to 3.83%
per month

# H0.67%Z£3.83%

0.5% per month to 3.83% per month
&L [ 5E 7 R B 5K B H0.5%%3.83%

Variable-rate loans receivable

Prime rate -2.75% per annum
to prime rate per annum

BFBRBEENR-275%EFFH

Prime rate -2.75% per annum to
prime rate per annum

FEWLT BER BFEREENKR275%EFFHRER

BERIER

As at 30 September 2020, 185 (2019: 156) secured loans
with the aggregate gross amount of approximately
HK$1,528,321,000 (2019: HK$1,157,508,000) were secured
by first legal charges in respect of respective properties
located in Hong Kong. The collateral for each individual loan
is sufficient to cover the loan amount on an individual basis.
They were advanced to various independent borrowers and
will be due for repayment within 1 to 30 years (2019: 1 to 30
years). As at 30 September 2020, there are 23 loans (2019: 4
loans) with the aggregate gross amount of approximately
HK$699,925,000 (2019: HK$208,181,000). The borrowers
hold Hong Kong listed marketable securities under the
securities account in one of the Group entities. The Group
has the rights on all these securities to repay the outstanding
loans in the event that the borrowers fail to pay the amount
due on due date. The remaining gross balance of the loans
receivable amounting to approximately HK$1,676,476,000
(2019: HK$2,122,037,000) were provided to independent
third parties of the Group, of which the loan amount of
approximately HK$672,389,000 (2019: HK$948,774,000) were
with second or third legal charges in respect of properties
located in Hong Kong and will be due for repayment within 1
to 30 years (2019: 1 to 30 years) from the respective loans’
date of advance.

As at 30 September 2020 and 30 September 2019, each of
the fixed-rate and variable-rate secured loans receivable
represented less than 10% of the gross loans and advances
balance.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s loans and advances
approximate their fair value.

Details of credit risk profile disclosure are set out in “credit
risk and impairment assessment” innote 39.

kS

R20209F9 A30H » 18518 (20194F : 156
TH ) #4258 #91,528,321,0007% 7T (20194F

1,157,508,000/ 1) Z B IR EFTIAE
BRI E R EEA - S @R
BRI RAERSBEENEEE %
ZERNEANTFZR2BIUERA TR
122304 (20194 - 152304F ) N HAEE

202089 A30H © A & £49699,925,000
77T (20194 : 208,181,000/ 7T ) 27 2318
B3k (2019%F  4BEF) - fERARAEAE
E—HEEEFRFPAZEEE S LM
AEES M EERARE B R4E
EEFHRE MAEEEREFERMEAE
ZEBLFUNEEREEZER -BRE
X 48 £ BB 491,676,476,0007 7£(2019
F :2,122,037,0008 70 ) Jh B4R T AR E
BB E =77 B %672,389,000/%5
7T (20194 : 948,774,000 7T ) 2 B 3%
TIABBYE S -_KE=F TR A
BER UTHERBESEEERZEMAE
HEEH1E304 (20194F 1 12304 ) W EIHA

g

7202099 A30H M 201949 A30H ' &
TH JE U [ 7 F R &% B IR E R
ANER BB AERBRTEZ10% ©

AEE ERRBR EEERLAT
EARE -
EERBIER BRI 02 [ ]
B R ME T o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MWK

For the year ended 30 September 2020 & Z=2020F9H30H IFF[E
22. Accounts Receivable

22. EWERR

Accounts receivable from the business of dealing in securities:

KBERHEEEB 2 BEARN :

Clearing houses, dealers, brokers and cash clients
REM R KRMEREP

Secured margin loans A #EHFFREE R

IPO margin loans B X AFRBRTEER

Accounts receivable from the business of dealing in futures contracts:

KEMEEMNEE X BYSER -

Clearing houses, brokers and margin clients &&F7 - &4 RFFRE P

Accounts receivable from the business of corporate finance

KB RFRAE XL RUERSR

Accounts receivable from the business of placing and underwriting

KB BCE MB RN 2 IR

80,632 68,686

Less: provision for impairment & : Ja{E & #

The settlement terms of accounts receivable, except for
secured margin loans and IPO margin loans, arising from the
business of dealing in securities are two days after trade
date, and of accounts receivable arising from the business of
dealing in futures contracts are one day after trade date.

Normal settlement terms of accounts receivable from the
business of corporate finance and placing and underwriting
are determined in accordance with the contractual terms. The
Group seeks to maintain tight control over its outstanding
accounts receivable from the business of corporate finance in
order to minimise the credit risk.

Details of credit risk profile disclosure are set out in “credit
risk and impairment assessment” in note 39.

Emperor Capital Group Limited HEXFSEBEAER QT
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3,499,512 4,003,638
2,403,233 -
85,133
715
4,755 -
6,066,157 4,158,172
(1,727,522) (729,715)
4,338,635 3,428,457
BHEBEBEE ZEBBEF(EIER

RHRER L ERAFRARARERG
SMZEERR AR ZBEME -
EANBEBERBMEL 2 BIIRR 24
MR/ HA%K—H-

KEDRBE N LI E R BIHER
YRR IE & 48 B H T IRIR & A6 E
EeoRREEERR NEBREHR
RARERER B BERE X2 BUERR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR BRRHE

For the year ended 30 September 2020 & Z2020%F9H30H L F[E

22. Accounts Receivable (continued)

As at 30 September 2020, accounts receivable from foreign
brokers denominated in Australian dollar, Renminbi,
Singapore dollar, British Pound, Euro and United States dollar
were approximately HK$216,000 (2019: HK$207,000),
HK$1,067,000 (2019: HK$720,000), HK$549,000 (2019: HK$
Nil), HK$45,000 (2019: HK$ Nil), HK$92,000 (2019: HK$ Nil)
and HK$41,053,000 (2019: HK$55,200,000) respectively.

As at 30 September 2020 and 30 September 2019, no
individual account represented more than 10% of the total
balance of accounts receivable.

No ageing analysis of secured margin loans and IPO margin
loans is disclosed as in the opinion of the executive directors
of the Company, the ageing analysis does not give additional
value in view of the nature of this business.

The ageing analysis of the remaining of the accounts
receivable (before impairment) are as follows:

Past due: #1Hf :
0 — 30 days 0&30H
31 - 60 days 31260H
61— 90 days 61290H

Over 90 days #:E90H

22. EWBRF (&)

R2020F9 A30H « FEUIEIME 40 BR X
LUBRTT - AR 3N - 3665 - BT
MZETEHE 9 5l % £216,000/ 7T
(20194 : 207,000/ 7T) * 1,067,000/%
JC(20194F : 720,000 7T ) * 549,000
J0(2019%F « &= & JT ) 45,000 7T
(20194 : T# L) 92,000/ 7T (2019
& T T ) K&41,053,0008 £(2019
£F : 55,200,000/ 7T )

R2020%F9 A30H N201949A30H -
BMEERRAGERERRE S L
10% A I o

ARBATEZR R AEKLEH
1% BRI DM 2 MY INEE A K - 3 &
REAEMARER L ERRRBRA
RERZIRE DT

B8 T EYBR RO E AT ) 2 BR e 5 4 1A
™o

Accounts receivable which were past due = #1512 FEUBR X

Accounts receivable which were not past due ###1H ~ & U BR 3¢

395

73 62

163 103
242 347
8,381 907
155,031 153,627
163,412 154,534
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MWK

For the year ended 30 September 2020 & Z=2020%F9H30H L F[E

23.

24.

Pledged Bank Deposits — General Accounts  23. BIEFRITHER — —RES

2020
HK$°000

TR

Pledged bank deposits BRI TFR 160,000
The deposits of HK$160,000,000 (2019: HK$160,000,000) with a 48 17 17 2160,000,0003% 7T.(20194F
bank were to secure the banking facilities granted to the Group 160,000,000/ 7T ) E1E B A & B ER
fo the extent of HK$160,000,000 (2019: HK$160,000,000), of 4877 B & & % 160,000,0005% 75 (2019
which HK$160,000,000 was utilised as at 30 September 2020 £ : 160,000,000/ JT ) < H# - H
(2019: HK$150,000,000) (note 28). The pledged bank deposits 160,000,000/ 7T 2 720209 H30H
will be released upon the expiry of banking facilities. B (20194 : 150,000,000/ 7T ) (Ff

i28) ZEZEEEMRITEFENE
SRTT R & o B JE AR R

Bank Balances and Cash 24, SRITHEBRES

2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000

FHB FHT

Bank balances R1T#& 4

- segregated accounts (Note) — B BRP (HifzE) 1,574,525 1,416,696
— general accounts and cash —— P MRS 692,032 1,745,508
2,266,557 3,162,204
Note: The Group receives and holds money deposited by clients Wi EETZREXEBREFR NEFEK
and other institutions in the course of the conduct of the BEFERER R HMEET R X
regulated activities. These clients’ money are maintained in BH-ZEREPREGFTER —EZE
one or more segregated bank accounts and bear interest at B IRITIRP N RIRP R RS o
commercial rates. The Group has recognised the AEEDBHRENTBEERTR REA
corresponding accounts payable to respective clients and Mg AR A AEBBRF
other institutions. However, the Group currently does not W AR IF 2 e & I SE % S FE T BR
have an enforceable right to offset those payables with the TR Al SR AT ©
deposits placed.
As at 30 September 2020, bank balances and cash R2020F9H30H LB L MM & K
denominated in Australian dollar, Canadian dollar, Japanese JL-HE -ExT  ARE R -BER
Yen, United States dollar, Renminbi, British Pound, Euro and STt EZ RITEBR RIS D RIAY
Singapore dollar, are approximately HK$83,000 (2019: 483,000/ 75 (20194 : 80,0007 7T.) *
HK$80,000), HK$221,000 (2019: HK$47,000), HK$22,000 (2019: 221,0003% 7T (20194 : 47,0009 7T ) -
HK$10,000), HK$324,541,000 (2019: HK$270,224,000), 22,0005 7T (20194 : 10,0005 7T )-
HK$31,640,000 (2019: HK$47,486,000), HK$10,000 (2019: HK$ 324,541,000 7C(2019 : 270,224,000
Nil), HK$92,000 (2019: HK$ Nil) and HK$13,070,000 (2019: B JC ) 31,640,000 JT(2019%F :
HK$2,778,000) respectively. 47,486,000/ 7T )+ 10,0007 7T(2019

FTHEIT) 92,0007 (20194 « &
7T ) &13,070,0005 (20194 -
2,778,000 7T ) ©

The general accounts and cash comprise cash held by the —REPEKREPEASEFE RS
Group and bank deposits bearing interest at commercial RiZEENEFEBRIEB R =EH
rates with original maturity of three months or less. AR Z RITIER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR BRRHE

For the year ended 30 September 2020 & Z2020%F9H30H L F[E
25. Accounts Payable

Accounts payable from the business of dealing in securities:

PNEECE=N-F 3/l N1
Clearing houses and brokers %5 & Ft & 4842

Margin and cash clients ffE RIRE&EF

Accounts payable from the business of dealing in futures contracts:

KEMEENEEXB 2 EBINRN

Margin clients fFR & F

25. FEfYARRX

4,538 8,189
1,515,590 1,390,735
199,431 165,368
1,719,559 1,564,292

The settlement terms of accounts payable, except for margin
clients, arising from the business of dealing in securities are
two days after trade date and accounts payable arising from
the business of dealing in futures contracts are one day after
trade date. No ageing analysis is disclosed as in the opinion
of the exec